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About this report

This annual report is a summary of the operations,

activities and performance of Nufarm Limited (ABN 37

091323 312) and its controlled entities for the year

ended 30 September 2025 and its financial position as

at 30 September 2025.

In this report, unless otherwise stated, references to
'Nufarm, 'the Nufarm Group), 'the group', 'we, 'us' and
‘our' and similar expressions refer collectively to Nufarm
Limited and its controlled entities. Unless otherwise
stated, financial information in this report is presented
on the basis as described in the Notes to the Financial
Statements basis of preparation on page 73 of this
report. Nufarm Limited shares trade on the ASX under
the ASX code: NUF.

All financial information is presented in Australian
dollars unless otherwise stated.

Forward looking statements and scenario analysis

This report contains forward-looking statements,
including our expected business strategies, business
performance and market conditions including with
respect to climate change and other environmental
and energy transition scenarios. While these forward
looking statements reflect Nufarm'’s current knowledge,
expectations and assumptions at the date of this
report, they are not guarantees or predications of
future performance or statements of fact and Nufarm
does not give any assurance that forward looking
statements will prove to be correct. They involve

known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which may
cause actual outcomes and developments to differ
materially from those expressed in, or implied by,

such statements. Relevant factors may include (without
limitation) changes in product demand, the timing

and success of new product launches, decisions by
regulatory authorities regarding approval and ongoing
registration of Nufarm products, operational changes,
difficulties or delays in manufacturing, third party
supply interruptions, weather volatility, cyberattack/
unauthorised access, the loss of key personnel,

safety incidents, environmental damage, product
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contamination and quality, compliance breaches,
litigation or government investigations, global economic
and geo-political uncertainty and conflict, energy
security and inflation including increases in costs of
goods, and the effect of economic conditions generally.
Many of these risks and uncertainties are beyond the
control of Nufarm Limited. Further information about
Nufarm'’s risks are set out on pages 19-23 of

this report.

This report also contains scenario analysis related

to potential climate impacts. Scenario analysis

has inherent limitations, including its reliance on
assumptions that may or may not prove to be correct or
eventuate, and may be impacted by factors apart from
the assumptions disclosed. It is difficult to predict which
(if any) of the scenarios might eventuate.

Nufarm cautions readers against undue reliance on any
forward-looking statements or guidance, particularly

in light of the current economic climate with the
significant volatility, uncertainty and disruption caused
by global events such as geopolitical tensions and

the inherent uncertainty in possible policy, market and
technological developments in the future. Except as
required by applicable laws or regulations, Nufarm
does not undertake to publicly update or review any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information or future events. Past performance cannot
be relied on as a guide to future performance.

IFRS and Non-IFRS financial information

Nufarm results are reported under International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) including
underlying EBIT and underlying EBITDA which are
used to measure segment performance. This release
also includes certain non-IFRS measures including
underlying net profit after tax and gross profit margin.
These measures are used internally by management
to assess the performance of Nufarm’s business, make
decisions on the allocation of its resources and assess
operational management. Non-IFRS measures have
not been subject to audit or review. Notes explaining
underlying EBIT and underlying EBITDA can be found on
pages 17-18 of this annual report.
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Financial year 2025 overview

Safety (Lost time injury

frequency rate per

1,000,000 hours worked)
2.78

1.55

FY24 FY25

Net working capital
(A$m)

952 889

FY24 FY25

Net debt to underlying

EBITDA (times)
2.7
2.0
FY24 FY25

Our diverse portfolio and geographic footprint provided resilience in another challenging year.

Net profit/(loss) after tax
(A$m)

(6) (165)
|
FY24 FY25
Underlying
EBITDA (A$m)
FY24 FY25
Underlying EBIT (A$m)
107
82
FY24 FY25
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Chair’'s message

“In FY25, we delivered strong growth in crop protection
and have a reprioritised Seed Technologies strategy that
positions us well for the future.”

FY25 Overview

In FY25, we reported a statutory net loss after tax of $165.3m,
driven by $142.4m of predominantly non-cash material items
arising from the work to re-position our Seed Technologies
business and our performance improvement plan. While this
statutory result is disappointing for the business and for our
shareholders, the work we have done to re-prioritise capital
allocation and reduce cost, positions the business well for
the future.

Pleasingly, our crop protection business performed well in
FY25, reporting strong growth in underlying profitability. This
improvement is no accident - it reflects the quality of our
products and positions in key markets, our longstanding
commitment to innovation, as well as the execution of our
strategy year-on-year to improve performance. We also
benefited from some improvement in underlying industry
conditions compared to recent years.

While our Hybrid Seeds business performed well in FY25,
overall performance of Seed Technologies was adversely
impacted by a significant fall in the price of fish oils, which are
relevant for our Omega-3 platform, and also by dry conditions
in Australia.

As a result, during the year we conducted a review of our Seed
Technologies businesses. After extensive work, we determined
that the best value for shareholders would come from a
reprioritised strategy that reduces overall cash costs and capital
demands, prioritises growth in hybrid seeds and bioenergy

and repositions our Omega-3 platform to achieve a stronger
position over the medium term. Work implementing these
review findings commenced during the second half of FY25.

Balance sheet and capital management

Our balance sheet has been an important area of focus in
FY25. The increase in net debt at year end reflected a range

of factors including expenditure on key manufacturing assets
and a significant increase in Omega-3 oil inventory. We did
not declare any dividends to shareholders this year, reflecting
our capital management principles and our objective to reduce
leverage. The company has a good level of funding availability,
with diversified and flexible debt facilities that are underpinned
by a covenant light financing structure and staggered maturity
profile. We have a clear path to reduce leverage by the end

of the FY26 financial year, through further improvements in
working capital management, earnings growth, lower capital
expenditure and cost disciplines.
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CEO Transition

At our November result we announced that Rico Christensen,
Nufarm’s Group Executive, Portfolio Solutions would succeed
Greg Hunt as CEO and Managing Director. Greg has led the
business for the last 10 years, during which time Nufarm has
become a more diversified business with clear opportunities for
growth through innovation. The succession process has been
well planned, with key appointments having been made to the
leadership team over the last five years. Rico brings 30 years
of global leadership experience in the agricultural chemicals
sector and a strong track record of delivering performance
improvement through a focus on operational excellence, capital
discipline and portfolio development. The board and | are
delighted with Rico's appointment and are looking forward to
working together.

| would like to take this opportunity to pay tribute to Greg Hunt's
leadership. Greg has been an extraordinary leader of Nufarm
and is a highly respected and admired leader in the Australian
business community. On behalf of the board, | would like to
thank Greg for his important contribution over many years and
wish him well for the future.

Positive outlook

We are positive about the opportunities for Nufarm in FY26 and
beyond. Rico’s focus in FY26 is on cost and capital discipline,
driving profitable growth in crop protection and delivering

on our re-prioritised Seed Technologies strategy. Longer
term, we have significant potential to drive growth and

unlock value for our shareholders, through disciplined capital
allocation, leveraging our high quality market positions and our
longstanding commitment to innovation.

John Gillam
Chair

12 December 2025
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CEQO’s message

“In FY25 we saw a significant improvement in the profitability
of our crop protection businesses. We conducted a review of
Seed Technologies and emerged with a reprioritised strategy
with lower costs and more focused capital allocation. We are
acting to de-lever our balance sheet and are confident in

our future.”

Financial and operational performance

In FY25 we saw a significant improvement in the profitability of
our crop protection businesses. We delivered an 18% increase
in underlying EBITDA on the prior year, with growth across all
regions. We saw a significant step-up in profitability in Europe
on the back of our performance improvement program. APAC
performed well with record profitability in Asia, and a good result
in Australia considering the impact of dry weather. Our North
American team delivered strong growth including a record
result in our Turf and Ornamentals business, while navigating
some dynamic market conditions in relation to tariffs and anti-
dumping duties.

In an overall flat volume environment, we focused on profitable
growth. Revenue and profit grew with the benefit of product mix
and margin. Internal discipline around working capital and cost
supported a strong net debt unwind in the second half of FY25.

We have a long track record in developing solutions for farmers
through innovation, with a capital light technology partnership
model. We maintain a strong pipeline of new products

which in FY25 delivered multiple product launches in multiple
markets. New products in crop protection launched in the past
five years, contributed approximately 15% of FY25 revenue.

Our Seed Technologies result was impacted by the
performance of Omega-3, one of our emerging technology
platforms. Our profitable, cash generative Hybrid Seeds
business performed well with EBITDA of $67m, a solid
performance given the impact of dry weather in Australia on
canola seed sales. South America sorghum and sunflower were
ahead of prior year. We have streamlined our European and
North American operations, as we focus on the markets which
are most attractive and where we have the strongest positions
and growth potential.

In Omega-3, a significant fall in the price of fish oils impacted
performance. We have taken action to reduce the cash and
capital requirements of the business and to achieve a lower
cost of production over the medium term. In the short term,

we will support customer demand with existing inventory. We
maintain confidence in the long-term future of our Omega-3
platform and have a pathway to sustainably improve profitability
as we pursue deregulation and reposition production to South
America and Australia.

In Bioenergy, our carinata cover crop is producing oil that can
be used to replace fuels for hard to abate sectors like aviation
and marine. We had the benefit of growth in carinata hectares

planted and resulting seed margin, however this was offset by
the timing of license fees. We have seen strong recovery in
GHG market values in Europe which is driving increased oil
demand and value outlook for carinata.

Restructuring actions

In FY25 we incurred $142 million in material items which
impacted the statutory result. These items were primarily
non-cash and resulted from actions taken as part of our
review of Seed Technologies and company-wide performance
improvement program.

In Hybrid Seeds, we scaled back our European sunflower
operations as the prolonged and more severe Russia/Ukraine
conflict has significantly reduced the attractiveness of that
market. This resulted in an impairment of sunflower intellectual
property and a write down on seed inventory.

Material items also included the impact of a write down of
Omega-3 canola seed inventory, resulting from our decision to
scale back Omega-3 canola plantings in North America, as well
as redundancy costs associated with the cost out program from
workforce reductions.

Importantly, we now have a more streamlined cost structure
and more focused capital allocation and growth strategy. We
expect the benefits of these actions in future years.

FY26 Outlook

As stated in our FY25 result presentation, we have a positive
outlook for profit growth in FY26. We are expecting strong
growth in underlying EBITDA for the group, driven by growth

in underlying EBITDA in crop protection and hybrid seeds, and
a $30m improvement from our emerging platforms in Seed
Technologies. We are taking actions to de-lever our balance
sheet and are targeting Leverage (Net debt to uEBITDA) of
approximately 2.0 by the end of FY26.

Farewell

After 10 years as CEO and Managing Director of Nufarm, this

will be my last annual report address. It has been a privilege to
lead the company and | would like to thank our people, business
partners, customers and investors for their support. | would also
like to thank the board for having given me the opportunity to
lead the business and for their support over the years. Nufarm
is a great business, and | leave it in good hands under the
leadership of Rico Christensen and our board of directors.

Greg Hunt
Chief Executive Officer

12 December 2025
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About us

Agriculture is evolving and so is Nufarm.

Nufarm is a global crop protection and seeds technologies We proudly join forces with universities, suppliers and

company that helps farmers and businesses meet the global innovation partners worldwide to collaborate, develop and
challenges of food, feed, fibre and fuel production. We bring deliver sustainable solutions that respond to the evolving needs
our proven agility, capabilities and partnerships to help our of existing and new customers.

customers in a rapidly changing world. ) )
picly 9ing Our customers span the agriculture, food and fuel industry.

Our 3000+ team, deep agricultural science expertise, and They are primarily agricultural distributors and growers
dynamic culture across nearly 50 countries mean that we and in more recent years, the aquaculture, nutritional and
can manoeuvre quickly into areas where technologies and bioenergy industries.

opportunities converge.

Figure 1: We are focused on markets, crops and segments where we expect to have the biggest impact

Where we play

KEY
REGIONS

Cereals Trees, Nuts, Corn Pasture, Soybean Sorghum Sunflower Canola Carinata Energy
Vines & Turf & Cane
Vegetables Ornamental

GROWTH

PLATFORMS Core Crop Biologicals Emerging

A = Bioenergy
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, protection solutions

CROP PROTECTION PLATFORMS SEED TECHNOLOGIES PLATFORMS

Crop protection comprises the majority of our business.

Figure 2: Nufarm has solid foundations and significant growth aspirations

Nufarm at a glance

@ $3.4bn 2 segments
’ FY25 revenue -‘n Crop Protection and
| | Seed Technologies
100+ 5 ASX : NUF Lo ~3,000
years of history n Listed on the E{G}] employees
Australian Securities
Exchange
11 9
Manufacturing Innovation
facilities & R&D centres

6 Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025



For personal use only

We have two synthesis sites at Wyke, United Kingdom and
Laverton, Australia. We formulate crop protection products
in 11 manufacturing sites across the world. Our largest and
most significant sites with respect to sustainability impacts
are located in Laverton, Australia; Linz, Austria; Wyke, United
Kingdom; and Chicago Heights, United States.

Figure 3: Our significant locations

Alsip and
Chicago Heights
USA

Sacramento
California
USA

Greenville
Mississippi
USA

Morrisville
North Carolina
USA

W Manufacturing Facilities

@ Crop Innovation Centre
Regional HQ

@ Sseed Innovation Centre

Venado Tuerto
Argentina
(O Procurement Hub

Our culture and values

At Nufarm, the safety of our people, our products, our
customers and the community is foremost in all that we do.

We believe all incidents can be prevented and that we are all
responsible for making sure everyone who works at, or visits our
sites, goes home safely.

Our actions are anchored by our RARE values.

We have three seed innovation centres - in Horsham, Australia;
Sacramento, USA; and Venado Tuerto, Argentina. We have five
seed R&D facilities: three in North America, one in Brazil and
one in Serbia. We have a global procurement hub in Shanghai,
China. See Figure 3 for our significant locations.

Wyke
UK
Shanghai
China
Gaillon Dusseldorf Linz
France Germany Austria

Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

Cairo é Merak
Egypt Indonesia

Horsham
Australia

Kwinana
Australia

Laverton
Australia

Our employees are encouraged to unearth the possibilities
every day. We aim to provide an inclusive work environment
where individuals are valued for their diversity and empowered
to reach their full potential. This is a reference to our high
performing culture and also reflects the three principles of our
employee value proposition - own your growth, stay curious and
come as you are.

R We are accountable for our decisions and our actions. We recognise that trust is at the

Responsibility

foundation of relationships and that acting ethically, safely and responsibly creates that trust.

We are resourceful and adaptable in meeting the needs of our customers and our organisation.

We care for all of our resources.

We respect others - colleagues, customers and stakeholders - and our environment.

We are an innovative, entrepreneurial organisation where individuals and teams can do what is best
for the customer, the organisation and our stakeholders.

Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025 7
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About us continued

Our history

For 100 years our focus has been on the customer. This will continue to be our focus for the next 100.

8

1916

New Zealand Farmers
Federation (NZFF) began

quality products to help

1957

Nufarm Australia
established by Max
with a few people delivering  Fremder, providing
solutions for farmers

1979

Nufarm forges a
reputation for service
and product quality
and moves to

1988

Nufarm and NZFF
unite and starts a
period of increased
growth while always

1988-89

Exports to America start in
earnest and Nufarm USA
is incorporated in 1989.

1991-92

Nufarm expands into Asia,
opening offices in
Singapore and Malaysia.

farmers grow better crops. in Australia. headquartes in focusing on
Melbourne. customers.
1998-99

Nufarm acquires Riverdale Chemical Co.,
(Crop Protection formulation specialists),
along with 2,4-D businesses in USA,
Canada and France.

2002

Nufarm acquires

1994-98

Nufarm expands into Europe,
acquiring businesses that
strengthen our core and diversify
to meet customer demand.

CropCare, strengthening
its position in the cotton
and broadacre selective
grass herbicide sectors.

2006

Nufarm establishes our
seed technologies
platform, providing
hybrid crops that create
value for farmers.

2022

Nufarm and bp enter into strategic
agreement to accelerate market
adoption of Nufarm Carinata as a
sustainable low-carbon feedstock.

Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025

2011-13

Nufarm signs agreement with Sumitomo to
co-develop new formulations of crop
protection products.

Nufarm collaborates with CSIRO and GRDC
on plant-based omega-3 project.

Nufarm expands seed platform by
acquiring sunflower seed and research
company, Seeds 2000 Inc in the USA.

2020

Europe’s largest producer of
biodiesel received the first
Nufarm Carinata grown as a
scalable cover crop in
Argentina, for processing into
arenewable fuel.

Nufarm acquires EU crop
protection assets from Adama
and Syngenta, and is also an early
investor in Enko, applying highly
disruptive technology from the
pharmaceutical industry to
agriculture.

2019

Nufarm opens a state-of-the-art crop
protection manufacturing facility in Greenville,
enabling closely working with distribution
partners to serve the needs of farmers.

2024

Nufarm announces a new joint agreement with
bp on biomass oil technology for future
bioenergy applications. Also announces a
strategic partnership with Unilever that paves the
way to the fast-moving consumer goods market.

TODAY

Nufarm is a global crop protection
and seed technologies company
that helps farmers and businesses
meet the global needs of food, fibre
and fuel production.



Environmental, social and governance (ESG)

This year, Nufarm further evolved its ESG reporting with the introduction of two documents:

1 2025 Climate Statement, which outlines the company's decarbonisation initiatives and aligns with mandatory climate-related
reporting requirements that will apply to Nufarm from 2026, and

2 2025 ESG Impact Statement, which highlights progress across the company'’s five tier-one material topics which were refreshed
in FY24:

sustainable agricultural innovation,

decarbonisation and climate change adaptation,
employee and community safety health and wellbeing,
product safety and stewardship, and

compliance and the regulatory environment,

Our 2025 ESG Impact Statement also includes our detailed sustainability disclosures made in accordance with the Global
Reporting Initiative Sustainability Reporting Standards (GRI Standards).

Refer to these statements for a comprehensive view of Nufarm'’s ESG progress. Further information on our governance approach is
in our corporate governance statement on pages 27-37 of this report.

For personal use only
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Our ESG performance

In FY25, we had five public ESG targets and the following two pages outline our performance
and progress.

Our 2025 Targets

Reducing our environmental impacts

To reduce our volatile organic compound (VOC) emissions to air from our crop protection manufacturing sites by 25 per cent

by FY25'

75

In FY25 we undertook a significant project to install a
regenerative thermal oxidation (RTO) unit. As anticipated
50 44 in our FY24 Sustainability Report, we were unable to
4 38 implement this technology in time to achieve the target.
While VOC emissions were 57 per cent above the baseline
at the end of FY25, once the RTO unit is fully operational
25 we expect to exceed the 25 per cent reduction target.

Tonne
w
o

VOC emissions from our site at Linz in Austria comprise
the majority of our total crop protection manufacturing
VOC emissions, so this was the focus of our target.

FY20 FY21 FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25  FY25
Target

Not
met

To reduce our operational hazardous waste from our crop protection manufacturing sites by 20 per cent by FY25'

30

In FY25, we met this target with a 23 per cent

reduction in hazardous waste - from 19.6k tonne in FY20
to 15.3k tonne in FY25. This was primarily achieved
through the successful implementation of process,
planning and continuous improvement initiatives at our
Chicago Heights facility in the United States. Chicago
Heights comprised approximately 40 per cent of our
manufacturing hazardous waste when we set the target
in FY20.

20

k tonne

FY20 FY21 FY22  FY23  FY24  FY25 FY25
Target

Met

To obtain ISO 14001 certification for 10 of our crop protection manufacturing sites by FY252

We set out to implement ISO 14001 environmental
management systems at 10 out of 11 of our crop protection
manufacturing sites which combined comprise over 99
per cent of our crop protection production volume.

10 out of 10 In FY25, we achieved certification at our sites in Laverton
and Kwinana, Australia and Chicago Heights, Alsip and

Greenville in the US. Our site in Gaillon in France recertified

and our sites at Wyke in the UK, Linz in Austria, Port

Klang in Malaysia and Merak in Indonesia all maintained

their certification.

Met

1 Measured from our FY20 manufacturing baseline.
2 Measured as a percentage of production volume made by an ISO14001 certified site.

10 Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025
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Our 2030 Targets

Minimising our climate impacts

To reduce our scope 1and 2 GHG emissions from our crop protection manufacturing sites by 30 per cent by FY30

k tonne CO,-e

10

5

0

0

0

94
87
82
66
55 I

FY20

Fy21

Fy22

FY23

Fy24

FY25

FY30
Target

Nufarm's manufacturing scope 1and 2 GHG emissions were
23 per cent below baseline this year.

To help us achieve our target, we have established a five-
year PPA at Laverton, our largest emitting site. However,
we anticipate growth in our phenoxy business in the future,
which will further increase emissions.

We are exploring additional, cost-effective decarbonisation
options for Wyke in the United Kingdom, to contribute to our
emissions reduction efforts. Together, these sites account
for over 80 per cent of our manufacturing emissions

and represent the best opportunity for us to reduce our
emissions footprint.

On
track

Working to create a diverse workforce to help facilitate our innovation agenda

To reach a gender ratio of 40:40:20 in our senior leadership team' by FY30, measured as full-time equivalent (FTE) employees

40%
40
S Our 40:40:20 target is defined as representation of 40 per
g cent who identify as women, 40 per cent who identify as
2 men and 20 per cent who identify as men, women or other.
c
8 In FY25, our gender percentage declined from 33 per cent o"k
3 in FY24 to 31 per cent in FY25 due to business restructuring. trac
a We believe that our targeted programs in the manufacturing,
technology and customer relationship parts of our business
will help us achieve the 2030 goal.
FY20 FY21 FY22  FY23 FY24 FY25 FY30
Target
1 Our senior leadership team is defined as the CEO, the direct reports to the CEO (CEO-1) and their direct reports (CEO-2).
Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025 1

MBIAIBAO GZOTZ
Jeak |eoueulq

MaIAsY eloueul

Juswale)s sdueulanoh

snnoqy

@ouewsouad Hg3 INO

1loday uonelaunway 1loday ,sl1010241q ojesodio) pue Bunesado

SjuUaWeleIS [BIOUBUIL



For personal use only

Operating and Financial Review

Group results

This Operating and Financial Review includes financial information based on financial statements prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and audited by KPMG. Non-IFRS measures including underlying EBIT and
underlying EBITDA are used internally by management to assess the performance of our business, make decisions on the allocation
of our resources and assess operational management. Non-IFRS measures have not been subject to audit or review. All amounts are
in Australian dollars unless otherwise specified.

2025 2024 Change
Summary financial results $000 $000 %
Revenue 3,443,379 3,345,909 3%
Gross profit 899,987 840,369 7%
Underlying gross profit 950,132 895,022 6%
Underlying gross profit margin 27.6% 26.7% 0.8%
Underlying SG&A (813,298) (741,843) 10%
Underlying research and development expenditure (59,213) (49,647) 19%
Underlying EBITDA 302,479 312,741 (3)%
Underlying EBITDA excluding Emerging Platforms 355,627 323,922 10%
Underlying EBIT 81,957 107,311 (24)%
Operating profit / (loss) (73,720) 64,740 (214)%
Underlying net external interest (104,047) (98,753) 5%
Net external interest (94,954) (98,753) (4)%
Foreign exchange gains / (losses) (6,347) (9,435) (33)%
Underlying net financing costs (110,394) (108,188) 2%
Net financing costs (101,301) (108,188) (6)%
Underlying net profit / (loss) after tax (22,870) (3,717) large
Net profit / (loss) after tax (165,319) (5,598) large
Statutory effective tax rate 5.7% 87.6% (81.9)%
Basic earnings per share - excluding material items (cents) (11.6) (6.3) (5.3) cents
Basic earnings per share (cents) (48.8) (6.8) (42.0) cents

12 Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025
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Earnings

For FY25, the group reported a statutory net loss after

tax of $165.3 million (FY24 loss $5.6 million). The statutory
result included a $142.4 million after-tax impact from material
items. These were primarily non-cash charges, arising from
asset rationalisation and restructuring linked to the Seed
Technologies review and a company-wide performance
improvement program. Basic earnings per share was a loss of
48.8 cents per share (FY24 loss 6.8 cents per share).

Excluding the impact of material items, underlying EBIT (UEBIT)
was $82.0 million and underlying EBITDA (UEBITDA) was
$302.5 million, representing declines relative to the prior
corresponding period (pcp) of 24% and 3% respectively. The
operating result benefited from an improvement in earnings
from crop protection. Performance in Seed Technologies was
negatively impacted by falling fish oil prices. The impact

of omega-3 losses on the underlying result was significant.
Excluding the impact of emerging platforms, uEBITDA rose 10%
on the pcp.

Revenue was $3.443 billion representing an increase of 3% on
the pcp and was primarily due to improvement in sales mix in
crop protection, with a greater proportion of sales occurring in
higher priced products. Revenue from services, licenses and
royalties was below the pcp, reflecting lower license revenues in
our Seed Technologies segment.

Gross profit increased 7% on the pcp. The improvement
resulted from growth in revenue and gross profit margins in
crop protection which benefited from both product mix and
lower cost of goods. Excluding the impact of material items,
underlying gross profit increased 6% on the pcp and underlying
gross profit margin was 0.8ppt higher than the pcp.

Underlying SG&A and research and development expenditure
increased on the pcp. Research and development activities
included working with strategic partners to develop new
products which have potential long-term value for the company.
The company'’s cost savings program gained momentum
through the period.

Cash flow
2025 2024 Change
Cash flow results $000 $000 %
Underlying net operating cash flow 192,614 519,637 (62.9%
Net operating cash flow - material items (29,849) (47,246) (36.8)%
Total net operating cash flow 162,765 472,391 (65.5)%
Underlying net investing cash flow (245,613) (253,244) (3)%
Net investing cash flow - material items - 45,787 (100.0)%
Total net investing cash flow (245,613) (207,457) 18%
Total underlying net operating and investing cash flow (52,999) 266,393 large
Total net operating and investing cash flow (82,848) 264,934 large

The group’s operating cash flow for FY25 was $162.8 million (FY24 $472.4 million). Operating cash flow included a $29.8 million
outflow from material items associated with the company’s review of Seed Technologies and company-wide performance
improvement program. Operating cash flow was negatively impacted by higher payments for interest and taxes and a build in

net working capital in the Seed Technologies segment.

Investing cash flows were $245.6 million. Investing cash flow included expenditure on property, plant and equipment and
expenditure on intangibles mainly associated with research and development. A highlight during the year was the signing of an
agreement with KingAgroot with exclusivity for a new broad spectrum herbicide for the Australian market.

Total net operating and investing cash flow was an outflow of $82.8 million.
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Operating and Financial Review continued

Balance Sheet Management

As at As at

30 Sep 2025 30 Sep 2024 Change
Financial position $000 $000 %
Net debt 824,201 634,759 30%
Net working capital 888,862 952,104 (7%
ANWC/sales (%) 38.2% 42.6% (440)bps
Leverage (includes lease liabilities) 2.7 2.0 (0.7x)
Gearing % 28.1% 22.3% 580 bps
ROFE - total group 2.8% 3.6% (80) bps

Net debt at the end of FY25 was $824.2 million (FY24

$634.8 million). The increase in net debt resulted from a

cash outflow from operating and investing activities and
translation due to foreign exchange movements. Net debt
declined $538.2 million from 1H25, reflecting a normal seasonall
reduction in working capital in crop protection, partly offset by
higher working capital in Seed Technologies. The ratio of net
debt (including lease liabilities) to UEBITDA (Leverage) was 2.7.
Leverage was higher than the pcp due to higher net debt and
lower UEBITDA.

Net working capital (NWC) was $888.9 million which was a

7% reduction on the pcp. The NWC movement was primarily
due to a reduction in trade and other receivables and increase
in trade and other payables. NWC was also impacted by
impairments to inventory carrying values and foreigh exchange
movements. Inventory was higher than the pcp largely due to
carrying higher inventory of seeds and omega-3 oils in the
Seed Technologies segment. Inventory in Crop Protection was
lower than the pcp reflecting progress with the company’s
inventory reduction program.

Capital Management

Nufarm's capital management principles aim to maintain a
robust and durable capital structure with clear guidelines for
the application of free cashflow generated from business
operations. Our financing arrangements aim to ensure we have
the required financial resilience to withstand adverse trading
cycles without experiencing undue balance sheet stress.
Currently we have good tenor and flexibility in our facilities.

Our $800 million revolving asset-based lending credit facility
(ABL) matures in November 2027 and is secured against trade
receivables and inventory located in Australia, the United States
and Canada. We also maintain a Standby Liquidity Facility

(SLF) which matures in November 2026. The ABL and SLF
complement the US$350 million senior unsecured notes which
were issued in January 2022 and due in January 2030.
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Subsequent to 30 September 2025, the group has
refinanced its short-term omega-3 loan facility with a
balance of $109.401 million (US$90 million facility size,
with US$72.347 million drawn) into a two-year A$90 million
amortising loan facility with annual principal repayments.

Dividend

The board has adopted a dividend policy to align dividend
payments to free cash flow generation, subject to the balance
sheet meeting our target leverage range of 1.5x - 2.0x

and there being insufficient growth opportunities. Nufarm'’s
dividend policy aims to ensure an appropriate focus on cash
generation, especially net working capital management, as well
as maintaining an appropriate capital structure for the group.

In considering the application of this policy, any reference to
free cash flow should be assessed through an appropriate
historical and forecast cycle, to take into consideration
fluctuations in net working capital and planned investment.
Similarly, target leverage is considered on an annualised basis
at 30 September. Taking into account the capital management
framework the board determined not to declare a final dividend.
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Review of operations

Nufarm'’s activities in Crop Protection are managed by major geographic segments, being APAC (including Australia, New Zealand
and certain parts of Asia), Europe (including the United Kingdom, the European Union, and certain other countries in Europe, the
Middle East and Africa), and North America (including United States of America, Canada and Mexico). Seed Technologies comprises
Nufarm’s hybrid seeds, Bioenergy and Omega-3 platforms. These platforms generate revenues through the sale of seed or oil based

products, and licensing of intellectual property. Seed Technologies is managed on a worldwide basis.

During the 2025 financial year, the group announced changes to its reporting segments following the Seed Technologies review.
This has resulted in evaluating the reporting of our seed treatment business which previously had been included within our Seed
Technologies operating segment. The result of the reporting change is that from the 2025 financial year, the seed treatment
business will be included within the Crop Protection operating regional segments. The 2024 financial year has been restated to
account for this change, with no changes to the group's earnings and balance sheet as previously reported.

Restated
Revenue - Underlying 2025 2024 Change Change
($000s) $000 $000 $000 %
Crop protection
APAC 865,725 866,540 (815) (0%)
North America 1,320,049 1,300,823 19,226 1%
Europe 921,554 830,068 91,486 11%
Total Crop protection 3,107,328 2,997,431 109,897 4%
Seed Technologies 336,051 348,478 (12,427) (4%)
Corporate - - - -
Nufarm Group 3,443,379 3,345,909 97,470 3%
Restated
EBITDA - Underlying 2025 2024 Change Change
($000s) $000 $000 $000 %
Crop protection
APAC 97,832 89,007 8,825 10%
North America 110,871 93,027 17,844 19%
Europe 161,329 132,744 28,585 22%
Total Crop protection 370,032 314,778 55,254 18%
Seed Technologies 13,948 62,581 (48,633) (78%)
Corporate (81,501) (64,618) (16,883) 26%
Nufarm Group 302,479 312,741 (10,262) (3%)
Restated
EBIT - Underlying 2025 2024 Change Change
($000s) $000 $000 $000 %
Crop protection
APAC 79,5684 72,796 6,788 9%
North America 70,103 57,259 12,844 22%
Europe 53,205 27,054 26,151 97%
Total Crop protection 202,892 157,109 45,783 29%
Seed Technologies (35,396) 16,941 (52,337) (309%)
Corporate (85,539) (66,739) (18,800) 28%
Nufarm Group 81,957 107,311 (25,354) (24%)
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Operating and Financial Review continued

Crop Protection

Through the year we maintained strong momentum in Crop
Protection, reporting UEBITDA for FY25 of $370.0 million, up
18% on pcp. We saw conditions improve through FY25, which
was reflected in reduced deflationary pressure on selling prices
as the year progressed. We also benefited from improved mix
and cost of goods.

In APAC, UEBITDA increased 10% on the pcp to $97.8 million.
The region recorded a strong result with higher margins
resulting from commercial initiatives which drove improved
sales mix and margins. Asia recorded another record year for
revenue and profitability with growing contributions from new
product introductions. Australia and New Zealand also recorded
year on year growth in revenue and profitability.

We delivered a strong result in Europe with UEBITDA of

$161.3 million, increasing 22% on the pcp. The result was

driven by benefits coming through from our performance
improvement plans as well as improved agronomic conditions.
Margins expanded with improved mix, with the standout being
Acetamiprid acquired as part of the European acquisition in
2018. We saw growth in production volume from Wyke, however
pricing of MCPA remained challenging.

In North America UEBITDA increased 19% to $110.9 million. We
achieved improvements in gross margin due to an improved
cost of goods position. Momentum built through the course
of the year which is reflected in UEBITDA increasing 30%

on the pcp in the second half of FY25. The second half
performance came despite delays to product approvals and
uncertainty in the market created by tariffs. We achieved

a record year for sales and gross margin in our Turf and
Ornamentals business, which continues to provide steady
growth and reliable performance.
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Seed Technologies

In Seed Technologies, we reported UEBITDA of $13.9 million
(FY24 uEBITDA of $62.6 million). The Seed Technologies result
was primarily impacted by losses in omega-3, which was
negatively affected by a large decline in fish oil prices. License
revenue was also lower than pcp. We achieved strong growth
in revenue and profitability from seed sales in South America,
while dry weather in Australia resulted in a reduction in canola
seed sales.

Outlook

Expecting strong growth in UEBITDA in FY26 assuming normal
seasonal conditions

In Crop Protection, we expect continuing growth in uEBITDA,
moderating on 18% growth achieved in FY25.

For Seed Technologies, growth in UEBITDA from hybrid
seeds. Targeting a $30 million improvement in UEBITDA from
emerging platforms

We expect net debt to be below pcp and leverage
approximately 2.0 (FY25 2.7) at the end of FY26, supported by
growth in earnings and positive free cash flow. We are targeting
capital expenditure to be below $200 million. For 1H FY26

we expect net debt to be similar to pcp and leverage to be
below pcp.
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Material items

Individually material items are those items where their nature,
including the expected frequency of the events giving rise to
them, and/or amount is considered material to the consolidated
financial report. Such items included within the group's profit for
the period are detailed below.

Crop protection asset rationalisation and restructuring

During the period, the group continued to implement its
performance improvement program. The majority of these
costs, totalling approximately $7.264 million, relate to staff
redundancies. Additional costs of approximately $6.125 million
were incurred in connection with the write-down of the Leshan
Nong Fu Trading Co Ltd joint venture investment, the closure
of operations in Korea and rationalisation of the Croplands
business footprint.

Seed technologies asset rationalisation and restructuring

In May 2025, the group announced a review of Seed
Technologies. As part of the review, the group implemented
several near-term commercial actions which targeted reducing
costs, refocusing activities on higher margin growth of

our hybrid seeds and carinata platforms, and repositioning
omega-3. As a result, the following material items were
recognised pre-tax:

« Staff redundancy and other related restructuring costs
across the business of approximately $14.350 million

« Write-down of sunflower and canola intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment impacted by
portfolio rationalisations and market exits of approximately
$58.670 million

« Write-downs of seed inventories to net realisable value due
to restructuring activities totalling $45.684 million

ERP transformation

During the period, our North American Crop Protection segment
commenced a significant upgrade to a new cloud-based ERP
system. Total cost incurred during the initial implementation
phase in the FY25 year was approximately $9.084 million.

Non-recurring third party legal and advisory costs

During the period, the group has incurred third party legal and
advisory costs primarily in executing the Seed Technologies
review process.

IFRS and Non-IFRS financial information

Nufarm results are reported under International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) including underlying EBIT and
underlying EBITDA which are used to measure segment
performance. This release also includes certain non-IFRS
measures including underlying net profit after tax and gross
profit margin. These measures are used internally by
management to assess the performance of our business,
make decisions on the allocation of our resources and assess
operational management. Non-IFRS measures have not been
subject to audit or review.

The following notes explain the terms used throughout the
operating and financial review:

1 Underlying EBIT is earnings before net finance costs,
taxation and material items. Underlying EBITDA is
underlying EBIT before depreciation, amortisation and
material items. We believe that underlying EBIT and
underlying EBITDA provide useful information, but should not
be considered as an indication of, or an alternative to, profit /
(loss) for the period as an indicator of operating performance
or as an alternative to cash flow as a measure of liquidity.

2 Underlying EBITDA is used to reflect the underlying
performance of Nufarm'’s operations. Underlying EBITDA is
reconciled to operating profit below on a continuing basis.

2025 2024 Change
Operating profit reconciliation $000 $000 %
Underlying EBITDA 302,479 312,741 (3)%
add Depreciation and amortisation excluding material items (220,522) (205,430) 7%
Underlying EBIT 81,957 107,311 (24)%
Material items impacting operating profit (1565,677) (42,571) 266%
Operating profit (73,720) 64,740 (214)%
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Operating and Financial Review continued

3 Non-IFRS measures are defined as follows:

Term

Definition

Gross profit margin

Gross profit as a percentage of revenue

Underlying gross profit

Gross profit less material items

Underlying gross profit margin

Underlying gross profit as a percentage of revenue

Underlying SG&A

Sales, marketing and distribution expenses plus general and administrative expenses less material items

Underlying EBIT

Earnings before net financing costs, taxation and material items

Underlying EBITDA

Underlying EBIT before depreciation, amortisation and material items

Underlying net external interest

Financial income, plus interest expense - external, plus interest expense - amortisation of debt establishment
transaction costs, plus lease liability - interest expense, less material items.

Underlying net financing costs

Net financing costs less material items

Underlying net profit after tax

Profit/(loss) for the period attributable to the equity holders of Nufarm Limited less material items

Underlying income tax
benefit/(expense)

Income tax benefit/(expense) excluding material items

Underlying effective tax rate

Underlying income tax benefit/(expense) divided by underlying net profit after tax

Net debt

Current loans and borrowings, plus non-current loans and borrowings, plus cash and cash equivalents

Net working capital

Current trade and other receivables, plus inventories less current trade and other payables

Average net working capital

Net working capital measured at each month end as an average

ANWC/sales (%)

Average net working capital as a percentage of rolling 12 months revenue

Leverage

Net debt / rolling 12 months underlying EBITDA

Interest coverage ratio

Rolling 12 months underlying EBITDA / rolling 12 months net external interest

Gearing %

Net debt / (net debt plus equity)

Return on funds employed (ROFE)

12 months rolling underlying EBIT divided by the average of opening and closing funds employed (total equity plus
net debt)

Underlying net operating
cash flow

Net cash from operating activities excluding material items cash flows

Underlying net investing cash flow

Net cash from investing activities excluding material items cash flows

Underlying EBITDA excluding
Emerging platforms

Underlying EBITDA excluding the underlying EBITDA contribution/(loss) from Omega-3 and Bioenergy platforms
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Key risks

A summary of the material risks that could impact the achievement of Nufarm’s business objectives is included below. The
group’s processes for managing risk are set out in section 6 of the group’s Corporate Governance statement which is available
in the corporate governance section of our website, www.nufarm.com/CorporateGovernance.

Nufarm'’s approach to risk and governance focuses on effective identification and management of risk to assist us in executing our

business strategies.

The risks below are set out in no particular order. There are interdependencies between them and so an increased exposure for one
risk may elevate the exposure of other risks. Nufarm may be impacted by other more general risks that Australian businesses with
global operations may face as well as emerging risks that are not listed below.

Strategic Risks

Strategic context

What this means for Nufarm (risk/uncertainty)

How we are managing this

Strategic growth (medium to long term)

Regulation and market access

The crop protection industry is highly
regulated with government controls and
standards imposed on all aspects of

the industry’s operations. Crop protection
products are subject to regulatory review and
approval in all markets in which they are sold,
with the requirements of regulatory authorities
varying from country to country. Europe, in
particular, is highly regulated and there is
increasing political influence on the regulatory
system. This is increasing the uncertainty in
predicting regulatory outcomes.

In relation to seed, omega-3 trait presence

in canola is also highly regulated in many
markets across the globe (e.g. China). Industry
resistance to omega-3 coexistence will
continue until full de-regulation.

Legal and community focus on the impact

of crop protection products continues,
particularly in the US which may give rise to
increased litigation risk in both environmental
and personal bodily injury class actions.

Nufarm continues to be a contributor in the
biofuel/sustainable aviation fuel sector. These
products and solutions are subject to licensing
and production conditions.

Demand for new/different products
and solutions and supporting
manufacturing capability

Regulatory policies can have an impact on the
availability and usage of crop protection and
seed technology products and solutions and,
in some cases, can result in the restriction

or removal of certain products and solutions
from the market, which may have a material
adverse effect on the financial performance of
Nufarm. Social/ activist pressure to strengthen
regulatory requirements as they relate to our
business may increase.

Over time, our synthetic crop protection
products may become less commercially
viable in certain markets. This may bring the
opportunity to increase our biological and
other sustainable solutions presence in those
markets. For example, solutions that improve
crop resilience and yield will be in demand.

This may require re-alignment and/or
expansion of our manufacturing and
processing footprint which will require
capital investment to ensure we have the
manufacturing and processing capability to
produce new products and solutions that are
pivotal to our growth.

The biofuel industry is experiencing volatility in
pricing and greenhouse gas premiums ahead
of markets transitioning to mandated use.

If the manufacturing footprint is not aligned
to portfolio, there is a risk that Nufarm's
assets will be under-utilised and/or not ready
to manufacture new product lines, thereby
impacting our financial performance.

Continually evolving our products and
solutions and customer strategy

All development of products and solutions is
aligned to Nufarm'’s strategic focus on key
geographies and crops.This is supported by
centralised systems and processes to approve
and monitor development activities and provide
ongoing support and technical advice to the
marketing and commercial functions.

Nufarm conducts regular assessments of
advancements in application technology and
development of products and solutions. This is
a key input to the development pipeline and
participation in potential partnerships with third
parties with access to alternative technologies.

Nufarm monitors regulatory developments across
its key regions of operations closely and
completes detailed regulatory risk scenario
analysis biannually. Nufarm considers this
analysis in the maintenance and ongoing
development of our portfolio.

Nufarm participates in several industry bodies
and task forces which provide input and analysis
to regulatory bodies on the use of our key
products and solutions. We are undertaking

a significant consultation process with the
industry to build and maintain support for
omega-3 coexistence.

Nufarm has an overarching stewardship process
which governs all life cycle stages from initial
development to post launch oversight.

Nufarm has engaged external advisors to assist
us in developing the model for greenhouse gas
premiums and potential market transitions.

Alignment of manufacturing capability to our
strategic plan

Assessment of the viability of our manufacturing
footprint is continuously reviewed and assessed
to ensure production capability is aligned to the
demands of our customers.

Capital plans are developed to support
replacement of ageing plant and preventative
maintenance programs have been established to
minimise production downtime.
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Operating and Financial Review continued

Strategic context

What this means for Nufarm (risk/uncertainty)

How we are managing this

Strategic growth (medium to long term)

Global economic & geo-
political uncertainty

The global economic environment continues
to be inflationary.

The crises in Ukraine and the Middle-East
have not materially impacted our financial
position to date, however, uncertainties remain
given these crises are ongoing, such as
volatility of energy prices and further supply
chain impacts, and potential interruptions to
our regional operations.

Our business could be impacted by country
specific changes associated with tariffs and
protectionist policies.

Capability to execute strategy

Inability to operationalise our strategy could
result in loss of market share and variability in
our earnings.

Capital - Nufarm’s manufacturing footprint
may require further capital investment to
ensure we have the manufacturing capability
to produce new products and solutions.

Supply chain - Our growth depends on
getting our products between Nufarm global
locations and to customers efficiently and
effectively. Freight and logistics availability and
supply generally may become increasingly
harder and costlier, which may negatively
impact our financial performance. Supply
chain partners may cease to exist or financial
pressure may drive others to take shortcuts
that impact their quality of service or integrity.

Workforce capability - Executing our strategy
will mean strengthening existing functions
and introducing new processes/ functions. If
we cannot retain or attract existing and new
skills, there is a risk that these processes and
functions will not operate at the standard that
will be required to execute our strategy.

Commodity price - The input commodities
associated with the production of our
finished goods are subject to market volatility.
This volatility can impact our profitability

and earnings.

Continually monitoring our
operational capability

Business impact assessments and modelling
are undertaken when Nufarm is subjected to
changing economic and geopolitical scenarios
that can materially impact our operations. These
models are used to support key business
decisions and courses of action.

The Finance team reviews Nufarm'’s capital
management principles against our longer-term
objectives and also Nufarm's capital structure.

The manufacturing capital expenditure plan
is reviewed annually as part of the
budgeting process.

Nufarm continually reviews our products and
solutions and deletes, re-engineers or develops
new offerings that align to our customer needs
and provide maximum economic return.

The Procurement team monitors the
diversification of supply to reduce key
dependencies. They also monitor and review
input commodity costs and exposures.

Suppliers operating in high-risk jurisdictions
are subject to independent third-party
risk assessments.

The people plan and people and performance
strategic priorities are set annually and monitored
throughout the year.

Succession planning processes ensure that key
roles/ competencies are identified and managed.

Innovation

Nufarm holds or has the right to use
intellectual property covering its products and
solutions, which intellectual property may be
lost or infringed.

Nufarm introduces innovative crop protection
and seed technology products and solutions
where there may be a risk of infringement of
third-party intellectual property rights.

Legal obligations, patent protection
and market transition

If Nufarm does not take adequate steps to
protect or enforce its intellectual property
rights it will lose the value of these rights.

Nufarm risks potential liability if it infringes
third party intellectual property rights, and may
need to withdraw products or solutions or
negotiate a licensing deal.

Discipline in selection of products
and solutions

The Innovation Committee assists the board
in the oversight of the company strategy,
policy and procedures with regard to the
development and adoption of innovation
solutions and technologies in crop protection
and seed technologies and management of
intellectual property.

Nufarm conducts evaluations of our current and
proposed products and solutions, which include
engaging with advisors throughout the pipeline to
assess and manage IP related risks.

PMO 365 maintains new project information,
tracks the approval progress, and provides
reporting on all new projects.

Nufarm aims to share responsibility with
development partners where feasible.

Climate Related Risks

Nufarm recognises seasonal weather variations, including extreme weather events that are potentially caused or made worse by
climate change, as presenting localised risks to our assets, sales plans and customers. Such variability can result in lower or higher
than anticipated revenue and excesses or shortages in planned inventory positions within the impacted region.

For the year ending 30 September 2026, Nufarm will be subject to climate reporting under the Australian Sustainability Reporting
Standards (ASRS), Climate-related Disclosures (AASB S2). We continue to assess the climate-related risks and opportunities in each
of our key regions under a short-term horizon of 2030 and long-term horizon of 2050. This year we completed the climate-related
risk reassessment for our Australian businesses. Further information will be published in our 2025 Climate Statement which will be

available in mid-December.

Our climate-related risk reassessment was informed by two scenarios of potential future climate outcomes, SSP1-1.9 Sustainability -
Taking the Green Road and SSP2-4.5 Middle of the road developed by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).
We are using these to evaluate the climate resilience of our business strategies against the identified climate-related risks

and opportunities.
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Operational Risks

What this means for Nufarm (risk/ uncertainty)

Operational continuity (what we do)

How we are managing this

Commodity price and market selling price volatility

Fluctuations in global commodity input prices and market selling
prices of our products present Nufarm with risks and opportunities that
can impact our financial performance.

Integrated business planning (IBP) enables Nufarm to proactively manage
supply, demand, and financial assumptions, reducing the impact of
commodity price and market selling fluctuations. By aligning production
with sales forecasts, continuously re-evaluating market assumptions,

and modeling scenarios, IBP provides the flexibility to adjust plans as
conditions change.

IBP helps Nufarm improve forecasting accuracy, optimises working
capital, and ensures dependable service to customers despite external
market volatility.

Weather volatility - seasonality

The timing of weather seasons in the geographies in which Nufarm
operates is uncertain and varies from year to year. Consequently, there
is a risk that unusually early or late seasons may have a negative
impact on demand for Nufarm products and solutions in a particular
year and therefore its financial performance.

Additionally, seasonality may result in credit risk where the cash flow of
our customers, and their ability to pay on time is impacted.

Nufarm's operations are global, providing geographic diversification to
climatic and seasonality risks and our portfolio is diverse, supporting a wide
range of agricultural applications.

At an operating level, Nufarm'’s business planning processes incorporate
forecasting and supply planning based on typical weather conditions.
These processes have been designed to allow for agility in the supply chain
to respond to business interruptions, geo-political/economic and weather-
related impacts.

There are detailed policies and procedures which govern our credit
management processes.

Additional controls related to working capital to support responding to
seasonality are discussed in the financial risks section of this report.

Weather volatility - physical damage

An increase in extreme weather events as a result of changing climatic
conditions could also result in operational disruptions, such as physical
damage to our manufacturing facilities or disruption to our supply
chain for key raw material inputs or delivery of finished goods to

our customers.

Significant disruption to our manufacturing facilities could materially
impact production and our financial performance.

Our operational plants are located in regions that have lower susceptibility
to extreme weather events.

Nufarm maintains a business continuity framework and business continuity
plans for our production operations.

Nufarm maintains a comprehensive insurance program which is supported
by continuity strategies across our global manufacturing footprint and
key suppliers.

Arrangements have been established with key toll manufacturers in
multiple global locations to provide additional production capacity and
support our internal manufacturing capability should any disruption occur.

Third party supply interruptions

Nufarm relies on supply of various active ingredients, intermediates
and other inputs from a number of third-party suppliers, including
suppliers based in China. The reliability of supply and the cost of these
inputs can be impacted by a range of factors including, but not limited
to, manufacturing closures or temporary disruptions, compliance with
more stringent environmental and/or safety standards, and other
changes in government policy or regulation.

Significant interruptions can impact our ability to fulfil orders which may
ultimately increase our costs.

Nufarm's procurement and integrated business planning processes include
the ongoing assessment of supply availability as an input to manufacturing
and safety stock levels.

Where possible, we have entered into specific supply arrangements to
assist with availability and pricing of key active ingredients.

Alternate supply arrangements have been established, where permitted
under regulatory requirements.

Operational sustainability & compliance (how we do it)

How we are managing this

Cyber-attack/unauthorised access

Nufarm's operations are supported by several key IT systems and
applications. Complete or partial failure of the IT systems, applications
or data centre infrastructure due to unauthorised access, cyberattacks
or natural disasters could have a significant impact on Nufarm's ability
to maintain operations and service customers. This could adversely
impact Nufarm's financial position and/or reputation.

Nufarm has continued to invest in IT systems, infrastructure and capability
to support the efficient operation of the business.

Disaster recovery strategies exist for key IT systems, applications and
data centres.

Cyber threats are assessed on an ongoing basis to the best of our
knowledge based on the continually evolving nature of these threats.
Security controls are updated to mitigate these risks, supported by
specialist security software and security vendors.

There is a Nufarm staff cyber security awareness program that educates
staff on cyber safe behaviours. Targeted cyber awareness training is
delivered through simulated phishing exercises.

We also engage external providers to undertake simulated periodic system
penetration testing.
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Operating and Financial Review continued

What this means for Nufarm (risk/ uncertainty)

Operational sustainability & compliance (how we do it)

How we are managing this

Loss of key personnel

The loss of key personnel or the inability to recruit and retain or
motivate high calibre staff could have a material adverse effect

on Nufarm. Nufarm operates globally and has facilities in multiple
jurisdictions. Management of a complex business that operates
globally has a higher employee risk/complexity than a business which
operates in one jurisdiction. The addition of new employees and the
departure of existing employees, particularly in key positions, can be
disruptive and could have an adverse effect on Nufarm and may
impact Nufarm's financial performance and future prospects.

Critical roles across the organisation have been identified and appropriate
succession and retention strategies developed.

There is an in-house talent acquisition resource dedicated to serving
Nufarm's key hiring needs.

Guidelines for remuneration and reward have been developed to ensure
Nufarm can attract and retain talent.

Safety incident

Operation of Nufarm'’s manufacturing sites across the globe require
major hazard facility licences. Operating within these environments
can lead to personal injury, loss of life or damage to property.
Regulatory bodies undertake regular audits of Nufarm's sites to ensure
that it is appropriate to renew the licences. These audits can result in
suspension of operations, fines or penalties or remediation expenses.

A robust and comprehensive Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)
program is in place which provides clear guidance on culture, behaviours,
process, metrics and reporting.

This program includes the ongoing audit and assessment of HSE risks
and practices.

A program of regular reporting at a local, regional and global level is in
place. This includes safety performance reporting at every board meeting,
process safety management reporting at every Audit and Risk Committee,
and occupational health and safety reporting at every People Safety and
Remuneration Committee.

To facilitate greater transparency and improved data analysis associated
with our safety culture, we are implementing the Enablon system as a
centralised and global data repository.

Well-being seminars, encouragement of leave-taking and a range of other
support measures (for example, the Employee Assistance Program) are in
place and continue to be advocated throughout the organisation.

Environmental damage

Nufarm operates in a regulatory environment that establishes high
standards in terms of environmental compliance. Any material

failure by Nufarm to adequately control hazardous substances

and manufacturing operations, including the discharge of waste
material, or to meet its various statutory and regulatory environmental
responsibilities, could result in significant liabilities as well as ongoing
costs relating to operational inefficiencies which may arise. This
extends to historical environmental issues that may be present in sites
that we have acquired.

Environmental risk assessments have been completed across all our key
operational sites and control measures implemented.

ISO 14001 certification for all 10 of our crop protection manufacturing sites
(excluding Cairo) has now been achieved.

Local management engage with local environmental authorities on key
risks and compliance.

Product contamination/quality

Nufarm manufactures and supplies a range of crop protection
products and seed solutions which must be manufactured, formulated
and packaged to exact standards, with strict quality controls. The
performance of those products would be negatively impacted if those
quality standards are not met and this could, in turn, have an adverse
impact on the reputation and success of Nufarm.

We produce GM and non-GM seed. Unapproved GM products are
highly regulated in many markets across the globe. Most markets have
regulations determining accepted levels of unapproved trait presence,
and other markets have no tolerance. Unintended trait presence and
non-compliance with regulations could lead to significant liabilities
owed to third parties, and impact our brand, reputation and growth.

Quality specification guidelines and procedures are defined across the
manufacturing process. This includes a detailed contamination prevention
program with associated procedures and are aligned to the ‘Contamination
Prevention in the Manufacture of Crop Protection Products Guidelines and
Best Practices’ issued by CropLife International.

Manufacturing processes are subject to rigorous testing to ensure quality
standards are met and an ongoing review program is in place with the aim
of ensuring operations adhere to the quality standards.

In relation to controlling GM traits, trait testing is undertaken from breeding
handover through different stages in production, before commercial
product is released to be shipped to customers, and following relevant
regulations in each targeted market. We are actively working to promote
industry coordination and transparency of hybrid seed production zones.

Quality metrics have been developed and are reported on to the Executive
Risk and Compliance Committee and the Audit and Risk Committee.
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What this means for Nufarm (risk/ uncertainty)

Operational sustainability & compliance (how we do it)

How we are managing this

Compliance breach

Nufarm'’s global footprint requires compliance with government
legislation and regulations across all the countries within which we
are established to maintain our licenses to operate. New legislation
or changes to requirements could have an adverse impact on our
operations, financial position or relationship with key customers and
suppliers. This includes requirements relating to occupational health
and safety, environment, sustainability and governance including
climate change, product registration, antitrust, sanctions and anti-
bribery, data privacy, taxation and review of contractual obligations
with key suppliers and customers. Geopolitical risks such as changes
to tariffs and sovereign risk impacting the political stability of certain
countries we operate in could impact the price and volume of
agricultural products and solutions sold in these regions.

Policies and procedures have been developed supporting legislative and
regulatory compliance. Nufarm’s Code of Conduct provides overarching
guidance on behaviours and is supported by procedures relating to key
compliance obligations.

Nufarm also maintains a dedicated internal legal team across its key
regional operations, which is supported externally as required, to provide
input on key legislative and regulatory compliance.

Nufarm's internal tax department has developed specific guidance on the
group's tax strategy and policies to ensure compliance and alignment with
tax authorities on the treatment of transactions.

Nufarm has a global speakup/ whistleblower program that encourages
employees to report any unethical, illegal or fraudulent behaviour and
allows for anonymous online and phone reporting.

Business impact assessments and modelling are undertaken when Nufarm
is subjected to changing geopolitical scenarios that can materially impact
our operations.

Financial exposures (how we fund what we do)

How we are managing this

Debt financing

Nufarm has several bilateral financing facilities to fund its working
capital requirements. Continued access to these facilities is dependent
upon the successful renewal of these facilities as and when they fall
due. Nufarm'’s ability to refinance its debt obligations, and the terms

on which any such refinancing can be obtained, is uncertain. If Nufarm
is unable to refinance its debt obligations, or to do so on reasonable
terms, it may have an adverse effect on the financial position and
performance of Nufarm.

Trade financing

The liquidity of the group is influenced by the terms suppliers extend
in respect of purchases of goods and services. The determination

of terms provided by suppliers is influenced by a variety of

factors including supplier’s liquidity. Suppliers may engage financial
institutions to facilitate the receipt of payments for goods and services
from the group, which are often referred to as supplier financing
arrangements. In the event suppliers or financial institutions cease
such arrangements the liquidity of the group's suppliers may be
affected. If suppliers subsequently seek to reduce terms on the group’s
purchases of goods and services in the future, the group’s liquidity will
be affected.

A clearly defined funding strategy is in place which includes a diversified
funding structure with a range of debt maturity profiles.

Board and executive oversight is in place to monitor the reporting of
financial undertakings as required under Group debt facilities together with
the ongoing compliance with certain financial covenants and undertakings
where applicable.

Further details on strategies to manage liquidity, credit and market risk are
included in Note 27 of the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign exchange exposure

Global companies such as Nufarm purchase inputs and determine
selling prices in a range of foreign currencies and are therefore
exposed to fluctuations in exchange rates. Further, a substantial
portion of Nufarm's revenues, costs, assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies other than Australian dollars. As a result,
exchange rate movements affecting these currencies may impact the
financial performance and future prospects of the business of Nufarm.

Nufarm has implemented a range of financial risk management policies
and procedures to assist with the management of foreign exchange
exposures. The group treasury function manages economic risks arising
from foreign exchange movements in accordance with these policies.
Where possible, currency and interest rate risk is managed through
hedging strategies (refer note 27 of the consolidated financial statements).

Working Capital Management

Effective management of working capital is a key operational priority
across the group and is directly correlated with the group’s liquidity.
Movements in working capital are linked to factors such as changing
customer demand as a result of seasonality, climatic conditions,
changes in customer credit profiles and supply constraints; and
changing supply dynamics as a result of supply chain disruptions,
supplier manufacturing capacity, climatic conditions, changes in
supplier credit profiles and customer demand. If Nufarm is unable to
appropriately manage these factors across the group, it may have an
adverse effect on the financial position and performance of Nufarm.

Policies and procedures have been developed to support the management
of customer credit, inventory and procurement.

Nufarm's procurement and integrated business planning processes
provide a focus on working capital management both regionally and
globally. This is supported by an investment in systems and data analytics
to provide timely data on key working capital drivers.

Performance metrics supporting working capital management have been
defined at a global and regional level and included in individual objectives
and performance related remuneration for senior management.
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Board of directors and key management personnel

Board

Additional information about directors' committee memberships and other roles can be found in the directors' report on pages
38-43 of this report.

Current directors

John Gillam BCom, MAICD, FAIM

Independent non-executive chair
John Gillam joined the board on 31 July 2020 and was appointed chair on 24 September 2020.

John has extensive commercial and leadership experience from a 20-year career with Wesfarmers where he
held various senior leadership roles including chief executive officer of the Bunnings Group, Managing Director of
CSBP and chair of Officeworks. John is based in Australia.

Greg Hunt Harvard AMP, Grad Dip. Mgmt, AGSM, AICD

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, non-independent executive director

Greg Hunt joined the board on 5 May 2015. Greg joined Nufarm in 2012 and was group executive commercial
operations prior to being appointed acting CEO in February 2015. Greg Hunt plans to step down from the board
on 1January 2026.

Greg has considerable executive and agribusiness experience. Greg had a successful career at Elders before
being appointed managing director of Elders Australia Limited, a position he held between 2001-2007. After
leaving Elders, Greg worked with various private equity firms focussed on the agriculture sector and has acted as
a corporate advisor to Australian and international organisations in agribusiness related matters. Greg is based

in Australia.

Alexandra Gartmann BSc (Resource & Environmental Management) (Hons)

Independent non-executive director
Alexandra Gartmann joined the board on 23 September 2022.

Alexandra brings over 25 years of deep industry experience in rural, agriculture and community focused
organisations and is the former CEO of the Rural Bank, a division of the Bendigo & Adelaide Bank. Her executive
career includes roles such as Bendigo & Adelaide Bank Executive Marketing, Partnerships & Corporate Affairs
and CEO of Rural Bank and as CEO of the Foundation for Rural & Regional Renewal and The Birchip Cropping
Group. Alexandra serves on boards across agriculture, education and the environment. Alexandra is based

in Australia.

Dr David Jones BA (Hons) Science, PhD

Independent non-executive director
David Jones joined the board on 23 June 2021.

David has held chair and director roles in large global agricultural business. His experience includes as Head of

Business Development at Syngenta and former Chairman of Zeneca China, Arysta Life Science, and Plant Impact.
David has broad leadership experience in operations, strategy, mergers and acquisitions and intellectual property
in multiple jurisdictions including Asia, Latin America, Europe and the United States. David is based in Switzerland.

Marie McDonald LLB (Hons), BSc (Hons)

Independent non-executive director
Marie McDonald joined the board on 22 March 2017.

Marie is widely recognised as one of Australia’s leading corporate and commercial lawyers having been a Senior
Partner at Ashurst until 2014 where she specialised in mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance and
commercial law.

Marie was chair of the Corporations Committee of the Business Law Section of the Law Council of Australia from
2012 to 2013, having previously been the deputy chair, and was a member of the Australian Takeovers Panel from
2001 to 2010. Marie is currently a member of the AICD Law Committee. Marie is based in Australia.

Prof. Adrian Percy BSc, MSc, PhD

Independent non-executive director
Adrian Percy joined the board on 1July 2023.

Adrian is currently the inaugural executive director of the NC Plant Sciences Initiative at North Carolina State
University. He has more than 30 years of experience in the agricultural sector, with previous roles as chief
technology officer of UPL Ltd and head of research and development for the Crop Science Division of Bayer. In
the latter role, he was a member of their executive committee with responsibility for internal and open innovation
activities in the areas of crop protection chemistry and biologicals, as well as seeds and traits. During his 25-year
tenure at Bayer, he also held numerous positions in agricultural research and development.

Adrian is a venture partner at DYDX Capital LLC, an early stage venture capital investor. Adrian is based in the
United States.
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Lynne Saint BCom, GradDip Ed Studies, FCPA, FAICD

Independent non-executive director
Lynne Saint joined the board on 18 December 2020.

Lynne has broad financial and commercial experience from a global career including more than 19 years with
Bechtel Group where she served as chief audit executive and chief financial officer of the Mining and Metals
Global Business Unit. Her expertise encompasses strong financial skills, corporate governance, enterprise risk,
supply chain risk and project management. Lynne is based in Australia.

Federico Tripodi BAgronomic Engineering, MBA

Independent non-executive director
Federico Tripodi joined the board on 19 June 2023.

Federico has close to three decades of involvement in the agri-food sector with his experience spanning
general management, research and development, corporate strategy and the commercialisation of novel plant
biotechnologies targeted for consumers and farmers.

Federico is the CEO and founder of Blacktop Holdings, a boutique venture lab that offers strategic and operating
partnership services to rapidly growing Ag Tech, Food and Agribusiness companies, their investors and research
institutions. Federico is the CEO and co-founder of Sipli, a Juice-based beverage company that delivers 100%
fruit juices with naturally reduced sugar content.

From 2016 to 2018, Federico served as the CEO of Calyxt Inc. (NASDAQ:CLXT), a company that develops healthier
food ingredients by applying a new breeding technology. Prior to Calyxt, Federico worked at Monsanto Company
for nearly two decades where his primary focus was developing health, sustainability and renewable energy crop
products in the United States and Latin America. Federico is based in the United States.

Rico Christensen MSc. in Economics, Business Administration & International Marketing

Group Executive, Portfolio Solutions, non-independent executive director
Rico Christensen joined the board on 1 December 2025 and will suceed Greg Hunt as Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer from 1January 2026.

Rico brings 30 years of global leadership experience in the agriculture chemicals sector and a strong track record
of delivering improvement performance through a focus on operational excellence, capital discipline and portfolio
development. He has extensive experience across strategy, operations, sales and marketing, supply chain, P&L,
cash flow management and capital allocation.

Prior to joining Nufarm in 2021, Mr Christensen held senior executive roles at leading agricultural

companies, including:

« Chief Marketing Officer, UPL Limited - responsible for global portfolio strategy and project evaluation (2019
to 2020)

« President, North America & ANZ, Arysta LifeScience - led regional operations prior to its acquisition by UPL
(2015 -2019)

« President and CEO, North America, Cheminova - overseeing strategic development and operational
leadership for nearly two decades (2004 - 2015)

Rico is based in the United States and plans to relocate to Australia in late 2026/early 2027.

Company secretary

Kate Hall LLB (Hons), BSc and LLM (IP)
Company Secretary

Kate Hall was appointed company secretary on 20 April 2022, Kate has more than 20 years'’ Australian and
international experience, including as a general counsel and senior executive leading legal, intellectual property,
governance, risk and compliance functions.
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Board of directors and key management personnel continued

Key management personnel

Greg Hunt Harvard AMP, Grad Dip. Mgmt, AGSM, AICD

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (see profile in Board section)

Brendan Ryan BBA (Finance and Economics), FCA
Chief Financial Officer

Brendan joined Nufarm in 2025 as Chief Financial Officer, bringing with him more than 20 years’ experience in
leadership positions in global agricultural and other industries including Fonterra, Bonlac Foods, Pfizer and BDO.

David Allen MBA
Group Executive, Supply Chain Operations

Dave joined Nufarm in 2022 with a highly successful track record within global organisations of delivering
strategic change, business transformation and capability development. Dave's areas of expertise include
manufacturing, operations, procurement, sales and operations planning, logistics and IT.

As announced by the Company on 19 November 2025, Rico Christensen will succeed Greg Hunt as CEO from 1 January 2026.
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Corporate governance statement

1Introduction

Nufarm is committed to ensuring that its policies and practices
reflect a high standard of corporate governance. The board
considers that Nufarm's governance framework and adherence
to that framework are fundamental in demonstrating that the
directors are accountable to shareholders, are appropriately
overseeing the management of risk, and promoting a culture

of ethical, lawful and responsible behaviour within Nufarm.

This corporate governance statement outlines the governance
framework of Nufarm Limited ABN 37 091323 312 and its
controlled entities (Nufarm or company) for the year ended
30 September 2025.

Key governance policies are reviewed regularly to ensure they
continue to reflect a high standard of corporate governance
and comply with the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and
Recommendations 4th Edition (ASX Principles). Nufarm, as an
ASX listed entity, is required to comply with the Corporations
Act 2001 (Cth), the ASX Listing Rules and other Australian and
international laws and is required to report on the extent to
which it has complied with the ASX Principles.

Nufarm'’s key governance documents, including its constitution,
board and board committee charters and key policies are
available on the company's website at https:/nufarm.com/
investor-centre/corporate-governance/.

This statement is current as at 12 December 2025 and has
been approved by the board.

2 Board of directors

2.1 Board role and responsibilities

The constitution provides that the business and affairs of
Nufarm are to be managed by or under the direction of

the board. Ultimate responsibility for governance and strategy
rests with the board. The role of the board is to represent
shareholders, and to demonstrate leadership and approve
the strategic direction of Nufarm. The board is accountable

to Nufarm's shareholders for the company's performance
and governance.

The board charter sets out the board's key responsibilities,
the matters the board has reserved for its own consideration
and decision-making and the authority it has delegated to the
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO).

A copy of the board charter which sets out the role and
responsibilities of the board in detail can be found in the
corporate governance section of Nufarm’'s website.

Delegation to management

The board has delegated to the CEO responsibility for

the day-to-day management of the company's affairs and
implementation of its strategic objectives, annual budgets and
policy initiatives. The CEO is accountable to the board for all
authority delegated to management and for the company'’s
performance. The CEO is required to operate in accordance
with board approved policies, and delegations of authority and
management must supply the board with information in a form,
time-frame and quality that will enable the board to discharge
its duties effectively. The CEQ is required to report to the board
in a spirit of openness and trust and is required to ensure that all
decisions are made lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

2.2 Board meetings and attendance

The board meets as often as required. During the reporting
period, the board met 12 times. Meetings are held face to face,
virtually or as hybrid meetings.

In addition to the company secretary, a standing invitation for

all board meetings is issued to the CFO. Other members of
management attend meetings by invitation. During regularly
scheduled meetings, the board regularly holds a closed session
(attended by non-executive directors only).

Details of attendance at board and standing board committee
meetings during FY25 can be found in the directors' report on
pages 38-43 of this report.

2.3 Board composition

At the date of this statement the board has seven non-
executive directors, the CEO and the Group Executive,

Portfolio Solutions. Details about the directors, including

their qualifications, experience, date of appointment and
independent status are set out in the directors' report on pages
38-43 of this report and for Rico Christensen is set out in the
board of directors and key management personnel section on
pages 24-26 of this report. The constitution provides that the
company is not to have more than 11 or less than three directors.

In assessing the composition of the board, regard is given to the
following principles:

« the role of the chair and the CEO should not be filled by the
same person

« the chair must be an independent non-executive director

« the CEO must be a full-time employee of the company

« the majority of the board must be independent non-
executive directors

« the board should represent a broad range of qualifications,
experience, expertise and diversity.

2.4 Directors’ skills, experience and attributes

The key attributes that directors must possess are set out in the
board charter and include:

« honesty, integrity and a proven track record of creating value
for shareholders

« an ability to apply strategic thought

« apreparedness to debate issues openly and constructively
and to question, challenge and critique

« awillingness to understand and commit to the governance
framework of the company

« an ability to devote sufficient time to properly carry out the
role and responsibilities of the board.
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Corporate governance statement continued

Skills matrix

The board skills matrix as at 30 September 2025 and the assessment of the directors in office at that date is included in the

following table.

No of Directors

Skills/Experience with skill
Manufacturing & Integrated Supply Chain Management in High Risk Environment 4
Relevant experience in international manufacturing and/or integrated supply chain management including demonstrated ability to

improve production systems

Customer relations 5
Relevant international experience in customer service delivery and/or marketing of products, including brand marketing, e-

commerce and use of digital technology

Innovation and technology 6
Experience in the research, development, selection, implementation and leveraging of innovations and technologies

Agricultural experience 5
Experience in crop protection, seed technologies or other agricultural industries obtained through a large international company

Finance 6
Board audit experience or a senior executive or equivalent experience in financial accounting and reporting, corporate finance and

internal financial controls/audit

Risk 7
Relevant experience and understanding of risk management frameworks and controls, and the ability to oversee mitigation

strategies and identify emerging risks

Safety p
Experience in health and safety governance and reporting

Sustainability 5
Experience in sustainability governance and reporting, and climate change and emissions oversight

Mergers, acquisitions, JVs, partnerships, alliances, divestments and integrations 6
Relevant experience in merger and acquisition transactions (including JVs, etc.) raising complex financial, regulatory and

operational issues

Strategy and transformation 6
Experience in developing and executing successful strategies and/or transformation in a complex environment to deliver a

sustained and resilient business

Corporate governance and compliance 7
Experience serving on boards in different industries, including publicly listed. Awareness of leading practice in corporate

governance and compliance with a demonstrated commitment to achieving those standards

Regulatory, government and public policy 7
Relevant experience identifying and managing legal, regulatory, public policy and corporate affairs issues

People, culture and remuneration 8

Relevant experience overseeing or implementing a company'’s culture and people management framework, including succession
planning, inclusion and diversity and setting and applying remuneration policy and frameworks linked to strategy

2.5 Chair

The chair of the board is John Gillam, an independent
non-executive director.

The chair is responsible for the leadership of the board and
for encouraging a culture of openness and debate amongst
the directors to foster a high performing and collegiate board.
The chair also serves as the primary link between the board
and management.

2.6 Board succession planning

The board manages succession planning for non-executive
directors with the assistance of the nomination committee and
for the CEO with the assistance of the people, safety and
remuneration committee.

The board has a non-executive tenure policy that provides

for non-executive directors to retire after nine years (or 12

years in the case of a chair who has served in the role of

chair for less than six years) from the first date of election of
shareholders. The board may exercise discretion in exceptional
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circumstances to extend the maximum term where it considers
such an extension is in the best interests of the company.

All non-executive directors are required to stand for re-election
every three years. The nomination committee will undertake

a review of the directors retiring by rotation and make a
recommendation to the board on whether their re-election is to
be supported. The company provides all material information in
its possession concerning the director standing for re-election
in the notice of meeting and accompanying explanatory notes.

2.7 Directors' independence

The board is committed to ensuring the majority of non-
executive directors are independent. The board considers
directors to be independent where they are independent of
management and free from any interest, position, association
or relationship that might influence or might reasonably be
perceived to interfere with the exercise of their unfettered and
independent judgement.

During FY25 all non-executive directors were considered to
be independent.
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2.8 Conflict of interest

The company has a conflict of interest policy to ensure that
directors disclose any conflicts of interest and that any conflicts
are appropriately addressed. In the event a director does have
an actual or potential conflict, the director does not receive

the relevant board or committee papers and must absent
themselves from the room when the board or committee
discusses and votes on matters relating to the conflict. The
director cannot access the minutes of the board or committee
meeting in relation to the conflict.

2.9 Director appointment, induction training and continuing
education

When considering new appointments to the board, the
nomination committee oversees the preparation of a role
description which includes the key attributes identified in

the board charter and relevant skills, taking into account

the principles set out in the directors' skills, experience and
attributes paragraph above, and any gaps identified in the board
skills matrix. This role description is provided to an external
search firm who assists in undertaking the search.

When suitable candidates are identified, the homination
committee will interview a shortlist of candidates before making
a recommendation to the board. All directors will interview the
candidate prior to the board considering formal appointment.

All non-executive directors are required to sign a letter of
appointment which sets out the terms and conditions of their
appointment including:

« duties and responsibilities of a director

« participation in induction training and continuing education

« remuneration

« expectation around time commitments for the board and
relevant committee meetings

« the requirement to disclose directors’ interests on an
ongoing basis

« access to professional advice

« indemnity, access and insurance arrangements.

Prior to their appointment, all directors are subject to extensive
background and screening checks. All new senior executive
appointments are also subject to extensive background and
screening checks.

With the exception of the CEQ, all directors appointed by the
board to a casual vacancy are required to stand for shareholder
election at the next AGM. The company provides all material
information in its possession concerning the director standing
for re-election in the notice of meeting and accompanying
explanatory notes.

Induction training is provided to all new directors. This includes
discussions with the CEO, CFO, company secretary and other
senior executives and the option to visit the company's key
sites globally. Induction materials include information on the
company’s strategy and financial performance, full information
on the board including all board and committee charters,
recent board and committee minutes, information on the

risk management framework and the risk appetite statement
approved by the board,and all board policies including the code
of conduct and the obligations of directors.

All directors are expected to undertake ongoing professional
development to develop and maintain the skills and knowledge
required to discharge their responsibilities. Directors are
provided with information papers and presentations on
developments in the law, industry or related matters that may
have a material impact on the company.

2.10 Shareholding requirements for non-executive directors

The company has a minimum shareholding policy which
applies to all non-executive directors except for any nominee
directors appointed to the board. The policy requires that
non-executive directors are required to accumulate and then
hold a minimum holding of Nufarm securities equivalent to

100 per cent of their total pre-tax annual base fee including
superannuation. This minimum holding is to be achieved within
the first five full financial years following appointment or for
those non-executive directors who were a member of the board
at the date the policy was first adopted (May 2021), within the
first five full financial years of adoption. Further details are set
out in the remuneration report on pages 44-65 of this report.

2.11 Board performance evaluation

The board is committed to regularly reviewing its own
performance and effectiveness as well of those of the
committees and individual directors. The last review, which was
externally facilitated, was in FY23. The board plans to conduct
its next review in FY26.

An assessment of director performance is undertaken by the
nomination committee with feedback sought from all directors
prior to the board considering recommmending a director for re-
election to shareholders at an AGM.

2.12 Independent professional advice

The board and its committees may access independent
experts and professional counsel for advice where appropriate
and may invite any person from time to time to attend meetings.

2.13 Company secretary

The details of the company secretary, including their
qualifications, are set out on page 25 of this report. The
appointment and removal of the company secretary is a
matter for the board. The company secretary is accountable
to the board for the effectiveness of the implementation

of the corporate governance processes and adherence

to the board's principles and procedures. The company
secretary is responsible for coordinating all board and board
committee business, including agendas, papers, minutes,
communication and filings. All directors have direct access to
the company secretary.
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Corporate governance statement continued

3 Committees

To assist the board to carry out its responsibilities, the board has
the following committees in place:

« audit and risk committee

« people, safety and remuneration committee
« sustainability and environment committee

« innovation committee

« nomination committee.

Each committee has a charter which sets out the membership
structure, roles and responsibilities and meeting procedures
that can be found in the corporate governance section of
Nufarm’s website.

Generally, these committees review matters on behalf of the
board and, as determined by the relevant charter:

« refer matters to the board for decision, with a
recommendation from the committee, or

« determine matters (where the committee acts with
delegated authority), which the committee then reports to
the board.

The company secretary provides secretarial support for
each committee.

Membership of each committee is outlined in the relevant
section below. All board members are invited to attend all
committee meetings with the consent of the committee chair.

Directors’ attendance at board and committee meetings is set
out in the directors' report on pages 38-43 of this report.

3.1 Audit and risk committee

The role of the audit and risk committee is to assist the board in
fulfilling its responsibilities in respect of the company'’s financial
statements and corporate reporting, the effectiveness of
internal and external audit processes, internal control systems,
treasury and taxation practices, reviewing the effectiveness of
risk governance and considering any material financial and
non-financial risk areas not under the remit of other committees
(including process safety management, human rights and
modern slavery), oversight of insurances, and oversight of
compliance with relevant legal, regulatory and best practice
requirements that are within the responsibility of the committee.

The audit and risk committee was convened effective 1 July
2023. The committee charter was last updated in September
2023 and sets out the roles and responsibilities of the
committee in detail. It can be found in the corporate
governance section of Nufarm's website.

Membership and meetings

The audit and risk committee consists of:

« aminimum of three members of the board, all of whom are
non-executive directors

« amajority of independent directors (as defined in the
board charter)

« anindependent chair, who is not chair of the board.

The members of the audit and risk committee during the
reporting period were:
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Name Membership status
Lynne Saint Member and chair for the entire period
Marie McDonald Member for the entire period

Alexandra Gartmann Member for the entire period

John Gillam Member for the entire period

At least one member of the committee must have formal
accounting qualifications with recent and relevant experience.
The committee as a whole is to have sufficient understanding
of the industry in which Nufarm operates. The board is

satisfied that the current composition of the committee satisfies
this requirement.

The external auditors, CEO, CFO and Head of Risk, Assurance
and Compliance have a standing invitation to attend meetings
of the audit and risk committee.

External audit

The audit and risk committee reviews the external auditor's
scope of work, including the external audit plan, to ensure it

is appropriate, having regard to the company’s key risks. The
external auditor reports to the committee at each meeting and
is given an opportunity to raise issues with the committee in
the absence of management. The committee also reviews the
performance and independence of the external auditor on an
annual basis. KPMG is the external auditor for FY25.

The committee has a policy on the provision of non-audit
related services by the external auditor with a view to ensuring
their independence is maintained. This policy was reviewed and
updated in March 2024. A copy of the policy on the provision of
non-audit related services by the external auditor can be found
in the corporate governance section of Nufarm’'s website.

The external auditor attends the company’'s AGM and is
available to answer questions from investors relevant to
the audit.

3.2 People, safety and remuneration committee

The role of the people, safety and remuneration committee

is to assist the board to perform its functions in relation to
remuneration policies and practices for directors, the CEO

and KMP. It also assists in the development, retention and
termination of the CEO and KMP, succession planning for the
CEO and senior executives, equity based remuneration plans
for employees, management of inclusion and diversity including
review of the policy, and management of occupational health
and safety (OHS).

The people, safety and remuneration committee was convened
effective 1July 2023. The committee charter was last updated
in June 2023 and sets out the roles and responsibilities of

the committee in detail. It can be found in the corporate
governance section of Nufarm's website.

Further details on the company’s remuneration framework, the
policies and practices regarding the remuneration of directors,
as well as the contractual arrangements, remuneration and
performance evaluation of other members of KMP, are reflected
in the remuneration report on pages 44-65 of this report.

The company's progress against its inclusion and diversity
objectives are detailed in the inclusion and diversity section on
pages 32-33 of this report.
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Membership and meetings

The people, safety and remuneration committee consists of
a minimum of three members of the board, all of whom are
independent non-executive directors.

The members of the committee during the reporting
period were:

Name Membership status

Marie McDonald Member and chair for the entire period

John Gillam Member for the entire period
David Jones Member for the entire period
Federico Tripodi Member for the entire period

The CEO, CFO and Group Executive - People and Performance
have a standing invitation to attend meetings of the people,
safety and remuneration committee.

3.3 Sustainability and environment committee

The role of the sustainability and environment committee is

to assist the board in sustainability and environment related
performance, risks and reporting, including compliance with
related laws, regulation and policies, climate change risks, and
the annual sustainability and environmental reporting program.
The sustainability and environment committee charter was
created in June 2023 and sets out the roles and responsibilities
of the committee in detail. It can be found in the corporate
governance section of Nufarm's website.

Membership and meetings

The sustainability and environment committee consists of:

« aminimum of three members of the board, all of whom are
non-executive directors

« amajority of independent directors

« anindependent director as chair.

The members of the sustainability and environment committee
during the reporting period were:

Name Membership status

Alexandra Gartmann Member and chair for the entire period

Lynne Saint Member for the entire period

Adrian Percy Member for the entire period

The CEO, CFO, Group Executive - Supply Chain Operations
and Group Executive - Growth and Sustainability have a
standing invitation to attend meetings of the sustainability and
environment committee.

3.4 Innovation committee

The role of the innovation committee is to assist the board

in the oversight of the company’s strategy, policies and
procedures with regard to the development and adoption of
innovative solutions and technologies in crop protection and
seed technologies. The innovation committee charter was last
reviewed in September 2025 and sets out the roles and
responsibilities of the committee in detail. It can be found in
the corporate governance section of Nufarm's website.

Membership and meetings

The committee consists of:
« aminimum of three members of the board, a majority of

whom are independent non-executive directors
« anindependent director as chair.

The members of the committee during the reporting
period were:

Name Membership status

David Jones Member and chair for the entire period

Adrian Percy Member for the entire period

Federico Tripodi Member for the entire period

The CEOQ, CFO, Group Executive - Portfolio Solutions and Group
Executive - Seed Technologies have a standing invitation to
attend meetings of the innovation committee.

3.5 Nomination committee

The role of the nomination committee is to assist the board
to oversee the composition, performance and succession
planning of the board, as well as the induction and ongoing
training for directors.

The nomination committee has a charter, last reviewed in
July 2021, which sets out the roles and responsibilities of the
committee in more detail and can be found in the corporate
governance section of Nufarm’s website.

Membership and meetings

The nomination committee consists of:

« all non-executive directors
« independent director as chair.
Where the board chair is the committee chair, he or she will not

chair the committee when it is dealing with the appointment of
a successor to the chair.

The members of the nomination committee during the
reporting period were:

Name Membership status

John Gillam Member and chair for the entire period

Alexandra Gartmann Member for the entire period

David Jones Member for the entire period

Marie McDonald Member for the entire period

Adrian Percy Member for the entire period

Federico Tripodi Member for the entire period

Lynne Saint Member for the entire period
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Corporate governance statement continued

4 Inclusion and diversity

4.1 Inclusion and diversity policy

Nufarm’s inclusion and diversity policy contributes to the sustainable growth of the company by positively building Nufarm's talent
and developing an inclusive culture in which employees can thrive. Nufarm is committed to inclusion at all levels of the organisation,
regardless of a person’s gender, marital or family status, sexual orientation, gender identity, age, abilities, ethnicity, religious beliefs,
cultural background, socioeconomic background, perspective or experience.

The board is responsible for the review and oversight of Nufarm'’s inclusion and diversity policy. The policy was reviewed and updated
by the board in September 2025. The policy requires the board and executive to set measurable inclusion and diversity objectives for
the board, the senior management team and the company, and then report against these objectives and Nufarm'’s progress towards

them annually.

4.2 Gender diversity objectives and progress in FY25

We have renewed our focus for the future. The 2025 to 2030 inclusion and diversity roadmap was informed by a comprehensive
global inclusion and diversity work practice diagnostic, deep data analysis and consultation with the business.

During FY25, Nufarm continued to make progress on gender diversity and other key diversity targets. Nufarm'’s FY25 gender diversity
objectives and its progress towards achieving them are set out in this section. Further information about Nufarm's inclusion and
diversity efforts can be found in Nufarm’'s 2025 ESG impact statement.

Nufarm's multiyear and FY25 measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity

Multiyear measurable objectives

FY25 measurable objectives

FY25 progress against objectives

The board and senior leadership team
(meaning the CEO, CEO-1and CEO-2) to
have not less than 40 per cent of either
gender represented by FY30.

Progress the senior leadership team towards
having not less than 40 per cent of each
gender, with clear accountability established.

In FY25, the percentage of female non-
executive directors on the board remained at
43%, unchanged from FY24.

The percentage of women in senior
leadership positions has decreased from
33% in FY24 to 31% in FY25.

During FY25, Nufarm undertook
transformation activities, including
organisational restructuring and process
optimisation. These changes have
influenced our progress towards gender
diversity objectives, particularly in senior
leadership and workforce composition.

Nufarm remains committed to our inclusion
and diversity efforts across the organisation.

The workforce to have not less than 35 per
cent of either gender represented.

Progress the workforce towards having
not less than 35 per cent of each
gender represented.

The percentage of women across Nufarm'’s
workforce decreased from 29% in FY24 to
28% in FY25.

To support future progress, Nufarm

actively seeks diverse candidates at all
organisational levels. Recruitment panels
are intentionally diverse, and employees are
trained to recognise and minimise conscious
and unconscious bias.

Selection is always based on competency
and the candidate’s potential to contribute to
Nufarm’s growth.

Establish gender diversity in 80 per cent Have not less than 40 per cent of each [ ] As of 30 September 2025, more than 40%

or more individual executive succession gender represented in the succession plan per cent of each gender is represented in

plans by FY30. of the executive team (CEO -1). the succession plan of the executive team
(CEO -1).

All people manager roles to have not All people manager roles to have not The percentage of women in people

less than 30 per cent of either gender less than 28 per cent of either gender management roles remained at 26%

represented by FY30. represented by FY25. in FY25.

Improve representation of female people Increase representation of women in [ ) The percentage of women in manufacturing

managers in manufacturing to 20 percent manufacturing people manager roles by 2 people manager roles increased from 13% in

by FY30. per cent. FY24 t0 15% in FY25.

Improve the representation of women Increase representation of women in [ ) The percentage of women in commercial

across the commercial business toward 35
per cent (excluding Indonesia).

commercial roles beyond 20 per cent.

roles remained at 22% in FY25.

32 Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025



For personal use only

4.3 Gender composition at Nufarm

For FY25, the proportion of women and men on the board, in the senior leadership team (meaning the CEO, CEO-1and CEO-2) and
across the workforce generally as of 30 September 2025 are set out below in the following charts.

Non executive directors

People managers

Goal: the non executive directors to have not less than 40 per cent of
each gender represented

%
® Men 57%
® \Women 43%

Senior leadership team
(meaning the CEO, CEO-1and CEO-2)

Goal: all people manager roles to have not less than 28 per cent of
each gender represented

® Men 74%
® \Women 26%

All employees

Goal: the senior leadership team to have not less than 40 per cent of
each gender represented by FY30

® Men 69%

® \Women 31%

Goal: the workforce to have not less than 35 per cent of each gender
represented by FY30

® Men 72%
® \Women 28%
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Corporate governance statement continuea

5 Promoting responsible and ethical behaviour

The policies and other documents described in this section
are available in the corporate governance section of
Nufarm’s website.

Code of conduct

Nufarm's code of conduct applies to all directors, employees,
contractors, agents and representatives of the company.

Nufarm's code of conduct aims:

« to promote high standards of personal integrity and honest,
ethical and responsible conduct,

« to promote behaviour in accordance with the
company's values,

« to deter wrongdoing, and

« 1o ensure accountability for adherence to the code.

Material breaches of the code of conduct are reported to the
audit and risk committee.

The code of conduct was reviewed with updates approved by
the board in September 2024.

Anti-bribery and anti-corruption policy

Nufarm's anti-bribery and anti-corruption policy applies to all
directors, employees, contractors, agents and representatives
of Nufarm who must not offer, provide or receive anything of
value to or from a public official or someone in business, either
directly or indirectly, to obtain or retain a commercial advantage,
or to induce or reward the recipient, or any other person, for
acting improperly.

Material breaches of the anti-bribery and anti-corruption policy
are reported to the audit and risk committee.

The anti-bribery and anti-corruption policy was reviewed with
updates approved by the board in May 2024.

Speak up (whistleblower) policy

Nufarm has in place a speak up (whistleblower) policy to provide
a clear and transparent way for employees and contractors to
report unethical, unlawful or irresponsible behaviour without fear
of intimidation or recrimination.

The purpose of the speak up policy is to help detect and
address any potential misconduct including breaches of the
law, the code of conduct or other company policy, and anything
else the whistleblower reasonably believes to be harmful,
dishonest or unethical.

The speak up policy sets out protections that will be
afforded to whistleblowers as well as the option to make an
anonymous report.

The audit and risk committee oversees the application of the
speak up policy, including reviewing reporting trends.

The speak up policy was reviewed with updates approved by
the board in September 2024.
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Modern Slavery Statement and human rights policy

Nufarm takes its human rights obligations and responsibilities
seriously and strives to protect human rights in its business,
supply chain and the communities in which it operates,
consistent with the United Nations Universal Declaration of
Human Rights. Nufarm believes that respecting human rights
is integral to the sustainability and success of its business.

Nufarm has in place a human rights policy, including modern
slavery, that was reviewed and updated by the board in
November 2024.

Slavery, trafficking in persons and child labour are very serious
issues. We follow the requirements of the UK and Australian
Modern Slavery Acts along with Canada's Fighting Against
Forced Labour and Child Labour in Supply Chains Act. We
publish an annual modern slavery statement that provides
information on the steps taken to identify and reduce the risk
of modern slavery in our business. Our most recent statement
(FY24) was published in March 2025 and our FY25 statement
will be published in early 2026.

Security trading policy and insider trading

The board has a security trading policy that covers dealings
by directors, KMP and relevant employees and complies

with the ASX Listing Rule requirements for a trading policy.
The security trading policy aims to ensure that public
confidence is maintained in the reputation of Nufarm, the
reputation of its directors and employees and in the trading of
Nufarm securities.

The security trading policy prohibits all Nufarm employees
from trading in Nufarm securities at any time if they are in
possession of price sensitive information and during blackout
periods. Additional restrictions apply to directors, KMPs and
relevant employees requiring that they may only trade if they
have obtained pre-approval to do so.

The policy also prohibits directors, KMPs and relevant
employees from entering into margin lending, short-term or
speculative dealing or hedging of Nufarm securities.

The security trading policy was last reviewed by the board in
November 2023.

Climate change policy

As a global crop protection and seed technologies company,
Nufarm is committed to playing its role in addressing climate
change and its impacts. Nufarm is committed to reducing
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions across its operations,
developing solutions that help Nufarm's customers lower their
GHG emissions, and ensuring Nufarm's governance framework,
risk management, strategy, and operating plans reflect the
climate-related risks and opportunities it faces. Nufarm believes
its crop protection products support growers to increase

crop yields, which reduces the need for land clearing and
deforestation by producing more food on less land.

The climate change policy was last reviewed by the board in
September 2025.
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Health, safety and environment policy

Nufarm’s health, safety, and environment policy (HSE), approved
in October 2023, reflects Nufarm's belief that HSE extends
beyond its employees to its customers and communities. It
applies to all Nufarm directors, employees (permanent and non-
permanent), and visitors to Nufarm facilities.

The policy emphasises Nufarm’'s commitment to creating

a safe working environment, promoting HSE leadership

and awareness, and continuously improving Nufarm'’s

HSE management systems. Nufarm encourage open
communication on HSE matters and make sure that everyone
is aware of their HSE responsibilities from the CEO to the
newest employee.

Other policies

The company has a number of other policies that outline

the expected standards of behaviour of directors, employees,
contractors, agents and representatives of Nufarm, including its
global supplier code of conduct.

6 Risk management and internal control

6.1 Approach to risk management and internal control

The board recognises that the effective identification and
management of risk reduces the uncertainty in executing the
company’s business strategies. The board has a focus on
strategy development and execution and actively supports
integrated risk management to strengthen this focus area.

The risk management policy, framework and procedures set out
the roles, responsibilities, and guidelines for managing financial
and non-financial risks associated with the company’s business
and have been designed to provide effective management

of material risks at a level appropriate to the company’s

global business.

The risk policy and framework emphasise the board and
executive's commitment to maintaining a positive risk
culture across Nufarm to maximise the effectiveness of risk
management practices with a particular focus on integrating
risk into strategy and decision-making.

Nufarm has also implemented a risk appetite framework which
is applied throughout Nufarm. Nufarm's risk appetite is integral
to our overall enterprise risk management processes and sets
out the types and extent of risk that Nufarm is willing to accept
in pursuit of its global strategic objectives, while adhering

to Nufarm’s group values and reinforcing its commitment to
corporate responsibility.

The group risk management policy can be found in the
corporate governance section of Nufarm’'s website.

Nufarm is committed to continuing to improve its enterprise

risk management practices to protect and enhance shareholder
value. The executive risk and compliance committee, made up
of the key management employees and other members of the
executive team continued to meet during FY25 to assist with
overseeing, directing and supporting the implementation and
operation of the risk management framework and the internal
compliance and control system across the company.

More information on Nufarm'’s financial and non-financial risks,
including environmental risks, the approach to climate change
and social related risks, is set out on pages 19-23 of this report
and in Nufarm's 2025 ESG impact statement.

6.2 Risk management responsibilities

The board is responsible for overseeing Nufarm's risk
management framework, including both financial and non-
financial risks and setting the risk appetite within which
the board expects management to operate. The board

is also responsible for satisfying itself that management
has developed and implemented a sound system of
internal controls.

The board has delegated oversight of the ongoing risk
management program, procedures, auditing and adequacy
and effectiveness of the enterprise risk management to the
audit and risk committee. This includes the responsibility of
evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control systems.

Nufarm’s group risk management team, led by the Head of Risk,
Assurance and Compliance, manages the implementation of
this framework across the company. The framework aims to
deal adequately with contemporary and emerging risks, such as
conduct risk, digital disruption, cyber-security, privacy and data
breaches, sustainability and climate change.

Risk profiles for key operational business units have
been developed and were reviewed in FY25. These risk
profiles identify:

« the nature and likelihood of specific material risks
« key controls in place to mitigate and manage the risk
« accountability for managing these risks.

The audit and risk committee charter requires the committee

to review the risk management framework at least every two
years. A review of the framework at least every two years
compliments the company's regular review of material risks and
annual performance assessment against the framework.

The risk management framework was reviewed in FY25. The
audit and risk committee is satisfied that the risk management
framework continues to be sound and that the company is
operating with due regard for the risk appetite set by the board.
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Corporate governance statement continued

6.3 Internal audit

The Head of Risk, Assurance and Compliance is accountable to
both the audit and risk committee and the CEO for the delivery
of the internal audit plan and work program. Nufarm adopts

a co-sourced internal audit model, engaging PwC as internal
audit partner. The Head of Risk, Assurance and Compliance
manages the relationship with PwC.

Internal audit supports management efforts to:

« manage and control risks

« improve the efficiency and effectiveness of key business
processes and internal control systems

« monitor compliance with company-wide requirements,
policies and procedures

« provide the committee with assurance on the operating
effectiveness of controls.

The scope of internal audit work (including the annual internal
audit plan) is prepared with a view to providing coverage

of all major business and functional units and identified key
risks. The audit and risk committee approves the internal
audit plan which is reviewed throughout the year to ensure it
remains appropriate.

The Head of Risk, Assurance and Compliance reports directly
to the audit and risk committee at each meeting on the
progress against the internal audit plan, as well as detailed
findings and corresponding management actions in relation to
reviews undertaken in accordance with the internal audit plan.
There is an opportunity to raise issues with the audit and risk
committee in the absence of management, in closed sessions
held at least twice per year. The Head of Risk, Assurance and
Compliance has unfettered access to the chair of the audit and
risk committee.

6.4 CEO and CFO assurance

Before the board adopted the 2025 half-year and annual
financial statements, the CEO and the CFO provided written
declarations to the board in respect of the company’s
half-year and annual financial statements that, in their
opinion, the financial records of the company have been
properly maintained, the financial statements comply with
the appropriate accounting standards and give a true and
fair view of the financial position and performance of the
company, and that the opinion has been formed on the
basis of a sound system of risk management and internal
control which is operating effectively. Effective from FY24, the
declaration has been expanded to cover new consolidated
entity disclosure requirements.

The declaration of the CEO and CFO is supported by written
statements by all executives and key finance personnel relating
to the financial position of the company, market disclosure, the
application of company policies and compliance with internal
controls and external obligations.
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6.5 Verification of periodic reports

Nufarm is committed to ensuring that all the information
contained in its corporate reports is accurate, effective and
clear. Nufarm has put in place a process to verify the integrity
of its periodic reports that are not subject to audit or reviewed
by the external auditor. This includes the annual report, the
corporate governance statement, the ESG impact statement
and the climate statement.

A statement on the processes undertaken to verify the
information not audited or verified by the external auditor can be
found in the corporate governance section of Nufarm’'s website.
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7 Continuous disclosure and communications with shareholders

71 Continuous disclosure and market communications

Nufarm is committed to timely, open and effective
communication with its shareholders and the general
investment community.

The board has adopted a continuous disclosure policy,

which establishes procedures aimed at ensuring that Nufarm
complies with the legal and regulatory requirements under the
Corporations Act and the ASX Listing Rules. These procedures
include the establishment of a market disclosure committee,
which monitors the continuous disclosure framework and

is responsible for ensuring that Nufarm complies with

its obligations.

The market disclosure committee is constituted by the chair

of the board, CEO, CFO, Group Executive - General Counsel
and Company Secretary and General Manager - Investor
Relations and Corporate Development and is responsible for
implementing and monitoring reporting processes and controls
to ensure there is an adequate system in place for the
disclosure of all material information to the ASX.

The Group Executive - General Counsel and Company
Secretary reports to the board on the matters considered

by the market disclosure committee at each meeting. The
board approves any announcements which are within the
matters reserved for decision by the board including annual
and half year financial reports, any profit update or earnings
guidance, matters which could have significant financial

or reputational risks, company transforming transactions or
events, significant corporate transactions including any equity
related transactions and any other matters that the market
disclosure committee considers is of fundamental significance
to the company. In addition to approving the announcements
reserved for decision by the board, directors are provided
with copies of all announcements that are made to the ASX
immediately after they have been released on the market
announcements platform.

The continuous disclosure policy was reviewed and updated by
the board in September 2023. The policy can be found in the
corporate governance section of Nufarm’s website.

7.2 Shareholder communication

The company places a high priority on communication with
shareholders and other stakeholders and aims to ensure

they are kept informed of all major developments affecting
Nufarm. The company has an investor relations program to
facilitate a direct, two-way dialogue with shareholders and the
company believes it is important not only to provide relevant
information as quickly and efficiently as possible, but also to
listen and understand shareholders’ perspectives and respond
to their feedback.

Nufarm holds briefings on the annual and half year financial
results and on other new and significant information.
Presentation materials or speeches that provide any new and
substantive information are first disclosed to the ASX through
the market announcements platform and then posted to the
Nufarm website prior to any discussion.

One of the key communication tools is the company’s

website. The website contains the key governance documents,
market announcements, annual reports and half-yearly financial
statements, a calendar of events relating to shareholders

and other communications to key stakeholders. The website
also contains a facility for shareholders to direct inquiries to

the company.

Shareholders are provided with an update on the company's
performance at the AGM, as well as an opportunity to vote

on important matters affecting Nufarm and ask questions of
the board and key members of management. All resolutions at
the AGM are decided by a poll rather than a show of hands.
Copies of the chair's speech and the meeting presentation

are released to the ASX and posted to the company's website
as the meeting commences. A summary of proceedings and
outcome of voting on the items of business are also released to
the ASX and posted to the website as soon as they are available
after the meeting. All directors are expected to attend the AGM.

Nufarm’s external auditor attends the AGM to answer any
shareholder questions concerning the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the audit report, the accounting
policies adopted by Nufarm and the independence of the
external auditor in relation to the audit.

The company encourages shareholders to receive
communications electronically. Shareholders may elect to
receive all or some of their communications electronically.
This election can be made directly with the share registry,
Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited.

The board obtains the views of shareholders by either formal
or informal means. The board receives a regular report from
the General Manager - Investor Relations and Corporate
Development which contains feedback from investors. The
CEO and CFO are accessible to shareholders, analysts, fund
managers and others with a potential interest in the company.
The chair of the board and the chair of the people, safety and
remuneration committee are also accessible to shareholders
and institutional investors.
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their report together with the financial report of Nufarm Limited
(‘the company’) and of the group, being the company and its subsidiaries and the
group’s interests in associates and jointly controlled entities, for the financial year ended
30 September 2025 and the auditor's report thereon.

Directors
The directors of the company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:

J Gillam (Chair)

G Hunt (Managing Director)
A Gartmann

D Jones

M McDonald

A Percy

L Saint

F Tripodi

Unless otherwise indicated, all directors held their position as a director througout the entire period and up to the date of this
report. Details of the qualifications, experience and current committee responsibilities and other directorships of the directors are set
out below.

Name, qualifications and responsibilities Tenure and experience

John Gillam John Gillam joined the board on 31 July 2020 and was appointed chair on

BCom, MAICD, FAIM 24 September 2020.

Independent non-executive chair John has extensive commercial and leadership experience from a 20-year career with
Member of the audit and risk committee Wesfarmers where he held various senior leadership roles including chief executive officer
Member of the people, safety and of the Bunnings Group, Managing Director of CSBP and chair of Officeworks. John is based
remuneration committee in Australia.

Chair ofthe nomination committee Other directorships (current and recent):
« Chair of Lendlease Group Limited (since October 2024)
« Chair of BlueFit Pty Limited (since February 2018)
« Chair of VetPartners (since March 2024)
« Director of Clontarf Foundation (since 2017)
« Former director and chair of CSR Limited (2017 to July 2024)

Greg Hunt Greg Hunt joined the board on 5 May 2015. Greg joined Nufarm in 2012 and was group
Harvard AMP, Grad Dip. Mgmt, AGSM, AICD executive commercial operations prior to being appointed acting CEO in February 2015.
Managing director and CEO Greg has considerable executive and agribusiness experience. Greg had a successful career

at Elders before being appointed managing director of Elders Australia Limited, a position he
held between 2001-2007. After leaving Elders, Greg worked with various private equity firms
focussed on the agriculture sector and has acted as a corporate advisor to Australian and
international organisations in agribusiness related matters.
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Name, qualifications and responsibilities

Tenure and experience

Alexandra Gartmann
BSc (Resource & Environmental
Management) (Hons)

Independent non-executive director
Chair of the sustainability and
enviroment committee

Member of the audit and risk committee
Member of the nomination committee

Alexandra Gartmann joined the board on 23 September 2022.

Alexandra brings over 25 years of deep industry experience in rural, agriculture and
community focused organisations and is the former CEO of the Rural Bank, a division of the
Bendigo & Adelaide Bank. Her executive career includes roles such as Bendigo & Adelaide
Bank Executive Marketing, Partnerships & Corporate Affairs and CEO of Rural Bank and

as CEO of the Foundation for Rural & Regional Renewal and The Birchip Cropping Group.
Alexandra serves on boards across agriculture, education and the environment. Alexandra is
based in Australia.

Other directorships and roles (current and recent):

« Chair of the Victorian Agriculture & Climate Change Council (since 2020)
« Trustee of the Helen MacPherson Smith Trust (since 2018)
« Chair of the Australian Farm Institute (director since 2018, chair since April 2024)

« Presiding member of the Grains Research & Development Corporation (GRDC) Selection
Committee (since May 2023)

« Director and deputy chair of the Australian Wool Testing Authority (since October 2022)
« Director of the One Basin Cooperative Research Centre (since July 2022)
« Member of the La Trobe University Council (since January 2024)

Dr David Jones
BA (Hons) Science, PhD

Independent non-executive director
Chair of the innovation committee
Member of the people, safety and
remuneration committee

Member of the nomination committee

David Jones joined the board on 23 June 2021.

David has held chair and director roles in large global agricultural business. His experience
includes as Head of Business Development at Syngenta and former Chairman of Zeneca
China, Arysta Life Science, and Plant Impact. David has broad leadership experience in
operations, strategy, mergers and acquisitions and intellectual property in multiple jurisdictions
including Asia, Latin America, Europe and the United States. David is based in Switzerland.

Other directorships (current and recent):

« Chair of BigSis (since 2020)

Marie McDonald
LLB (Hons), BSc (Hons)

Independent non-executive director
Chair of the people, safety and
remuneration committee

Member of the audit and risk committee
Member of the nomination committee

Marie McDonald joined the board on 22 March 2017.

Marie is widely recognised as one of Australia’s leading corporate and commercial lawyers
having been a Senior Partner at Ashurst until 2014 where she specialised in mergers and
acquisitions, corporate governance and commercial law.

Marie was chair of the Corporations Committee of the Business Law Section of the Law
Council of Australia from 2012 to 2013, having previously been the deputy chair, and was a
member of the Australian Takeovers Panel from 2001 to 2010. Marie is currently a member of
the AICD Law Committee. Marie is based in Australia.

Other directorships (current and recent):

« Director of Nanosonics Limited (since 24 October 2016)

« Director of Walter and Eliza Hall Institute of Medical Research (since October 2016)
« Director of Telix Pharmaceuticals Limited (since March 2025)

« Former director of CSL Limited (14 August 2013 to 28 October 2025)

Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025 39

MSIAIBAO GZOT
snnoqy 1eak [eloueul4

souewloped HS3 IO

MBIASY |eloueUlS
pue BuneladQ

ojesodio)

JuSWS}e)S SoueUISA0h
yoday ;si010841a

1oday uopnelsunway

SluUBWeleIS [BIOUBUIL



For personal use only

Directors’ Report continued

Name, qualifications and responsibilities

Tenure and experience

Prof. Adrian Percy
BSc, MSc, PhD

Independent non-executive director
Member of the sustainability and
environment committee

Member of the innovation committee
Member of the nomination committee

Adrian Percy joined the board on 1July 2023.

Adrian is currently the inaugural executive director of the NC Plant Sciences Initiative at
North Carolina State University. He has more than 30 years of experience in the agricultural
sector, with previous roles as chief technology officer of UPL Ltd and head of research and
development for the Crop Science Division of Bayer. In the latter role, he was a member

of their executive committee with responsibility for internal and open innovation activities

in the areas of crop protection chemistry and biologicals, as well as seeds and traits.

During his 25-year tenure at Bayer, he also held numerous positions in agricultural research
and development.

Adrian is a venture partner at DYDX Capital LLC, an early stage venture capital investor. Adrian
is based in the United States.

Other directorships (current and recent):

« Chair and director of BioLumic Limited (US) (since May 2019)

« Director of Ag Plenus Ltd (Israel) (since July 2023)

« Director of FungiAlert Limited trading as FA Bio (UK) (since March 2022)
« Director of Evogene Ltd (Israel) (since March 2013)

« Executive director of NC Plant Sciences Initiative, North Carolina State University (since
November 2021)

Lynne Saint

BCom, GradDip Ed Studies, FCPA, FAICD

Independent non-executive director
Chair of the audit and risk committee
Member of the sustainability and
environment committee

Member of the nomination committee

Lynne Saint joined the board on 18 December 2020.

Lynne has broad financial and commercial experience from a global career including more
than 19 years with Bechtel Group where she served as chief audit executive and chief
financial officer of the Mining and Metals Global Business Unit. Her expertise encompasses
strong financial skills, corporate governance, enterprise risk, supply chain risk and project
management. Lynne is based in Australia.

Other directorships (current and recent):

« Director of lluka Resources (since 24 October 2019)
« Director of Ventia Services Group Limited (since 1 July 2021)

Federico Tripodi
BAgronomic Engineering, MBA

Independent non-executive director
Member of the people, safety and
remuneration committee

Member of the innovation committee
Member of the nomination committee

Federico Tripodi joined the board on 19 June 2023.

Federico has close to three decades of involvement in the agri-food sector with his experience
spanning general management, research and development, corporate strategy and the
commercialisation of novel plant biotechnologies targeted for consumers and farmers.

Federico is the CEO and founder of Blacktop Holdings, a boutique venture lab that

offers strategic and operating partnership services to rapidly growing Ag Tech, Food and
Agribusiness companies, their investors and research institutions. Federico is the CEO and
co-founder of Sipli, a Juice-based beverage company that delivers 100% fruit juices with
naturally reduced sugar content.

From 2016 to 2018, Federico served as the CEO of Calyxt Inc. (NASDAQ:CLXT), a company that
develops healthier food ingredients by applying a new breeding technology. Prior to Calyxt,
Federico worked at Monsanto Company for nearly two decades where his primary focus was
developing health, sustainability and renewable energy crop products in the United States and
Latin America. Federico is based in the United States.

Other directorships (current and recent):

« Chair of the Agricultural Utilization Research Institute (AURI) (director since January 2019,
chair since January 2022)

Company secretary

Kate Hall (LLB (Hons), BSc and LLM (IP)) was appointed company secretary on 20 April 2022. Kate has more than 20 years’ Australian
and international experience, including as a general counsel and senior executive leading legal, intellectual property, governance,

risk and compliance functions.

40 Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025



| use only

Directors’ interests in shares and step-up securities

Relevant interests of the directors in the shares of the company and step-up securities issued by Nufarm Finance (NZ) Ltd are, at
the date of this report, as notified by the directors to the Australian Securities Exchange in accordance with section 205G(1) of the
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), as follows:

Nufarm Ltd
Ordinary shares

Nufarm Finance (NZ) Ltd
Step-up securities

J Gillam 260,000 -
G Hunt' 1,084,702 -
A Gartmann 31,300 -
D Jones 165,855 -
M McDonald 45,179 -
A Percy 19,000 -
L Saint? 46,852 -
F Tripodi 13,270 -

1 As at 19 November 2025, Greg Hunt also holds 558,879 performance rights.
2 As at 19 November 2025, Lynne Saint also holds 4,969 NED share rights.

Directors’ meetings

The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of board committees) and number of meetings attended by each of the
directors of the company during the financial year are listed below.

People, Safety

and

Sustainability
and

Board Audit and Risk Remuneration Innovation Environment Nomination

(ﬁ A B A B A B A B A B A B
C John Gillam 12 12 4 4 4 4 - 1 - 3 1 1
O Greg Hunt 12 12 - 4 - 4 - 2 - 3 - 1
e Alexandra Gartmann 12 12 4 4 B 3 - 2 3 3 1 1
q) David Jones 12 12 - - 4 4 3 3 - - 1 1
O Marie McDonald 12 12 4 4 4 4 - 2 - 2 1 1
[ Adrian Percy 12 12 - - - - 3 3 3 3 1 1
O Lynne Saint 12 12 4 4 - 2 - 1 3 3 1 1
I Federico Tripodi 12 12 - 1 4 4 3 3 - - 1 1

Column A: indicates the number of meetings held during the period of each director's board tenure and formal membership of a committee.

Column B: indicates the number of meetings attended by each director (whether or not the director was a member of the committee).
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Directors’ Report continued

Principal activities and changes

Nufarm'’s principal activities during the financial year were the manufacture and sale of crop protection products and its proprietary
seed technologies business which are further described in the Operating and Financial Review accompanying this report.

Nufarm employs approximately 3,068 full time equivalent employees (as at 30 September 2025) at its various locations in the Asia
Pacific, the Americas, Europe, Africa and the Middle East.

The company is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX Code: NUF). Its head office is located at Laverton in Melbourne.

Results

The net profit/(loss) attributable to members of the group for the year ended 30 September 2025 is $(165.3) million. The comparable
figure for the year ended 30 September 2024 was ($5.6) million.

Operating and financial review and future prospects

The operating and financial review and future prospects are set out in the Operating and Financial Review on pages 12-23 and forms
part of this directors' report.

Dividends

No interim or final dividend was declared in respect of the year ended 30 September 2025.

Nufarm Step-up Securities distributions

The following distributions have been paid or proposed since the end of the preceding financial year.

Distribution Total amount
Proposed and unrecognised at reporting date rate (annualised) $000 Payment date
Distribution for the period 15 October 2025 to 14 April 2026 7.63% 9,652 15 April 2026
Distribution for the period 15 April 2025 to 14 October 2025 7.98% 10,037 15 October 2025
2025
Distribution for the period 15 October 2024 to 14 April 2025 8.51% 10,830 15 April 2025
Distribution for the period 15 April 2024 to 14 October 2024 8.46% 10,830 15 October 2024

State of affairs

The state of the group’s affairs are set out in the Operating and Financial Review accompanying this directors' report.

Events subsequent to reporting date

On 15 October 2025, a distribution was paid by Nufarm Finance (NZ) on the Nufarm step-up securities. The distribution rate
(annualised) was 7.98% resulting in a gross distribution of $10.037 million.

On the same date, Nufarm refinanced its short-term omega-3 loan facility with a balance of $109.401 million (US$90 million facility
size, with US$72.347 million drawn) into a two-year A$90 million amortising loan facility with annual principal repayments. The facility
is secured against tangible assets in Australia, the United States, Canada and New Zealand.

Other than noted above, the Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial
year that, in their opinion, has significantly affected, or may significantly affect in future years, Nufarm’s operations or the state of
Nufarm'’s affairs.

Remuneration report

The remuneration report set out on pages 44-65 forms part of this directors' report.
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Environmental performance

The group did not incur any material prosecutions or fines in the financial period relating to environmental performance. The group
publishes an ESG impact statement annually. This report can be viewed on the group’s website.

Non-audit services

During the year KPMG, the company’s auditor, has performed certain other services in addition to their statutory duties. Details of the
audit fee and non-audit services are set out in note 35 on page 129 to the financial report.

The board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor and is satisfied that the provision of

those non-audit services during the year by the auditor is compatible with, and did not compromise, the auditor independence
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) for the reason that all non-audit services were subject to the corporate governance
procedures adopted by the company and have been reviewed by the audit and risk committee to ensure they do not impact the
integrity and objectivity of the auditor.

Indemnities and insurance for directors and officers

The company has entered into insurance contracts which indemnify directors and officers of the company, and its controlled entities,
against liabilities. In accordance with normal commercial practices, under the terms of the insurance contracts, the nature of the
liabilities insured against and the amount of premiums paid are confidential.

An indemnity agreement has been entered into between the company and each of the directors named earlier in this report. Under
the agreement, the company has agreed to indemnify the directors against any claim or for any expenses or costs, which may arise
as a result of the performance of their duties as directors to the extent allowed by law. There are no monetary limits to the extent of
this indemnity.

Lead auditor’s independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration is set out on page 66 and forms part of this directors' report for the financial year
ended 30 September 2025.
Rounding of amounts

The company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191 and, in
accordance with that Instrument, all financial information presented in Australian dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand
unless otherwise stated.

This report has been made in accordance with a resolution of directors.

John Gillam Greg Hunt
Director Director

Melbourne, 19 November 2025
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Remuneration Report

Introduction from the chair of the People, Safety and Remuneration Committee

Dear fellow shareholders,

As chair of Nufarm's People, Safety and Remuneration
Committee (PSRC), | am pleased to present the remuneration
report for the financial year ended 30 September 2025 (FY25).

PSRC activities

During FY25, the committee oversaw a number of programs
across the company, including the following;

« The company's strong focus on occupational health and
safety was continued with 5 of 11 manufacturing sites having
an LTl-free year.

« Targeted health and safety training across key risk areas and
emergency drills with external agencies were completed.

« A new wellbeing strategy was launched to support proactive
employee health and engagement.

« Anongoing commitment to Inclusion and Diversity
across the company. Pleasingly, 33% of all executive
and senior management appointments in FY25 were
women (2024:30%).

« As of 30 September 2025, more than 40 per cent of
each gender is represented in the succession plan of the
executive team (CEO -1).

FY25 Performance

In 2025 we started to see the green shoots of recovery in crop
protection resulting in our businesses in APAC, North America
and Europe growing EBITDA year on year. Unfortunately, this
improvement was offset by a sharp fall in fish oil prices which
negatively impacted our omega-3 platform. We had another
successful year in hybrid seeds and continued to grow our
carinata program with expanded acreage and oil production.

Regarding the FY25 Executive Incentive Plan (EIP), financial
metrics for executive KMP were assessed. The profit

gate was not met with the consequence that no cash

payment will be made, and any EIP reward will be in
performance rights. The ANWC/Sales financial metric did meet
the required threshold. The non-financial metrics, covering
measurable drivers of financial discipline, operational efficiency,
and strategic growth, were partially achieved. Consequently,
executive KMP are entitled to receive a modest allocation of
performance rights, which will be subject to testing against
primarily financial metrics over a three-year period. Having
given due consideration to the shareholders experience in
FY25, the CEO has voluntarily elected to forgo his FY25

EIP award.

CEO Transition

Today, Nufarm has announced a CEO transition. Greg Hunt
will step down as CEO and Managing Director, with Rico
Christensen taking on the role, effective 1 January 2026.
Rico will also join the Board as an Executive Director on
1December 2025.

44 Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025

The CEOQ transition at Nufarm reflects a well-planned
succession strategy. Rico Christensen’s appointment highlights
the company’s focus on developing strong internal talent.

With nearly 30 years of global experience across Cheminova,
Arysta, UPL and Nufarm, Rico brings deep expertise in strategy,
operations, product development, and financial management.
His commercial acumen and leadership track record make him
well-suited to lead Nufarm’s next chapter.

Greg Hunt, the outgoing CEO, has made a distinguished
contribution over more than a decade, guiding Nufarm'’s
evolution into a diversified global crop protection and seeds
company. Under Greg's leadership, the company expanded its
market presence across North America, APAC, and Europe, and
advanced Seed Technologies.

| wish to thank Greg for his leadership and contributions in the
CEO role and welcome Rico to the role.

CEO remuneration arrangements

Mr Hunt will remain with Nufarm in an advisory role for 6 months
from 1January 2026, to assist with a smooth transition. In
accordance with the terms of Mr Hunt's’ employment contract,
Nufarm will make a payment to Mr Hunt equivalent to 12-
months of his Fixed Annual Remuneration, reduced to comply
with the statutory termination benefits cap (less applicable tax).

For FY26, Mr Christensen will be entitled to a total

annual remuneration of AUD$3,240,000 (USD 2,137,680) at
target (base plus incentive), representing a base salary of
AUD$1,350,000 (USD $890,700) and a target EIP opportunity
of 140% of base salary. An additional grant of AUD$700,000
(USD$460,000) performance rights to the new CEO will be
made, subject to shareholder approval at the AGM to be held
in February 2026.

More details regarding the transition and terms of appointment
are contained in the ASX release on 19 November 2025 and in
section 2 of the Remuneration Report.

Executive remuneration outcomes for the 2025 year

As mentioned above, the company'’s financial performance has
been reflected in the Executive Incentive Plan (EIP) outcomes
for executive Key Management Personnel (KMP). Each of the
FY25 EIP award measures was assessed, UEBIT was below
threshold, however ANWC/Sales met threshold. In addition, the
non-financial metrics were partially achieved.

Taking into account assessment of financial and non-financial
elements, the EIP award outcome for FY25 was 40.2% of
potential target for the CEO, 42.6% for the CFO and 44.1% for
the GESC. As previously noted, the CEO has voluntarily elected
to forgo his FY25 EIP award. An equity grant of performance
rights will be made to the other KMP and details of this
(including the performance hurdles to be assessed at the end
of FY28) are provided in section 4 of the Remuneration Report.

Further details of remuneration outcomes are set out in section
5 of the Remuneration Report.
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FY22 Executive Incentive Plan (EIP) outcome

The performance period for Nufarm'’s FY22 Executive Incentive
Plan (EIP) concluded on 30 September 2025. At the time

of grant, we advised that the revenue and margin targets

for FY25 were commercially sensitive, though aligned with

our publicly stated FY26 aspirations. We also committed to
providing a retrospective assessment of those targets once the
performance period had ended. Following the completion of the
FY25 period, the CEQO’s final EIP outcome has been determined
at 9.9% of the original rights granted, reflecting performance
against the agreed measures.

Changes to executive remuneration for FY26

For FY26, it is not proposed to make any changes to the
executive remuneration framework. However, we intend to
conduct a review of that framework in FY26, with a view to
implementing any changes in FY27.

Director fees

There were no changes to board member or committee fees in
FY25. Board fees have remained constant since 1 August 2018.
In summary

The board believes the remuneration outcomes appropriately
reflect financial results for FY25.

| wish to thank my fellow PSRC members and invite you to
review Nufarm'’s full remuneration report and thank you, our
shareholders, for your ongoing support of Nufarm, its purpose
and vision.

M h)e Ll
Marie McDonald
Chair - People, Safety and Remuneration Committee
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Remuneration Report continued

Remuneration report (audited)

The audited remuneration report is designed to provide shareholders with an understanding of Nufarm'’s
remuneration policies, and the link between our remuneration strategy and performance. This report
details Nufarm'’s remuneration framework and outcomes for Key Management Personnel (KMP) for the
financial year ended 30 September 2025 (FY25). The report has been prepared in accordance with
section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001(Cth) (Corporations Act).

For personal use only
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T1KMP in FY25

KMP are those individuals with authority and responsibility for planning, directing, and controlling the activities of the Group directly or
indirectly, being non-executive directors (NEDs); executive directors (the CEO); and other executives considered to be KMP. The CEO
and other executive KMP are referred to collectively as ‘executive KMP' throughout this report.

For FY25, Nufarm's KMP were:

Name Position Term
NEDs John Gillam Chair, independent non-executive director Full year
Alexandra Gartmann Independent non-executive director Full year
David Jones g Independent non-executive director Full year
Marie McDonald g Independent non-executive director Full year
Adrian Percy g Independent non-executive director Full year
Lynne Saint § Independent non-executive director Full year
Federico Tripodi Independent non-executive director Full year
Executive KMP Greg Hunt Managing director, and CEO (CEO) Full year
Brendan Ryan Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Part year
Appointed on 13 January 2025
Dave Allen Group executive supply chain operations (GESC) Full year
Former Paul Townsend Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Ceased 12 January 2025

executive KMP

2 CEO Transition Arrangements

Incoming CEO

As announced per the ASX release dated 19 November

2025, Mr Rico Christensen, Nufarm's Group Executive, Portfolio
Solutions will succeed Greg Hunt as CEO and Managing
Director (CEQ). Mr Christensen'’s appointment will be effective
from 1January 2026. Mr Christensen will also join the Board as
an Executive Director on 1 December 2025.

The Board has confirmed the following remuneration
arrangements in relation to the incoming CEQ, with effect from
1January 2026:

« Mr Christensen will initially be based in the USA and plans to
relocate to Australia in late 2026 or early 2027.

. He will receive a base salary of USD$890,700, equivalent
to AUD$1,350,000 per annum, subject to adjustment for
tax equalisation.

« For FY26, his target EIP opportunity is 140% of base salary
to be assessed at the end of FY26. Mr Christensen’s FY26
EIP opportunity will be assessed and performance rights
granted at the start of FY27, subject to shareholder approval.
Ongoing EIP participation and opportunity to be reviewed
annually at the Board's discretion.

« Due to the company's incentive structure, Mr Christensen
would generally not be eligible to receive an equity award
until FY27 (when the FY26 EIP is assessed), and he will be
ineligible for the long-term incentive right he would have
otherwise received in FY26 as the Group Executive, Portfolio
Solutions. To avoid a gap in equity grants, a transitionary
grant valued at USD$460,000 (AUD$700,000) will be made
in Performance Rights under the terms of the EIP, subject
to shareholder approval. These rights will be awarded with
an effective date of 1 October 2025 and will be eligible to
vest after three years (1 October 2028), subject to meeting
performance conditions set by the Board.

If Mr Christensen’s employment with Nufarm is terminated
by Nufarm without cause or by Mr Christensen for a material
adverse change, Mr Christensen will receive a payment
equal to approximately twelve (12) months of his base salary
for the year, inclusive of any payment in lieu of any notice
period not served.

Either party may terminate the employment agreement by
giving 6 months’ notice. Nufarm may require Mr Christensen
to serve out the notice period, may elect to pay Mr
Christensen in lieu of notice or provide notice in the form

of paid leave.

Mr Christensen will receive a transition allowance of
USD$50,000 per annum (paid monthly), to support in
managing the additional cost of relocating to Australia. This
allowance will cease two years from being appointed, or
earlier upon mutual agreement between Mr Christensen and
the Company.

Mr Christensen will also receive standard executive
relocation assistance in accordance with the Nufarm Group’s
Global Mobility Policy.

Whilst employed in the US the company health cover and
US pension policy will apply.

Other terms of Mr Christensen’s employment are
customary, including a 12 month non-compete and non-
solicitation clause.
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Remuneration Report continued

Outgoing CEO

Greg Hunt will step down as CEO and Managing Director on
1January 2026. To assist in a smooth transition, Mr. Hunt will
remain with Nufarm until 30 June 2026, providing support in an
advisory capacity.

Mr Hunt was employed for the entire 2025 financial year and
as previously noted has voluntarily elected to forgo his FY25
incentive. He will also not be eligible to participate in the

FY26 EIP. Consistent with Nufarm’s EIP rules, following his
cessation of employment, Mr Hunt's unvested incentives from

3 Our Remuneration Philosophy

Link between business strategy and remuneration

prior financial years will remain on foot to be assessed in
the ordinary course, subject to satisfaction of the applicable
performance measures.

The company has agreed that Mr Hunt's non-compete
obligations will end on 1January 2027. In accordance with the
terms of Mr Hunt's employment contract, Nufarm will make a
payment to Mr Hunt equivalent to 12-months of his Fixed Annual
Remuneration, reduced to comply with the statutory termination
benefits cap (less applicable tax).

Ambition: Evolving Ag. As a global crop protection and seed technologies company, we help farmers and businesses meet the
global challenges of food, fibre and fuel production. We bring our proven agility, capabilities and partnerships to help our customers

in a rapidly changing world.

Business strategy: We remain focused on core crops and key geographies where we believe we can drive better returns and serve
our customers. We have core crops in crop protection and seed technologies, across key geographies of APAC, North America,

Europe, and South America.

The agricultural industry is evolving, and Nufarm is well positioned to support our customers and the industry through change. The
strategy is to use our agricultural science capabilities, enduring partnerships and strategic agility to create value for customers,

investors and downstream markets.

Our platforms and solutions help to:

« improve farm productivity and strengthen agriculture's resilience.

« protect crops and soils to reduce food loss and enable practices such as no-till farming.
« remove carbon from the air and reduce pressure on oceans for marine sources of omega-3 oil.
« provide farm inputs that safeguard the supply of affordable food, fibre and fuel.

Remuneration strategy: To attract, retain and motivate global talent that delivers our business strategy and contributes to

sustainable, long-term growth in:

& ©
15 ) I
Driving a pay for Rewarding and Addressing the Distributing awards Including annual

performance culture
where financial rewards

are directly linked to

short- and long-term
company performance

retaining participants,
and attracting
global talent
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4 Executive KMP remuneration framework

Year 1

Initial performance d Long-term performance period :

Fixed Annual Remuneration
(FAR)

Executive Incentive Plan

(EIP)

i Year 2

Cash

(subject to satisfaction of Annual Cash Gateway) |
|

i Year 3 i Year 4

Performance Rights — subject to further long-term performance measurement
(where the Annual Cash Gateway is not met, all of the award earned is granted as performance rights)

For personal use only

FAR EIP
Purpose Attract, motivate, and retain highly Reward achievement if financial and personal/team strategic objectives are met
skilled employees. and align to long-term shareholder value creation.
Type Base salary plus If Annual Cash Award Gateway (as defined in section 4.4) is...
superannuation/pension.
..met: ...not met:
« Cash: 32% of award for all « Performance rights: 100%
executive KMP of award
« Performance rights: 68% of
award for for all executive KMP
Payment method Cash, paid monthly plus Award quantum is determined based on an assessment of performance

contributions to superannuation/
pension plans, as applicable.

over Year 1against a combination of financial and non-financial
performance measures.

« Cash component (if any): Paid in cash annually following release of audited
financial statements.

« Performance rights component: Granted following release of audited
financial statements, other than for CEO where the grant is subject
to shareholder approval at next AGM. Vesting is subject to meeting
performance conditions at Year 4. Vested performance rights are converted
to shares.

Link to remuneration
principles

Cash remuneration levels are set with
reference to market benchmarking
as well as internal relativity,
performance, and experience.

EIP remuneration levels are set with reference to market benchmarking, and
seek to ensure that the balance between fixed and at risk pay reflects both
short- and long-term Nufarm objectives.

Outcomes are based on short-term/long-term financial and non-financial
performance measures.

Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025 49

MBIAIBAO GZOZ
souewlopad HS3 INO snnoqy 1eak [eloueul4

MBIADY |eloueul
pue Bunesado

ojesodio)

JUBW}E]S 9oUBUIBAOD
Hoday uonelaunway 1oday si1010811Q

SjuUaWeleIS [BIOUBUIL



For personal use only

Remuneration Report continued

4.1 Executive KMP FY25 pay mix at target and maximum

The graphic below shows the FY25 remuneration mix for executive KMP. The variable ‘at risk' components of EIP (including potential
performance rights) are expressed at target and maximum. The minimum that can be earned under the EIP (if performance is
considered unacceptable) is zero. Each component is determined as a percentage of the total remuneration package.

CEQ, target 39%
CEO, maximum 43%
CFO, target’ 34%
CFO, maximum’ 40%
Gp Exec, SCO, target 31%
Gp Exec, SCO, maximum 36%
0 20 40 60 80 100
@ Fixed remuneration (cash) @ EIP cash incentive

EIP performance rights

1 The remuneration mix at target and maximum for the CFO relates to B Ryan's annualised remuneration. P Townsend
(former CFO) was ineligible for the FY25 EIP, however was entitled to a short-term cash incentive opportunity, prorated
for the period he was a KMP, of $191,577.

4.2 Setting competitive remuneration levels

FAR and total remuneration levels are reviewed annually for changes in role scope, promotion, internal relativities, and significant
market changes. Remuneration benchmarking is regularly conducted by an independent remuneration consultant, and utilised for
remuneration review.

When benchmarking we reference companies with similar characteristics to the Nufarm business (referencing companies total
assets, net assets, revenue, EBITDA, market capitalisation, and operational scope). The comparators included companies involved

in agriculture and other cyclical industries, with significant capex requirements and complexity, and with international manufacturing/
processing operations. Nufarm aims to target the median of this group as its preferred market position for both fixed and

total remuneration.

4.3 Fixed Annual Remuneration

Nufarm offers market competitive pay rates to attract and retain our experienced and skilled management team. Remuneration
levels are set based on role size, complexity, scope, and leadership accountability, and with reference to our remuneration
benchmarking comparator group. Nufarm remains committed to the principle of pay equity.

For FY25, the Board considered incumbent performance and referenced external benchmarking data. Based on this assessment,
it determined that an increase of 3.5% to executive KMP FAR/base salary was appropriate. These adjustments align with general
workforce increases applicable to the executives' respective locations.

For FY26, the board considered it appropriate to grant the CEO 0%, CFO 2%, and GESC 1.8% FAR/Base increases (respectively),
effective from 1 October 2025. The CFO/GESC increases were in line with general workforce increases at the relevant
executive's locations.

Details of the executive KMP increases for FY25 and FY26 are outlined below:

FY25 FY26 Target EIP
Executive KMP Currency FY24 FAR Increase (%) FY25 FAR Increase (%) FY26 FAR (%)
CEO AUD 1,484,333 35% 1,536,285 0.0% 1,536,285 134.0%
CFO? AUD - n/a 775,000 2.0% 790,500 100.0%
GESC® GBP 416,000 3.5% 430,560 1.8% 438,310 85.0%

1 Percentage of fixed remuneration for incentive opportunities (for GESC, this is a percentage of base salary).

2 The remuneration of P Townsend as CFO for FY25 was $863,945 (FY24: 834,729) on an annualised basis until the date he ceased being a KMP on 13 January
2025. B Ryan commenced as CFO on 13 January 2025 and the FY25 FAR for B Ryan is $775,000 on an annualised basis.

3 The figure for the GESC disclosed in this table represents only the base salary, not inclusive of other benefits such as allowances, health insurance and
other costs.
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4.4 Executive incentive plan (EIP) description

The EIP is a single variable reward plan that provides participants the opportunity to earn shareholder aligned awards, across both
the short- and long-term.

We note the following key features for FY25

(i) Award Measures requiring testing annually against metrics made up of 70% financial and 30% non-financial at target to
determine the amount of total award that will be made;

(i) An Annual Cash Award Gateway that determines if any cash payments will be made, or if incentive awards will be entirely
granted as performance rights. If the gateway has been met, for the CEO and other executive KMP the award is delivered in a
combination of 32% cash and 68% performance rights ; and

(iii) Performance Rights Vesting Measures requiring testing three years after any awards are granted, against financial and
non-financial objectives, with financial metrics making up 90% of the total weighting.

The following diagram shows how these features apply in determining the EIP award value:

Annual Performance
Target Award Award Cash Award Rights Vesting
Opportunity Measures Gateway Measures
AL (6zChi  Performance Rights Financial
AU[_) and Non
equivalent UEBIT Total | Financial,
basedon VG oo Bl A DAL Award delivery measured

contracted

=
of FAR

Non-financial

] over three
years
H (Years 2_4)
Not Met Performance Rights

As previously disclosed, some changes were made to the EIP. ROFE is an important metric for measuring the company’s
performance. It was previously included as one of the financial metrics for the annual award measure. However, ROFE now replaces
the strategic objectives for the equity (3-year Performance Rights) to be granted. Accordingly, ROFE was removed from the annual
award measure, and there was consequential re-weighting of the annual scorecard measures, as set out in the table below. As a
result, there are three annual award measures (UEBIT, ANWC/Sales, non-financial measures), and three performance rights vesting
measures (Relative Total Shareholder Return (rTSR), Average group underlying return on funds employed (ROFE), Environment, Social
and Governance (ESG)).

In addition, some simplification has taken place, so that the cash/equity mix in the annual award, and the weightings for the
performance rights measures, are now the same for all executive KMP.

The following table outlines the key terms of the EIP:

What is the The plan rewards achievement against a combination of financial and non-financial performance measures that are
EIP’s aim? aligned to the creation of shareholder value over both the short and longer-term.
In Year 1, primary emphasis is placed on financial measures. There are also non-financial measures at Year 1 which focus
our executive KMP on executing the most critical objectives aligned to the company'’s strategy. These measures determine
the amount of cash and performance rights which may be awarded at the end of Year 1.
Performance rights are subsequently tested at the end of Year 4 against a market measure and other measures
supporting our long-term objectives. The majority of these measures are tied to clear financial objectives.
E::ol.i:?\ietflp The EIP target is set annually as a percentage of FAR (CEO, CFO) or base salary (GESC). This is pro-rated for any relevant
established? changes determined during the year.
FY25
Who participates in CEO 134% of FAR at target/ 180.9% at maximum
the EIP and what
is the “at risk” CFO 100% of FAR at target / 135% of FAR at maximum
amount as
a % of FAR? GESC 85% of base salary at target / 114.75% of base salary

at maximum
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Remuneration Report continued

What measures are
used in the plan?

The EIP consists of:

(i) Award Measures: these measures are set at the beginning of each financial year and assessed at the end of
the financial year. The Award Measures include financial measures and non-financial measures. These measures
determine the size of the Total Award.

(i) Annual Cash Award Gateway: test one financial measure, UEBIT, over Year 1. This measure determines whether the
award is delivered in the form of cash and performance rights. Where the gateway is not met any award is delivered in
performance rights only.

(iii) Performance Rights Vesting Measures: tests a number of financial and non-financial long-term measures at the
completion of the performance period (Year 4). These measures determine whether performance rights will vest.

What are the Annual
Award Measures?

Elements -

Award Measures Weighting Measured by

Profit 40% Group underlying EBIT (UEBIT)

Cash flow 30% Average net working capital divided by rolling 12 month sales (ANWC/

Sales %)

Defined non-financial strategic or operational goals as determined by the
board for executive KMP. For FY25 these included:

« Safety, environment and sustainability (including LTIFR more than 10%
below industry benchmarks), improved process safety management
performance, on time implementation of global reporting system

« Quantified reduction in supply chain costs

Non-financial 30% « Refocus strategic growth initiatives for the Crop Protection and Seed
Technologies businesses

« Enhanced management business review capability, delivering
quantified SG&A and capex savings, inventory days improvement

« Global footprint/site improvement programs

« Quantified capex and operating efficiency outcomes at specified
sites/regions

« Succession planning/implementation, organisational design

Is there a
minimum threshold
for EIP payment?

All Award Measures have a minimum threshold that must be achieved in order to be considered for an award to be made.

How are the Award
Measures
measured?

Each of the financial Award Measures is comprised of three performance levels: minimum, target, and maximum. These
measures, together with the non-financial measures, are set, reviewed, and approved by the board annually for each
executive KMP.

Performance levels

The minimum performance outcome that must be achieved before any EIP award will be made in relation

Minimum to the measure.
Target An outcome delivering significant benefit to the company achieved by great performance.
Maximum A stretch goal that could only be achieved by outstanding performance.
Performance level setting uEBIT Cash flow Non-financial
Minimum 85% of budget* 105% of budgeted*

ANWC/Sales Determined by the
Target 100% 100% ~ board based on

individual performance

Maximum 120% 95%

*Annual budgets are reviewed and approved by the board to ensure they demonstrate growth potential and achievement
of strategic milestones.

Once performance levels are assessed, EIP Awards are calculated based on payout slopes with a minimum award of 25%
to a maximum of 150% for each financial measure. For non-financial measures the maximum payment is 100%.

Payout slopes uEBIT & Cash flow Non-financial
Minimum 25% of EIP target payment
0, 0,
Target 100% 0% to 100% of EIP
target payment
Maximum 150%

52 Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025



For personal use only

Are payments in cash
or equity?

The Annual Cash Award Gateway determines whether any awards are eligible to be paid in cash:

« Ifthe Annual Cash Award Gateway is met: a portion of the total EIP Award is awarded as cash at the end of Year 1,
following the release of the audited financial statements. The remaining is awarded as performance rights, subject to
continued performance and vesting conditions.

« Ifthe Annual Cash Award Gateway is not met: the total EIP Award is awarded as performance rights, subject to
continued performance and vesting conditions.

How are the number
of performance
rights determined?

The number of performance rights to be granted will be determined using the value of the relevant portion of the Total
Award divided by the 5-day VWAP following the release of the audited financial statements in November 2025.

What are the
performance rights
vesting measures?

At the end of the vesting period, the following performance measures will apply:

Weighting  FY25
Measure All KMP Target
ROFE 50% 50% of the award is payable at target. 100% of the award is payable at 105%
) of target. Straight line vesting will
ROFE will be measured based on occur between target and stretch.
the ROFE target in the final year
of the 3 year budget for the
performance period.
As the target is commercially
sensitive it will be
disclosed retrospectively.
Relative TSR (rTSR) 40% Percentile rank % vesting
Measured against the Less than the 50th percentile 0%
ASX 200
This peer group was 50th percentile 50%
selected as we believe . . .
investors have a choice to Between the'50th and the Straight Ilneg/estln%]
allocate capital across all 75th percentile between 50%-100%
the sectors and companies . o
within it. 75th percentile or above 100%
ESG Outcomes 10% Targets are published in our 2024 sustainability report, including 30%

reduction in emissions from our manufacturing sites by 2030.

What are the
performance rights
vesting measures?
(continued)

TSR will be measured over the three-years following Year 1(i.e., Years 2 -4). rTSR performance is calculated by an
independent external provider and is subject to board confirmation and discretion.

Strategic performance measures for the FY25 award will be assessed by the board at the end of Year 4. Vesting cannot
exceed 100%. The board will provide shareholders with a clear rationale as to the final determination of vesting outcomes
following its assessment of performance at the end of the performance period.

ROFE award will be assessed on the final year of the 3 year performance period ie ROFE. The target will be disclosed
retrospectively at the end of the performance period.

What are the
dividend and
voting rights?

Rights do not carry any dividend or voting rights.

Shares allocated on vesting of Rights carry the same dividend and voting rights as other shares issued by the company.

When do
the performance
rights vest?

At the end of the Year 4, the performance rights are tested against the objectives described above. Withholding a large
portion of the award as rights with service and performance measures ensures the participants maintain a focus on both
short- and long-term company performance as well as alignment with shareholder experience. Awards that do not vest
will lapse.

What happens if the
performance rights
vesting measures are
not met?

There is no retesting if the performance condition is not met at the end of the performance period. Any proportion of the
performance rights that have not met the performance required to vest at the end of the three-year performance period
will lapse and consequently be forfeited as a result.

Is there a “claw back”
provision in the plan?

The Nufarm board has absolute discretion regarding the amount and timing of any EIP awards. The EIP is governed by the
overarching Nufarm Executive Incentive Plan rules.

Within the remuneration framework, under specific circumstances, the board has discretion to lapse or enforce forfeiture
(or potentially cash repayment where an award has been issued as cash or converted into cash) of any rights, options or
shares issued under the terms of the relevant plans.
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Remuneration Report continued

What happens if
the executive KMP
leaves Nufarm?

Unless the board determines otherwise:

(@) If employment is terminated for cause (as defined below) or the executive KMP resigns (or gives notice of resignation)

@

prior to the date on which the EIP award is delivered, the employee will not be entitled to an EIP award.
An employee will be “terminated for cause”, where employment with the Group is terminated because the employee:
- acted fraudulently or dishonestly;
- engaged in serious or wilful misconduct;
- is seriously negligent in the performance of their duties;
- committed a serious breach of their employment contract;
- committed an act, whether at work or otherwise, which could reasonably be regarded to have brought the company
or a group company into disrepute; or
is convicted of an offence punishable by imprisonment.
If employment ceases for any other reason prior to the date on which the EIP award is delivered, it will be pro-rated
(based on the portion of the performance period that has elapsed up until the date of termination).
If employment ceases for any reason other than “terminated for cause” all unvested performance rights will remain
intact and continue to vest under the plan rules.

5 FY25 company performance and remuneration outcomes

Nufarm'’s financial performance, share price and dividends over the past five years are summarised below:

Continuing group

For personal use only

Performance measures FY25 FY24 FY23 FY22 Fy21
Earnings

Underlying EBITDA! $m 302.5 312.7 439.2 446.8 361.1
Underlying EBIT' $m 82.0 107.3 251.0 236.7 153.1
Underlying NPAT $m (22.9) (8.7) 1221 133.2 61.1
ANWC/Sales? % 38.2 42.6 41.9 28.3 343
ROFE achieved?® % 2.9 3.6 8.9 9.5 5.9
Shareholder value

TSR* % (52.9) (3.5) 27.0 24.8 (45.3)
Dividends declared Cents = 4.0 10.0 10.0 4.0
Closing share price $ 2.29 3.97 4.75 5.00 4.80

1 Underlying EBIT is earnings before net finance costs and taxation excluding material items. Underlying EBITDA is earnings before net finance costs, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation excluding material items. Underlying NPAT is Net profit/(loss) after tax excluding material items. Underlying NPAT, Underlying EBIT
and Underlying EBITDA are used internally by management to assess performance of the business and make decisions on the allocation of our resources.

2 ANWC/Sales is the average net working capital over the period divided by the sales over the period, and is used throughout the business as a key performance
indicator with respect to capital management.

3 ROFE is underlying EBIT divided by the average of opening and closing funds employed (total equity plus net debt).

4 Total shareholder return (TSR) is measured over a three year return period in comparison to the comparator group.

5.1 FY25 EIP Annual Measures outcomes

The Annual Measures performance period for the FY25 EIP concluded on 30 September 2025.

The hurdles for the FY25 EIP were as follows:

FY25 targets
Weighting Metric Threshold Target Maximum Applies to
Financial elements All Executive KMP
Profit 40% Underlying EBIT' 168.9 198.7 238.4 All Executive KMP
Cash flow 30% ANWC/Sales 38.9% 37.0% 35.2% All Executive KMP
Non-financial elements 30% Refer executive incentive plan description Varies by Executive KMP

1 Measure used as the Annual Cash Award Gateway
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The below tables shows the outcomes against actual targets for executive KMP:

Annual cash
award gateway Group uEBIT
Executive KMP Group uEBIT Weight Target' Actual’' Award outcome
G Hunt Unsuccessful 40% 198.7 82.0 0%
B Ryan Unsuccessful 40% 198.7 82.0 0%
D Allen Unsuccessful 40% 198.7 82.0 0%
1 Figures presented are $ millions.
Group ANWC / sales % Non-financial
Executive KMP Weight Target Actual Award outcome Weight Award Outcome
G Hunt 30% 37.0% 38.2% 52% 30% 82%
B Ryan 30% 37.0% 38.2% 52% 30% 90%
D Allen 30% 37.0% 38.2% 52% 30% 95%
FY25 Executive incentive plan potential

Estimated fair

To be converted value of rights

To be paidin  into rights with using a

EIP Award as EIP as cashin vesting date 30 September

a % of target % of December 30 September 2025 grant date

Executive KMP' Attarget$ Atmaximum$ Total award $ potential FAR 2025 2028 $2 valuation $

G Hunt® 2,058,622 2,779,140 - 0% 0% - - -

B Ryan# 554,178 748,140 236,080 43% 43% - 236,080 282,429

D Allen 742,345 1,002,166 327,374 44% 37% - 327,374 280,680

Executive KMP average 1,118,382 1,509,815 187,818 17% 27% - 187,818 187,703

1 P Townsend (former CFO) was not eligible to participate in the FY25 EIP program. The maximum short-term cash incentive prorated for the period he was KMP

was $191,577, of which nil was achieved.

2 The amounts to be converted into rights are converted by dividing this amount by the 5-Day VWAP of the Nufarm share price following the announcement of the

audited financial statements.

3 As the CEO has voluntarily elected to forgo his FY25 EIP award, there will be no rights granted.

4 For B Ryan, the target and maximum incentive amounts are based on the prorated FAR from his start date as KMP on 13 January 2025.

The board approved the mathematical outcomes in accordance with the EIP rules. However, as previously noted the CEO voluntarily
elected to forgo his award. The Board gave careful consideration to the awards for the CFO and GESC, having regard to shareholder
experience during the year. As the CFO joined the Company during FY25 and the GESC was focussed on supply chain operations,
the Board determined that it was not appropriate to exercise any discretion (up or down) with regard to their EIP Annual Measures
outcome. Grants for B Ryan and D Allen will be issued in FY26 following release of audited financial statements.

5.2 Executive KMP pay mix FY25, actual

The graphic below shows the actual remuneration mix for executive KMP for FY25.

CEO, actual

CFO, actual

GESC, actual

0 20

@ Fixed remuneration (cash)

40 60

80

® EIP performance rights

5.3 FY24 EIP Performance Rights Allocation

EIP performance rights are allocated based on the five-day VWAP following the release of the audited financial statements.

100

Because the FY24 Remuneration Report was released before the allocation value could be determined, the number of rights
awarded were not able to be reported at the time. Accordingly, the FY24 EIP equity outcomes against targets for executive KMP are

shown here:
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Remuneration Report continued

FY24 Executive incentive plan rights conversion

Equivalent

number of rights
EIP to using 5-Day Fair value of
be converted 5-Day VWAP post VWAP post EIP Grant date fair rights granted
Executive KMP into rights FY24 results FY24 results rights granted value EIP $' during FY25 $
G Hunt 372,939 4.0990 90,982 90,982 2.82 256,569
B Ryan n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
D Allen 152,706 4.0990 37,254 37,254 3.30 122,938

Former executive KMP

P Townsend? 187,814 4.0990 45819 45819 3.30 151,203

1 The EIP was granted on the 4 February 2025 for G Hunt and 14 November 2024 for D Allen and P Townsend. B Ryan was not a KMP until 13 January 2025.

2 P Townsend ceased being a KMP on 13 January 2025.

Details of the terms of the FY25 EIP for the CFO and GESC are set out in the FY24 remuneration report and for the CEO were set
out in the notice of meeting for the FY24 AGM. The details of performance rights granted with respect to the FY25 EIP award will be

disclosed in the FY26 remuneration report.

5.4 FY22 EIP outcomes

The performance period for the FY22 EIP plan concluded on 30 September 2025. The results of Nufarm’'s RTSR are calculated by
an external provider. When Nufarm announced the FY22 EIP award, we stated that our revenue and margin targets for FY25 were
commercially sensitive but aligned to our previously announced FY26 aspirations. We also stated that assessments and outcomes

in respect of those targets would be disclosed retrospectively following the end of FY25.

The vesting table for the CEO FY22 EIP is detailed below reflecting performance up to 30 September 2025 including targets and

outcomes. The board approved the vesting outcomes in accordance with the EIP rules.

Achievement

For personal use only

Performance recom- Weighted
measure Weight Targets mendation outcome
Percentile rank % vesting

RTSR Less than the 50th il 0%
ess than the percentile o
Measured 43% 0% 0%
against the 50th percentile 50%
ASX 200
Between the 51st and the 75th percentile  Straight line vesting between 50%-100%
Revenue and Financial measure FY25 target
margin growth in
the Cron 930,  Revenue $3,250m - $3,500m 0% 0%
Protection UEBITDA % 137% - 13.9%
segment 0% 0%
Revenue and Financial measure FY25 target
margin growth in 0, 0,
the Seed 939,  Revenue $550m - $700m 0% 0%
Technologies UEBITDA % 17.9% - 181%
segment 0% 0%
Targets for end of FY25 from an end of FY20 baseline are:
« reducing hazardous waste by 20% by 2025;
« reducing VOC to air by 25% by 2025;
« achieving ISO14001 certification at 10 of our 11 manufacturing sites by 2025;
ESG 11% « on track to reduce greenhouse gas scope 1and 2 emissions from our 90% 9.90%
manufacturing sites by 30% by 2030; and
« ontrack to deliver our 2030 objectives to have 40:40:20 representation in our
senior leadership category (CEO-1and CEO-2): 40 per cent identifying as women,
40 per cent identifying as men and 20 per cent identifying as men, women
or other.
Final outcome 9.9%
The table below details the individual outcome for the FY22 EIP award.
Participant' Rights granted Achievement Rights vesting Rights lapse
Greg Hunt 284,791 9.9% 28,194 256,597

1 Brendan Ryan and Dave Allen did not participate in the FY22 EIP as they were not employed by Nufarm at the time of plan issue. P Townsend ceased being a

KMP on 13 January 2025.
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5.5 Actual total remuneration earned by executives in FY25 (unaudited)

The table below details actual pay and benefits for executive KMP who were employed during the reporting period. This table aims
to assist shareholders in understanding the cash and other benefits received by executive KMP from the various components of their

remuneration during FY25.

As a general principle, Australian Accounting Standards require the value of share-based payments to be calculated at the time of
grant and accrued over the performance period and restriction period. The Corporations Act and Australian Accounting Standards
also require that pay and benefits be disclosed for the period that a person is an executive KMP. This may not reflect what executive
KMP received or became entitled to during FY25 (especially if they became executive KMP part way through the year).

The figures in this table have not been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. They provide additional
voluntary disclosures to the statutory remuneration tables in section 9 (which provides a breakdown of executive KMP remuneration

MBIAIBAO GZ0TZ
Jeak |eoueulq

>
in accordance with statutory requirements and Australian Accounting Standards). The treatment of the remuneration elements in this cg’
disclosure is as follows: =
o
« Fixed remuneration earned between 1 October 2024 and 30 September 2025, including superannuation.
« EIP cash illustrates the cash award for the time they were a KMP via the FY25 EIP and paid following the release of the audited
results for the year ended 30 September 2025.
« No cash was awarded under the FY25 EIP. o
c
A
> At risk 8
— remuneration H
C Fixed remuneration (realised) Total' g
3
Salary EIP Total EIP 3
O and Other  Super- EIP  rights rem- rights 8
Period fees benefitsannuation Total cash vested® uneration forfeited?
q) $000  $000 $000 $000 $000  $000 $000  $000
m Non-executive directors Io
[
ER
3 Sub total non-executive directors FY25 1,544 B 63 1,607 B - 1,607 - g %’
remuneration (realised) FY24 1,591 - 74 1,665 - - 1,665 - § Aé_
— Executive KMP g
CG G Hunt FY25 1,506 - 30 1,536 - 65 1,601 588
Managing director and CEO
( one FY24 1,456 - 28 1484 - - 1484 - oo
Re]
O B Ryan FY25 540 - 23 563 - - 563 - 83
Chief financial officer 33
m FY24 - - - - - - - - 33
o
< D Allen FY25 923 17 - 940 - - 940 - g
Group executive supply chain o
(D) P PPy Fy24 844 16 - 860 - - 860 - 3
=}
Q Former executive KMP
P Townsend FY25 239 - 9 248 - - 248 -
Chief financial officer*
| _— Fy24 802 - 28 830 - - 830 - o
[0]
o FY25 3,208 17 62 3,287 - 65 3,352 588 g
Sub total executive KMP (realised) @,
I I FY24 3,102 16 56 3,174 - - 3,174 - 3
ke
o
Total non-executive directors and FY25 4,752 17 125 4,894 B 65 4,959 588 -
executive KMP (realised) FY2a 4,693 16 130 4,839 - - 4,839 -
1 Total represents total remuneration paid in the financial period. 2
2 Other benefits includes allowances, health insurance and other costs for overseas based executives. g
3 EIP rights vested or forfeited are valued at the Nufarm share price prevailing upon the vesting or forfeiture date ($2.29 at 30 September 2025 and $3.97 at 3
30 September 2024). 8
4 P Townsend ceased being a KMP on 13 January 2025. The remuneration disclosed for FY25 reflects the period for which he was a KMP. g'
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Remuneration Report continued

6 Remuneration governance

The PSRC is responsible for reviewing and making recommendations to the Nufarm board on remuneration policies and practices
of the board, the CEO and other executive KMP. The PSRC is comprised of four independent NEDs and is tasked with ensuring that
remuneration policies and packages retain and motivate high calibre executives and have a clear relationship between company
performance and executive remuneration. The PSRC charter can be found at www.nufarm.com.

The board has progressively increased the remit of the PSRC to include a wider talent and succession agenda including a review of
Nufarm’s diversity and inclusion strategy and, more recently, responsibility for occupational health and safety.

The services of independent remuneration consultants are engaged as considered necessary. No remuneration recommendations
were requested or provided.

6.1 PSRC'’s focus during FY25
In FY25, the PSRC undertook a range of activities relating to broader people and remuneration issues including:

« Endorsing the design of the FY25 EIP.

« Undertaking the annual review of executive KMP remuneration and making recommendations to the board regarding
remuneration levels, performance outcomes, and incentive awards.

« Endorsing the design of the FY25 Senior Leadership Incentive Plans.

« Undertaking the annual review of non-executive director remuneration.

« Monitoring and reviewing of the Global Gender Pay Parity review.

« Approving performance objectives and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the CEO, executive KMP and key executives.

« Regularly engaging with proxy advisers.

« Approving the diversity and inclusion strategic priorities and targets.

«  Approving the FY25 parameters for Fixed Pay remuneration.

« Monitoring the organisational culture and employee engagement metrics including pay equity and workforce representation.

« Monitoring the implementation of the Inclusion and Diversity Policy and assessing progress in achieving the
measurable objectives

« Reviewing talent development programs and succession planning.

« Qverseeing and monitoring the identification, assessment, management, prioritisation and reporting of OHS risks that are material
to the operations and achievement of Nufarm's strategy.

6.2 Board’s approach to remuneration governance

The board measures financial performance under the applicable EIP using audited numbers. Within the remuneration framework,
under specific circumstances, the board has discretion to lapse or enforce forfeiture (or potentially cash repayment where an award
has been issued as cash or converted into cash) of any rights, options, or shares issued under the terms of the relevant plans. The
board considered all information in light of company performance, changes during the year to the scope and scale of executive
roles, individual performance and the motivation and retention of key individuals, in making remuneration decisions.

6.3 Minimum shareholding policy and share trading

The policy requires that NEDs accumulate and then hold a minimum holding of Nufarm securities equivalent to one hundred per cent
of their total pre-tax annual base fee including superannuation. In line with the Minimum Shareholding Requirement (MSR) policy and
applicable transitional arrangements, all NEDs comply with the policy or are on track to comply. Compliance is assessed using the
higher of price paid for Nufarm shares or market value at the time of assessment.

The minimum shareholding policy also applies to all executive KMP and other senior executives. The executive KMP and other
senior executives are expected to build and hold a shareholding equal to, for the CEO one hundred per cent of FAR, and for other
executives, fifty per cent of FAR or base salary. Other than for meeting tax obligations, executives are expected not to sell any Nufarm
equity until the threshold has been met. The policy applies to the CEO from FY24 and to other executives from FY25.

NEDs and executive KMP, like all officers, must comply with Nufarm'’s Security Trading Policy. Further, in accordance with the policy,
they are not permitted to enter into margin lending, short-term or speculative dealing or hedging of Nufarm securities, including any
performance rights.

7 Executive KMP contractual agreements and cessation of employment

The company has employment contracts with the executive KMP which formalise the terms and conditions of employment and are
for an indefinite term. The contracts of the CEO and other executive KMP have been structured to be compliant with the termination
benefits cap under the Corporations Act. The contracts also provide for payment of applicable statutory entitlements including when
executive KMP leave employment under different circumstances, as specified here.

The company may terminate the contract of the CEO and other executive KMP by giving suitable notice, and they may
terminate their contract by giving notice as specified below. The company may terminate an employment contract immediately
for serious misconduct.
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The table below includes details relating to executive KMP contractual terms, as well as treatment of on-foot incentive awards in the
event of termination (which are governed under the rules of the relevant award):

CEO and other executive KMP

Employment agreement Individual contract

Resignation by the executive 6-month notice period.

The board may choose to allow the executive KMP to work out their notice period or place the
executive KMP on leave or make a payment in lieu of notice at the board’s discretion.

If an executive KMP resigns (or gives notice of resignation) prior to the date on which the EIP award
is delivered, they are not entitled to an EIP award for the current performance year. All unvested
performance rights will remain intact and continue to vest under the plan rules.

Termination by the Group without cause Employment may be terminated by the company without cause on 6 months notice. If this occurs,
the executive will be entitled to receive a total payment of an amount equivalent to twelve (12)
months’ Fixed Annual Remuneration, inclusive of payment in lieu of any notice period not served (the
‘Severance Payment’).

If employment ceases prior to the date on which the EIP award is delivered, it will be pro-rated
(based on the portion of the performance period that has elapsed up until the date of termination). All
unvested performance rights will remain intact and continue to vest under the plan rules.

For personal use only

Termination by the Group with cause No notice or severance is payable. All unvested incentive awards are forfeited, including any grant for
the current year (which will not be granted).

Cessation of employment for If employment ceases prior to the date on which the EIP award is delivered, it will be pro-rated (based
other reasons on the portion of the performance period that has elapsed up until the date of termination).

All unvested performance rights will remain intact and continue to vest under the plan rules.

Board discretion The Nufarm board have an absolute discretion regarding the amount and timing of any EIP payment
made or not made to any executive KMP or other participant.

8 Non-executive director remuneration

To maintain independence and impartiality when making decisions affecting the future direction of the company, NED fees are
fixed, and NEDs do not receive any performance-related incentives. The chair receives a fee for chairing the board and does not
receive any other fees for participation on committees. Other NEDs receive a base fee and additional fees for each additional
committee chair position and membership. Non-executive directors are not entitled to any retirement benefits other than statutory
superannuation contributions.

Fees for NEDs are set at a level to attract and retain directors with the necessary skills and experience to allow the board to have

a proper understanding of, and competence to deal with, current and emerging issues for Nufarm'’s business. The board seeks to
attract directors with different skills, experience, expertise, and diversity. Additionally, when setting NED fees, the board takes into
account factors such as external market data on fees and the size and complexity of Nufarm's operations.

The board'’s policy is to position NED fees at the market median with comparably sized listed entities. The board determines the
fees payable to NEDs within the aggregate amount approved from time to time by shareholders. At the company’s 2017 AGM,
shareholders approved an aggregate of $2,000,000 per year (including superannuation costs). The total fees for FY25 remained
within the approved cap.

8.1 NED remuneration

The chair's fee and NED base fees have remained unchanged since 1 August 2018. No change is proposed for FY26.

8.2 Committee fee

There were no changes to committee fees for FY25 and none is proposed for FY26.

Fees applicable for FY25 ($) per annum Chair Member
Board 392,567 160,597
Audit and Risk committee 37,500 18,750
People, Safety, and remuneration committee 33,000 16,500
Innovation committee 27,000 13,500
Sustainability and Environment committee 27,000 13,500

Nomination committee - _

Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025 59

MSIAIBAO GZOT
snnoqy 1eak [eloueul4

souewloped HS3 IO

MBIASY |eloueUlS
pue BuneladQ

ojesodio)

JuSWS}e)S SoueUISA0h
yoday uoneisunway Hoday ,s1010811Q

SluUBWeleIS [BIOUBUIL



Remuneration Report continued

9 Statutory remuneration tables

9.1NEDs

Share based

Post- payments
Short term employment (SBP) Total
Cash Total Otherlong Term- Equity
Salary bonus Other short term Super- ination settled Total rem-
Period and fees (vested) benefits' term benefits? annuation benefits expenses uneration
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Non-executive directors
FY25 363 - - 363 = 30 - - 393
J Gillam
Chair FY24 364 - - 364 - 28 - - 392
FY25 185 - - 185 - 21 - - 206
A Gartmann
>\ Director FY24 187 - - 187 - 21 - - 208
C FY25 204 - - 204 - - - = 204
D Jones
O Director FY24 205 - - 205 - - - - 205
FY25 207 - - 207 - 6 - - 213
GJ M McDonald
Director FY24 206 - - 206 - 9 - - 215
m FY25 188 - - 188 - - - - 188
; A Percy
Director FY24 188 - - 188 - - - - 188
I
FY25 206 - - 206 - 6 - - 212
m L Saint
C Director FY24 198 - - 198 - 16 - - 214
FY25 191 - - 191 - - - - 191
O F Tripodi
m Director FY24 191 - - 191 - - - - 191
| Former non-executive directors
m FY25 - - - - - - - - -
Q G Davis
Director® FY24 27 - - 27 - - - - 27
| —_— FY25 - - - - - - - - -
P Margin
O Director* FY24 25 - - 25 - - - - 25
u Sub total non- FY25 1,544 - - 1,544 - 63 - - 1,607
executive directors
remuneration FY24 1,591 - - 1,591 - 74 - - 1,665

1 Other benefits includes movements in annual leave accrual. For overseas based executives other benefits include allowances health insurance and other costs.
A negative balance may appear where the leave accrual has decreased from the prior year.

2 Other long term includes movement in long service leave provisions. A negative balance may appear where the leave accrual has decreased from the prior year.

3 G Davis ceased being a director on 15 November 2023.

4 P Margin ceased being a director on 15 November 2023.
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9.2 Executive KMP
Share based
Post- payments
Short term employment (SBP) Total
Cash Total Otherlong Term- Equity
Salary bonus Other short term Super- ination settled Total Rem-
Period and fees (vested) benefits term benefits? annuation benefits expenses? uneration
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Executive KMP
G Hunt FY25 1,506 - 92 1,598 54 30 - 554 2,236
Managing
director and
CEO* FY24 1,456 - 58 1514 53 28 - 701 2,296
B Ryan FY25 540 - 41 581 13 23 - 71 688
Chief financial
officer FY24 - - - - - - - - -
D Allen FY25 923 - 17 940 - - - 224 1,164
Group executive
supply chain FY24 844 - 16 860 - - - 165 1,025
Former
executive KMP
P Townsend FY25 239 - (8) 231 8 9 - 357 605
Chief financial
officer® FY24 802 - 8 810 23 28 - 370 1,231
Sub total FY25 3,208 - 142 3,350 75 62 - 1,206 4,693
executive KMP
remuneration FY24 3,102 - 82 3,184 76 56 - 1,236 4,552
Total non- FY25 4,752 - 142 4,894 75 125 - 1,206 6,300
executive
directors and
executive KMP
remuneration FY24 4,693 - 82 4,775 76 130 - 1,236 6,217

1 Other benefits includes movements in annual leave accrual. For overseas based executives other benefits include allowances, health insurance and other costs.

A negative balance may appear where the leave accrual has decreased from the prior year.
2 Other long term includes movement in long service leave provisions. A negative balance may appear where the leave accrual has decreased from the prior year.
3 Equity-settled expenses for G Hunt in FY24 includes a fair value true-up on FY22 and FY23 EIP awards as they were formally approved and granted at the AGM

on 1February 2024.

4 Equity-settled expenses for G Hunt includes a fair value true-up on the FY24 EIP award as it was formally approved and granted at the AGM on 4 February 2025.

5 P Townsend ceased being a KMP on 13 January 2025. The remuneration disclosed for FY25 reflects the period for which he was a KMP.

Percentage of
remuneration

SBP expense as

a proportion of

Period performance based total remuneration
% %
Executive KMP
G Hunt FY25 25% 25%
Managing director and CEO Fyoa 31% 31%
B Ryan FY25 10% 10%
Chief financial officer Fyoa 0% 0%
D Allen FY25 19% 19%
Group executive supply chain Fyo4 16% 16%
Former executive KMP
P Townsend FY25 59% 59%
Chief financial officer Fyoa 30% 30%
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Remuneration Report continued

10 Equity instruments held by directors and disclosed executives
The following tables show the number of:

« options/performance rights over ordinary shares in the company,
« right to deferred shares granted under previous years STl schemes, and
« shares in the company

that were held during the financial year by disclosed executives and non-executive directors of the group, including their close family
members and entities related to them. Equity instruments in relation to the FY25 EIP will be granted following the release of the FY25
audited financial statements.

All equity transactions with key management personnel other than those arising from the exercise of remuneration options
have been entered into under terms and conditions no more favourable than those the entity would have adopted if dealing at
arm's length.

10.1 Executive KMP rights over ordinary shares in Nufarm Limited

Number
Number of rights Number Number of
Number of of rights Number changed Number of of rights  rights vested Value at
> rights held at granted Number of rights dueto rights held at vested at date of
— 30 September asrem- ofrights foreited other 30 September during 30 September forfeiture
C Scheme 2024 uneration exercised orlapsed reasons' 2025 FY25 20252 $
O Executive KMP
G Hunt EIP rights 467,897 90,982 - (256,597) - 302,282 28,194 28,194 587,607
G) Managing
director and .
m CEO® LTI rights - - - - - - - - -
3 B Ryan
Chief financial EIP rights - - - - - - - - -
officer
CG D Allen
Group executive EIP rights 81,842 37,254 - - - 119,096 - - -
! supply chain
O Former executive KMP
m P Townsend EIP rights 219,479 45,819 - - (265,298) - - - -
! Chief financial
q) officer LTI rights - - - - - - - - -
Total current EIP rights 769,218 174,055 - (256,597) (265,298) 421,378 28,194 28,194 587,607
Q and former
executive .
KMPs LTl rights - - - - - - - - -
O Non-KMP officers
I I K Hall EIP rights 54,501 23,847 (21,296) - - 57,052 29,245 29,245 -
Company
secretary LTI rights - 77,945 77,945
Total executive
KMP and non- 823,719 275,847 (21,296) (256,597) (265,298) 556,375 57,439 57,439 587,607

KMP officers

1 P Townsend ceased being a KMP on 13 January 2025. The rights change for P Townsend reflects ceasing to be a KMP as of his effective date.
2 All rights that are vested are exercisable.
3 Rights granted to G Hunt during the year related to 2024 EIP which were approved by shareholders at the AGM on the 4 February 2025.
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10.2 Equity remuneration analysis

Details and the vesting profile of performance rights awarded as remuneration to each KMP is detailed below. The maximum value of
performance rights yet to vest is determined based on the amount of the grant date fair value. The minimum value of share rights yet

to vest is nil since the shares will be forfeited if the vesting conditions are not met.

Maximum value

For personal use only

Scheme Number of rights Value ($) Grant Date Vesting Date vet to vest ($)
FY25 EIP? - - n/a? n/a? -
G Hunt FY24 EIP 90,982 266,569 1Feb 2025 30 Sep 2027 128,804
Managing director and CEO FY23 EIP 183,106 779,079 1Feb 2024 30 Sep 2026 194,770
FY22 EIP 284,791 1,159,099 1Feb 2024 30 Sep 2025 -
grié??inancial officer FY25 EIP? 103,092 282,429 TBC! 30 Sep 2028 211,822
FY25 EIP? 142,958 280,680 TBC* 30 Sep 2028 210,510
D Allen FY24 EIP 37,254 122,938 14 Nov 2025 30 Sep 2027 62,217
Group executive supply chain FY23 EIP RRG 21,625 123,046 1 Mar 2024 30 Sep 2026 30,762
FY23 EIP 60,217 237,917 8 Dec 2023 30 Sep 2026 59,479
Former executive KMP
FY25 EIP? n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
FY24 EIP 45819 151,203 14 Nov 2025 30 Sep 2027 75786
PN oot FY23 EIP RRG 25,951 147,661 1Mar 2024 30 Sep 2026 36,915
FY23 EIP 74,624 294,839 8 Dec 2023 30 Sep 2026 73,710
FY22 EIP 118,904 675,375 24 Nov 2022 30 Sep 2025 -

1 The maximum value of share rights yet to vest is determined based on the amount of the grant date fair value that is yet to be expensed.
2 FY25 EIP has been based upon the estimated number of rights using a 30 September share price and grant date. Refer to section 5.1.
3 As the CEO has voluntarily elected to forgo his FY25 EIP award, there will be no rights granted.

4 FY25 EIP rights for B Ryan and D Allen will be granted following release of the group's FY25 results.

5 P Townsend ceased being a KMP on 13 January 2025, and was ineligible to participate in the FY25 EIP program.

10.3 Non-executive director rights over ordinary shares in Nufarm Limited

Nufarm’s NED rights (NED rights) plan commenced in 2021. Under the terms of this plan, NEDs may allocate a fixed portion of their
remuneration to be used to purchase NED rights. In accordance with Nufarm’s Security Trading Policy, the rights will vest every
6 months on the second business day following the date in which Nufarm publicly releases its half-yearly and annual financial
statements. All vested rights are converted into ordinary shares via on market purchase and are subject to restrictions in accordance
with the plan rules. As a fee sacrifice arrangement, there are no performance obligations attached to the NED rights nor restricted
shares. Changes in price of the NED rights and restricted shares are not considered to be remuneration.

The first six-monthly tranche of FY25 NED rights issued under the plan vested into shares in May 2025. Rights issued under the
second tranche are scheduled to vest in November 2025. These rights, as well as those that subsequently convert to restricted
shares, combine to form part of the NED's Minimum Shareholding Requirement (MSR). Shares are restricted for a minimum of 3
years. The movement during the reporting period in the number of rights for each NED, including their related parties, is set out in the

table below:

Balance as at Vested and Balance as at
30 September Rights acquired converted Forfeited Net change other 30 September
2024 to shares’ 2025

Non-executive directors
J Gillam - - - -
A Gartmann - - - -
D Jones E - - =
M McDonald - - - -
A Percy - - - -
L Saint 3,847 9,938 (8,816) 4,969
F Tripodi - - - -
Total 3,847 9,938 (8,816) 4,969

1 This represents the NED rights that have vested and subsequently been converted to ordinary shares.
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Remuneration Report continued

Shares in Nufarm Limited held by non-executive directors and executive KMP

Balance as at

For personal use only

Balance as at Grant_ed On exercise Net 30 September

10ctober 2024  as remuneration of rights change other 2025
Non-executive directors
J Gillam 260,000 - - - 260,000
A Gartmann 18,450 - - 12,850 31,300
D Jones 85,855 - - 80,000 165,855
M McDonald 45,179 - - - 45,179
A Percy - - - 19,000 19,000
L Saint 38,036 - 8,816 - 46,852
F Tripodi - - - 13,270 138,270
Executive KMP
G Hunt 1,034,675 - - 50,027 1,084,702
B Ryan - - - =
D Allen 12,469 - 692 22,434 35,596
Former executive KMP
P Townsend? 139,002 - (83,537) 55,465
Total 1,633,666 - 9,508 114,044 1,757,218

1 This represents the conversion of vested rights under the employee Nushare Share Plan into unrestricted ordinary shares.
2 P Townsend ceased being a KMP on 13 January 2025.

Shares issued as a result of the exercise of options

There were nil (2024 nil) shares issued as a result of the exercise of options during the year.

Unissued shares under option

There are nil (2024 nil) unissued shares under option.
11 Other statutory disclosures

Loans to key management personnel

There were no loans between executive KMP (or their related parties) and the company or any of its subsidiaries at 30 September
2025 (2024 Nil).

Other key management personnel transactions with the company or its controlled entities

Apart from the details disclosed in this note or annual financial statements, no director has entered into a material contract with the
company or entities in the group since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving director's
interest existing at year-end.

For disclosure, during year ended 30 September 2025, Medisup Securities Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the group)
acquired shares in Enko Chem from Dr David Jones, a non-executive director of the group. The group obtained an independent
external valuation to ascertain an arms-length value for transacting the shares. The acquisition value of the shares was approximately
$5.264 million (US$3.274 million), and all terms and conditions of the transaction were considered to be no more favourable than
those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-director related entities on an
arms-length basis. The share transfer and subsequent payment was made on the 15th of January 2025, with no balances owing as
of 30 September 2025.
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A number of key management personnel, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities that result in them having control or
significant influence over the financial or operating policies of those entities. A number of these entities transacted with the company
or its subsidiaries in the reporting period. The terms and conditions of the transactions with management personnel and their related
parties were no more favourable than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions
to unrelated entities on an arms-length basis.

From time to time, key management personnel of the company or its controlled entities, or their related entities, may purchase
goods from the group. These purchases are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other group employees or
customers and are trivial or domestic in nature.

This report has been made in accordance with a resolution of directors.

John Gillam Greg Hunt
Director Director

Melbourne, 19 November 2025
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

KPMG

L6ad Auditor's Independence Declaration under
Section s0/G of the Gorporations Act 2001

To the Directors of Nufarm Limited

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of Nufarm Limited for the
financial year ended 30 September 2025 there have been:

i no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

ii. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

AR ﬁ

KPMG Vicky Carlson
Partner
Melbourne
19 November 2025

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights
reserved. The KPMG name and logo are trademarks used under license by the independent member firms of the
KPMG global organisation. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2025
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income

For the year ended 30 September

2025 2024

Note $000 $000
Revenue 7 3,443,379 3,345,909
Cost of sales (2,543,392) (2,5605,540)
Gross profit 899,987 840,369
Other income 7 4,336 27,210
Sales, marketing and distribution expenses (661,856) (550,779)
General and administrative expenses (246,870) (197,578)
Research and development expenses (69,317) (54,482)
Operating profits/(losses) (73,720) 64,740
Share of net profits/(losses) of equity accounted investees 16 (283) (1,809)
Financial income 10 6,719 6,499
Financial expenses excluding foreign exchange gains/(losses) 10 (101,673) (105,252)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 10 (6,347) (9,435)
Net financial expenses 10 (108,020) (114,687)
Net financing costs 10 (101,301) (108,188)
Profit/(loss) before income tax (175,304) (45,257)
Income tax benefit/(expense) 11 9,985 39,659
Profit/(loss) for the period (165,319) (5,598)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the group (165,319) (5,598)

2025 2024

Note $000 $000
Profit/(loss) for the period (165,319) (5,598)
Other comprehensive income
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or l0ss:
Currency translation on foreign subsidiaries closed, transferred to profit/(loss) - 590
Foreign exchange translation differences for foreign operations 70,868 (42,708)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedge instruments 30 (27)
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Gains/(losses) due to changes in fair value of other investments 1,994 (1,644)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 6,840 1,924
Other comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period, net of income tax 79,732 (41,865)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period (85,587) (47,463)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the group (85,587) (47,463)
Earnings per share
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 26 (48.8) (6.8)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share 26 (48.7) (6.8)

The amounts recognised directly in equity are disclosed net of tax.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the attached notes.
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Consolidated balance sheet
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As at 30 September n
2025 2024
Note $000 $000 N T
Q5
N ©
o>
Current assets 28
5
Cash and cash equivalents 12 474,718 463,563 éi‘?
Trade and other receivables 13 628,054 667,691
Inventories 14 1,175,302 1,166,007
Current tax assets 15 11,344 15,426
Total current assets 2,289,418 2,312,687
>
o
o
Non-current assets E»
o
Trade and other receivables 13 28,176 16,230
Investments in equity accounted investees 16 875 2,412
Other investments 17 71,935 61,254
Deferred tax assets 15 252,791 206,625 S
m
> Property, plant and equipment 18 723,095 629,221 I
e
f— Intangible assets 19 1,176,853 1,198,985 %
C Total non-current assets 2,253,725 2,114,727 §
3
O TOTAL ASSETS 4,543,143 4,427,414 3
m Current liabilities
m Trade and other payables 20 914,494 881,594 gg
[
Loans and borrowings 21 265,128 82,011 § 3
[Si=1
3 Employee benefits 22 34,327 32,447 3?
o
— Current tax payable 15 14,562 16,571 2
CG Provisions 24 22,286 11,044
Total current liabilities 1,250,797 1,023,667
-
O Non-current liabilities $8
0 o
N Payables 20 16,676 22,211 3
- Loans and borrowings 21 1,033,791 1,016,311 g
3
m Deferred tax liabilities 15 105,149 112,870 o
( ) Employee benefits 22 26,253 41,184
Total non-current liabilities 1,181,869 1,192,576
o TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,432,666 2,216,243 %
(9]
O NET ASSETS 2,110,477 2,211,171 g
LL ;
Equity g
Share capital 1,850,605 1,847,855
Reserves 162,129 85,434
Retained earnings / (accumulated losses) (149,189) 30,950 F
3
Equity attributable to equity holders §
of the group 1,863,545 1,964,239 z
3
Other securities 246,932 246,932 é?
TOTAL EQUITY 2,110477 2,211,171 a
The consolidated balance sheet is to be read in conjunction with the attached notes. .
7
3
o
@
2
[}
3
El
w
—



Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 September

2025 2024

Note $000 $000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the period - after tax (165,319) (5,598)
Adjustments for:
Tax expense/(benefit) (9,985) (39,659)
Net finance expense 10 101,301 108,188
Depreciation & amortisation 8 221971 212,188
Inventory write down 8 105,615 1,208
Share of (profits)/losses of associates net of tax 16 283 1,809
Impairment of assets 8 69,545 4515
(Gain)/loss on disposal of non-core assets 6 - (23,431)
Other (136) 2,002
Movements in working capital and other items:

Z (Increase)/decrease in receivables 31,255 (3,678)
C (Increase)/decrease in inventories (114,910) 296,794
O Increase/(decrease) in payables 44,833 71,198

Exchange rate change on foreign controlled entities working capital items 23,366 (45,851)
G) Cash generated from operations 307,819 579,685
m Interest received 6,719 6,499
3 Dividends received = -

Interest paid (102,472) (97,463)

f— Taxes paid (49,301) (16,330)
CG Net operating cash flows 6 162,765 472,391
C Cash flows from investing activities
o Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 586 46,320
m Payments for property, plant and equipment (121,593) (127,192)
S Payments for other investments, associates or joint ventures (7,836) (816)
m Payments for acquired intangibles and major product development expenditure (116,770) (125,769)
O Net investing cash flows 6 (245,613) (207,457)
| Cash flows from financing activities
o Debt establishment transaction costs 21 (1,966) (1,200)

LL Proceeds from borrowings 21 655,998 410,727

Repayment of borrowings 21 (522,426) (534,750)
Lease liability payments 21 (26,075) (22,265)
Distribution to other securities holders 25 (21,660) (20,333)
Dividends paid 25 - (32,944)
Net financing cash flows 6 83,871 (200,765)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,023 64,169
Cash at the beginning of the period 463,563 410,957
Exchange rate fluctuations on foreign cash balances 10,132 (11,563)
Cash and cash equivalents at period end date 12 474,718 463,563

The consolidated statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the attached notes.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 September

Attributable to equity holders of the group

Retained
Capital earnings /

Share Translation profit Other (accumula- Other

capital reserve reserve reserve  ted losses) Total  securities Total equity
Consolidated $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 October 2023 1,840,609 81,037 33,627 18,348 89,337 2,062,958 246,932 2,309,890
Profit/(loss) for the period from
continuing operations - - - - (5,598) (5,598) - (5,598)
Other comprehensive income - -
Currency translation on foreign
subsidiaries closed, transferred to
profit/(loss) - 590 - - - 590 - 590
Foreign exchange translation differences - (42,708) - - - (42,708) - (42,708)
Gains/(losses) on hedge instruments
taken to equity - - - (27) - (27) - (27)
Gains/(losses) due to changes in fair value
of other investments - - - (1,644) - (1,644) - (1,644)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
benefit plans - - - - 1,924 1,924 - 1,924
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for
the period - (42,118) - (1,671) (3,674) (47,463) - (47,463)
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Employee share award entitlements and
share issuances 5,810 - - (3,789) - 2,021 - 2,021
Dividends paid to shareholders - - - - (34,380) (34,380) - (34,380)
Dividend reinvestment plan 1,436 - - - - 1,436 - 1,436
Distributions to other security holders - - - - (20,333) (20,333) - (20,333)
Balance at 30 September 2024 1,847,855 38,919 33,627 12,888 30,950 1,964,239 246,932 2,211,171

Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025

n

MBIAIBAO GZOZ
souewloped HS3 INO sn noqy 1eak |eloueul4

MBIADY |eloueul
pue Bunesado

JuBWale]S 9oUBUIBA0D
1loday ,sl010241q ojesodio)

1ioday uonessunway

sjuawaje;s [eloueuly



For personal use only

Consolidated statement of changes in equity continued

For the year ended 30 September

Attributable to equity holders of the group

Retained
Capital earnings /

Share Translation profit Other (accumula- Other

capital reserve reserve reserve  ted losses) Total  securities Total equity
Consolidated $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 October 2024 1,847,855 38,919 33,627 12,888 30,950 1,964,239 246,932 2,211,171
Profit/(loss) for the period from
continuing operations - - - - (165,319) (165,319) - (165,319)
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation on foreign
subsidiaries closed, transferred to
profit/(loss) - - - = - - . _
Foreign exchange translation differences - 70,868 - - - 70,868 - 70,868
Gains/(losses) on hedge instruments
taken to equity - - - 30 - 30 - 30
Gains/(losses) due to changes in fair value
of other investments - - - 1,994 - 1,994 - 1,994
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
benefit plans - - - - 6,840 6,840 - 6,840
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for
the period - 70,868 - 2,024 (158,479 (85,587) - (85,587)
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Employee share award entitlements and
share issuances 2,750 - - 3,803 - 6,553 - 6,553
Dividends paid to shareholders - - - - - - - -
Dividend reinvestment plan - - - - - - - -
Distributions to other security holders - - - - (21,660) (21,660) - (21,660)
Balance at 30 September 2025 1,850,605 109,787 33,627 18,715 (149,189) 1,863,545 246,932 2,110,477

The amounts recognised directly in equity are disclosed net of tax.

The consolidated statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the attached notes.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 30 September

1Reporting entity

Nufarm Limited (the ‘company’) is a company limited by shares
and domiciled in Australia that is listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange. The address of the company'’s registered
office is 103-105 Pipe Road, Laverton North, Victoria, 3026.
The consolidated financial statements of the company as at
and for the year ended 2025 comprise the company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the ‘group’ and individually
as ‘group entities’) and the group’s interest in associates and
jointly controlled entities.

The group is a for-profit entity and is primarily involved in

the manufacture and sale of crop protection products and
proprietary seed technologies used by farmers to both grow
and protect crops from damage caused by weeds, pests and
disease. Operating profits/ (losses) may fluctuate throughout
the year due to seasonality inherent within the crop protection
and seed technology markets, and the geography of operations.

2 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements are general purpose
financial statements which have been prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) issued by

the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the
Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial statements
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Changes to significant accounting policies are described in
note 3.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue
by the board on 19 November 2025.

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

on the historical cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments which are measured at fair value, and defined
benefit fund obligations that are measured as the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the
fair value of the pension plan’s assets. The methods used to
measure fair values are discussed further in note 4.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Australian dollars, which is the company'’s functional and
presentation currency. The company is of a kind referred
to in ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/ Director’s
Reports) Instrument 2016/191 and, in accordance with that
Instrument, all financial information presented in Australian
dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
unless otherwise stated.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts

of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results

may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty
and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant impact on the amount recognised in
the financial statements are described below.

(i) Impairment testing

The group determines whether goodwill and intangibles with
indefinite useful lives are impaired on an annual basis or at each
reporting date if required, using the higher of a value in use

(VIU) or a fair value less cost to dispose (FVLCD) methodology to
estimate the recoverable amount of cash generating units.

VIU is determined as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset in its present form and its eventual disposal.

VIU is determined by applying assumptions specific to

the group’s continued use and cannot consider future
development. The determination of recoverable value often
requires the estimation and discounting of future cash flows
which is based on information available at balance date such as
expected revenues from products, the return on assets, future
costs, growth rates, applicable discount rates and useful lives.

FVLCD is an estimate of the amount that a market participant
would pay for an asset or Cash Generating Unit (CGU), less

the cost to dispose. Fair value is generally determined using
independent market assumptions to calculate the present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset, and its eventual sale where a
market participant may take a consistent view. Cash flows are
discounted using an appropriate discount rate to arrive at a

net present value of the asset which is compared against the
asset’s carrying value.

These estimates are subject to risk and uncertainty that may
be beyond the control of the group, hence there is a possibility
that changes in circumstances will materially alter projections,
which may impact the recoverable amount of assets at each
reporting date.

Other non-current assets are also assessed for impairment
indicators. Refer to note 19 for key assumptions made in
determining the recoverable amounts of the CGUs.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

(ii) Income taxes

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it

is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the assets can be utilised. Judgement is required by

the group to determine the likely timing and the level of

future taxable income. The group assesses the recoverability of
recognised and unrecognised deferred taxes including losses
in Australia and overseas incorporating assumptions including
expected revenues from products, the return on assets, future
costs, growth rates and useful lives.

Deferred tax liabilities arising from temporary differences in
investments, caused principally by retained earnings held in
foreign tax jurisdictions, are recognised unless repatriation of
retained earnings can be controlled and are not expected to
occur in the foreseeable future.

(iii) Defined benefit plans

A liability in respect of defined benefit pension plans is
recognised in the balance sheet, and is measured as the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
date less the fair value of the pension plan's assets. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is based on
expected future payments which arise from membership of the
fund at the reporting date, calculated annually by independent
actuaries and requires the exercise of judgement in relation to
assumptions for expected future salary levels, long term price
inflation and bond rates, experience of employee departures
and periods of service. Refer to note 22 for details of the

key assumptions used in determining the accounting for
these plans.

(iv) Working capital

In the course of normal trading activities, the group uses
judgement in establishing the carrying value of various
elements of working capital, which is principally inventories
and trade receivables. Judgement is required to estimate the
provision for obsolete or slow moving inventories and bad and
doubtful receivables. In estimating the provision for obsolete or
slow moving inventories, the group considers the net realisable

value of inventory using estimated market price less cost to sell.

In estimating the provision for bad and doubtful receivables,
the group measures the expected credit losses (ECLs) using
key assumptions to determine a probability weighted basis
including the geographical location's specific circumstances.

Actual expenses in future periods may be different from the
provisions established and any such differences would impact
future earnings of the group.

(v) Capitalised development costs

Development activities involve a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved products and
processes, or for extended use of existing products and
processes. Development expenditure is capitalised only if
development costs can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible, future
economic benefits are probable and the group has sufficient
resources to complete development and to use or sell

the asset.
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Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases
the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates.

The criteria above are derived from estimates and judgements
including supply and demand forecasts, growth rates, discount
rates, and regulatory considerations that are used in valuation
modelling. Estimates and assumptions may change as new
information becomes available, including changes to estimates
related to the useful life of the intangible assets which

are accounted for prospectively and may affect amortisation
rates and intangible asset carrying values. If, after having
commenced the development activity, a judgement is made
that the intangible asset is impaired, the appropriate amount will
be recognised in profit or loss.

(vi) Intellectual property

Intellectual property consists of product registrations, product
access rights, copyright, patents, trademarks, task force
expenditure, product distribution rights and product licences
acquired from third parties. The group assesses intellectual
property to have a finite life. Changes to estimates related

to the useful life of intellectual property are accounted for
prospectively and may affect amortisation rates and intangible
asset carrying values.

(vii) Revenue from contracts with customers

Estimates are used by the group in determining the transaction
price, including variable consideration, for long-term licensing
contracts with customers, along with the stand-alone selling
price for distinct performance obligations within specific
contracts, used in the allocation of the transaction price to
performance obligations within individual contracts. Using the
expected value method or the most likely value method, the
variable consideration is estimated over the life of the contracts,
whereby the group considers third party projections on grain
commodity prices, biofuel pricing, emissions pricing, available
acreage, and other market inputs. The group applies judgement
in applying constraints to the transaction price considering how
the variable consideration is linked to factors within the control
of the group, and factors related to market forces.

The group estimates, using the expected cost plus margin
approach and the residual approach, how the transaction price
is allocated to distinct performance obligations within specific
contracts. The expected cost plus margin approach includes
estimates on the cost drivers to deliver services to customers
over the life of the contract. The group applies judgement,
based on existing market conditions and service delivery costs,
in estimating the long term cost to deliver the relevant service
performance obligations.

(e) Reclassification

The comparative 2024 operating segment disclosures have
been restated to reflect the change in operating segments for
the FY25 year. Refer to note 5 for further information.
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3 Material accounting policy information

Except as described below, the group’s accounting policies
have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements, and have been applied
consistently by group entities.

(a) Impact of new accounting standards and interpretation
and changes in accounting policies

(i) New and amended accounting standards and
interpretations adopted by the group

In the current year, the group has adopted new and revised
Standards and Interpretations issued by the AASB that are
relevant to its operations and effective for the current financial
reporting period. Their adoption however, has not had a material
impact on the initial recognition or measurement of amounts
reported in these financial statements:

« AASB 2022-5 - Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback -
Amendments to IFRS 16

« AASB 2023-1- Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards - Supplier Finance Arrangements

« AASB 2023-3 - Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards - Disclosure of Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants: Tier 2

(ii) New and revised accounting standards and interpretations
on issue but not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 October 2025 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. Those which may be
relevant to the group are set out below:

« AASB 18 - Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements

The AASB has adopted the International Sustainability
Standards Board (ISSB) inaugural sustainability
reporting disclosures:

« AASB S1 - General Requirements for Disclosure of
Sustainability-related Financial Information
« AASB S2 - Climate-related Disclosures

The group has not early adopted these standards.
(b) Basis of consolidation

(i) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on which
control is transferred to the group. The group controls an entity
when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control,
the group takes into consideration potential voting rights that
currently are exercisable.

The group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

« the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

« the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree; plus if the business combination is achieved
in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the
acquiree; less

« the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related
to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts
are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated
with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the group

incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed
as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration

is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is
accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in
profit or loss.

(ii) Investments in equity accounted investees

The group'’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise
interests in associates and joint ventures. Associates are those
entities in which the group has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over the financial and operating policies.
A joint venture is an arrangement in which the group has joint
control, whereby the group has rights to the net assets of the
arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for
its liabilities.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method and are initially recognised

at cost, which includes transaction costs. The group’'s
investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of
any accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the consolidated financial statements include

the group'’s share of the income and expenses and equity
movements of the investees after adjustments to align the
accounting policies of the investees with those of the group,
until the date on which significant influence or joint control
ceases. On loss of significant influence the investment is no
longer equity-accounted and is revalued to fair value.

Where the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy described in
note 3(i).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

(c) Foreign currency

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the
respective functional currencies of group entities at exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are re-translated to the functional currency at the foreign
exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at

fair value are re-translated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on re-translation are
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency gains and losses are included in
net financing costs.

(ii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition,

are translated to Australian dollars at exchange rates at the
reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations
are translated to Australian dollars at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a translation
reserve except to the extent that the translation difference is
allocated to NCI. When a foreign operation is disposed of, in
part or in full, the relevant amount in the translation reserve
is transferred to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss

on disposal.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely in the
foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising
from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net
investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and are presented within equity in the
translation reserve.

(d) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as

either measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI), or fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL).
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The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables, the group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction
costs on trade date at which the group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component are measured
at the transaction price determined under AASB 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers. Refer to note 3(m).

The group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers

the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any
interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained
by the group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the
group has the legal right to offset the amounts and intends
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Financial assets at amortised cost

This category is the most relevant to the group. Financial
assets are measured at amortised cost if both of the following
conditions are met and is not designated as FVTPL:

« The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The group's financial assets at amortised cost includes
trade receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through OC/ (FVOCI) -

equity instruments

Upon initial recognition, the group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCl when they meet the
definition of equity under AASB 132 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in
the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, except when the group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, gains are recorded in OCI. The key financial asset
held by the group at FVOCI relates to our investment in Enko
Chem, please refer to note 17 other investments.
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(ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities

At initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified at FVTPL,
loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate. All financial
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The group initially recognises debt securities and subordinated
liabilities on the date they are originated. All other financial
liabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date at which
the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument.

The group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired. Financial
assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in
the balance sheet when, and only when, the group has the legal
right to offset the amounts and intends to settle on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. This includes trade payables that represent liabilities
for goods and services provided to the group prior to the end of
the period which are unpaid.

The group has the following non-derivative financial liabilities:
loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts and trade and
other payables.

(iii) Other securities

Nufarm step-up securities

The Nufarm step-up securities (NSS) are classified as non-
controlling equity instruments as they are issued by a
subsidiary. Distributions thereon are recognised as distributions
within equity, with the tax benefit on the distribution recognised
in profit or loss. Further details can be found in note 25. Under
certain circumstances, an NSS holder may request to redeem
the NSS.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition
for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and
capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral
to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as
part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and are recognised net in profit or loss.

(i) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item

if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the group and its cost can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part

is derecognised. The costs of day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(i) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which
is the cost of an asset, less its residual value. Depreciation

is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property,
plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the asset.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods
are as follows:

« buildings 15-50 years
« leasehold improvements 5years
« plant and equipment 10-15 years
« motor vehicles 5 years
« computer equipment 3years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reassessed at each reporting date.

(f) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of business
combinations is included in intangible assets. Subsequent

to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. In respect of equity-
accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment, and an
impairment loss on such an investment is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the equity-accounted investee.

(ii) Intellectual property

Intellectual property consists of product registrations, product
access rights, copyright, patents, trademarks, task force
expenditure, product distribution rights and product licences
acquired from third parties. Intellectual property is assessed to
have a finite life. Finite life intellectual property is amortised
over its useful life but not longer than 30 years. Intellectual
property intangibles acquired by the group are measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is
expensed when incurred.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

(iii) Computer software

Computer software the group controls, is measured initially

at acquisition cost or costs incurred to develop the asset.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition or development of the software. Software assets
acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair

value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
computer software with finite useful lives are carried at cost less

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

They are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.

Configuration and customisation costs incurred in cloud
computing arrangements, including Software-as-a-Service
(SaaS) arrangements, are recognised as an operating expense.
The exception is where the group has the power to obtain the
future economic benefits flowing from the underlying resource
and to restrict the access of others to those benefits — under
this scenario, an intangible asset that the group controls is
created and therefore capitalised.

(iv) Research and development

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and
understanding, is recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Development activities involve a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved products and
processes, or for extended use of existing products and
processes. Development expenditure is capitalised only if
development costs can be measured reliably, the product

or process is technically and commercially feasible, future
economic benefits are probable and the group has sufficient
resources to complete development and to use or sell

the asset. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of
materials, direct labour and overhead costs that are directly
attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use and
capitalised borrowing costs. Development expenditure that
does not meet the above criteria is recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

(v) Subsequent expenditure

Subseqguent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases
the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or
loss when incurred.

(vi) Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, less its
residual value. With the exception of goodwill, intangibles with
a finite life are amortised on a straight-line basis in profit and
loss over the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets
from the date that they are available for use, since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful life for intangible assets with a finite life, for the

current and comparative periods, are as follows:
« capitalised development costs 5 to 30 years

over the useful life and not more
than 30 years

« intellectual property

« computer software 3tob5years
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Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reassessed at each reporting date.

(g) Leases

The group's material judgements with respect to leases held
across the group are:

Incremental borrowing rate

The group determines its incremental borrowing rate by
obtaining interest rates from various external financing sources
and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the
lease and type of the asset leased. Adjustments made relate to
the standalone borrowing capacity of entities within the group,
in addition to financing rates applicable in the geographical
regions in which it operates.

Determining the lease term

The lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease,
together with both:

(@) periods covered by an option to extend the lease, if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(b) periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

The lease term is revised if there is a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease.

Short term/low value leases

Leases with a short term (duration of a year or less at the time of
commencement) and leases which are low value are expensed
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(h) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-

out principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring

the inventories, production or conversion costs and other

costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work

in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads
based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses. The group considers Al (active ingredient)
pricing and historical market trends in its determination of
estimated selling price expected for the sale of inventories.

(i) Impairment

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

The group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(ECLs) for all financial assets at amortised cost and debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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For trade receivables, the group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The group considers a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by
the group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows

Objective evidence of impairment includes default or
delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor will enter
bankruptcy, and, in the case of an investment in an equity
security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised
cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance

is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

(ii) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial assets,
other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each
reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs

of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
‘cash-generating unit’). The goodwill acquired in a business
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated
to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of

an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to
reduce the carrying amount of other assets in the uniton a
pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In
respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an
investment in an associate or joint venture is not recognised
separately, and therefore is not tested for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire amount of the investment in an
associate or joint venture is tested for impairment as a single
asset when there is objective evidence that the investment in
an associate or joint venture may be impaired.

Refer to use of estimates and judgements note 2 and
intangibles note 19 for further information.

(j) Assets held for sale

Assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities,
that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale rather
than continuing use are classified as held for sale. Immediately
before classification as held for sale, the assets, or components
of a disposal group, are remeasured in accordance with the
group's accounting policies. Thereafter generally the assets,

or disposal group, are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment loss

on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to
the remaining assets and liabilities on a pro-rata basis, except
that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred
tax assets and employee benefit assets, which continue to be
measured in accordance with the group’s accounting policies.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and
subsequent gains or losses on remeasurement are recognised
in profit or loss. Gains are not recognised in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss.

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment once
classified as held for sale or distribution are not amortised or
depreciated. In addition, equity accounting of equity accounted
investees ceases once classified as held for sale or distribution.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

(k) Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit

plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into

a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee
benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which
services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.

(i) Defined benefit plans

The group'’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair
value of any assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed
annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds
from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To
calculate the present value economic benefits, consideration is
given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which
comprises actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
asset (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if
any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income (OCI). The group determines the net
interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability
(asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset),
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and
benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit

and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan

is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The group recognises gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when

the group is demonstrably committed, without a realistic
possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either
terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or
to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made

to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for
voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if the
group has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it
is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable
more than twelve months after the reporting period, then they
are discounted to their present value.

Refer to note 24 for details around restructuring provisions that
were recognised during the year.
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(I) Provisions

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the group

has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and

the restructuring has been announced publicly, or there is a
valid expectation to affected parties that it will be implemented.
Future operating losses are not provided for.

Refer to note 24 for details around restructuring provisions that
were recognised during the year.

(m) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when the group satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control of the promised good

or service to a customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the group expects to be entitled in
exchange for the goods or services. Further information about
each source of revenue from contracts with customers and the
criteria for recognition follows.

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
performance obligations are satisfied, and control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods. The group considers whether there are other promises
in the contract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated.
In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods,

the group considers the effects of variable consideration,

the existence of significant financing components, non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer

(if any).

If the transaction price in a contract for the sale of goods
includes a variable amount, the group estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange

for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and is
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal will not occur when the uncertainty in respect of the
variable consideration is resolved. Some contracts for the sale
of goods provide customers with a right of return and volume
rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates give rise to
variable consideration.

Rebates and sales incentives

The group provides rebates and sales incentives to certain
customers once thresholds specified in the contract are met
or exceeded. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by
the customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the group applies the requirements
on constraining estimates of variable consideration and
recognises a refund liability for the expected future rebates.

(ii) Revenue from services, licenses and royalties

The group earns revenue from the provision of services to
customers, with revenue recognised over time as the services
are performed and the performance obligations satisfied.
Revenue from licenses of intellectual property are either
recognised at a point in time or over time. Where a license
represents a license to use the intellectual property as it exists
at the point in time in which the license is granted, then

the revenue is recognised at a point in time (subject to any
constraints applied against variable consideration). Where a
license represents a license to access the intellectual property,
then the revenue is recognised over time. Typically, the group
earns revenues from licenses at a point in time.
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Where a contract contains a sales or usage-based element,
such as a royalty linked to the amount of grain harvested from
a particular seed sale, or generation of oil with respect to
specific varieties of seed by a customer through the use of a
license of intellectual property relevant to the end product, this
sales or usage based element is recognised over time as the
performance obligations are satisfied.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount

of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the
services, licensing or royalties, then the variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and is constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal will not occur
when the uncertainty in respect of the variable consideration

is resolved. The group uses both the expected value method
and the most likely value method when estimating the total
variable consideration based on the terms of the contracts with
customers. In certain circumstances, the group is required to
allocate the variable consideration to performance obligations,
and this is done so based on their relative stand-alone selling
price, considering discounts and variable amounts. In situations
in which a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable,
the group uses the expected cost plus margin approach, and
the residual approach, to estimate the stand-alone selling price
over the life of the contract with customers.

(iii) Other income

Other income is derived from net income realised from
activities that are outside of the ordinary business of the group.

(iv) Significant financing components

The group may receive short-term advances from its
customers. Using the practical expedient in AASB 15, the group
does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the
effects of a significant financing component as it is expected, at
contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the
good and when the customer pays for that good will be one
year or less.

Further, in respect of contracts with customers that cover
multiple periods, the group assesses whether there is a
significant financing component in the contracts, including
whether the customer has paid in advance and the timing of
the transfer is at its discretion, or whether a substantial amount
of the consideration is variable and the amount or timing of
the consideration varies on a future event not substantially
within the control of the customer of the group, or whether the
difference between the promised consideration and the cash
selling price arose for reasons other than financing.

(n) Finance income and finance costs

The group's finance income and finance costs include the
following: interest income, interest expense, the net gain or loss
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the foreign
currency gain or loss on financial assets and financial liabilities,
the fair value remeasurement of deferred consideration related
to business combinations, the net gain or loss on hedging
instruments that are recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective
interest method.

(o) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Current and deferred taxes are recognised in profit or

loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on

the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following
temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,
and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and
jointly controlled entities to the extent that they will probably
not reverse in the foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is
not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on the
initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected

to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes

levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity,

or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax
credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of cash
dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability to
pay the related dividend is recognised. The group does not
distribute non-cash assets as dividends to its shareholders.

(i) Tax consolidation

The company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities
are part of a tax-consolidated group. As a consequence, all
members of the tax-consolidated group are taxed as a single
entity. The head entity within the tax-consolidated group is
Nufarm Limited (the ‘head entity’).

Current tax expense/benefit, deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets arising from temporary differences of the members
of the tax-consolidated group are recognised in the separate
financial statements of the members of the tax-consolidated
group using the ‘separate taxpayer within group’ approach by
reference to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
separate financial statements of each entity and the tax values
applying under tax consolidation.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Any current tax liabilities (or assets) and deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses of the subsidiaries are assumed
by the head entity in the tax-consolidated group and are
recognised by the company as amounts payable/(receivable)
to/(from) other entities in the tax-consolidated group in
conjunction with any tax funding arrangement (refer to following
item). Any difference between these amounts is recognised by
the company as an equity contribution amounts or distribution.

The company recognises deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses of the tax-consolidated group to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits of the tax-
consolidated group will be available against which the asset
can be utilised.

Any subsequent period adjustments to deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses as a result of revised
assessments of the probability of recoverability is recognised
by the head entity only.

(ii) Nature of tax funding arrangements and tax sharing
agreements

The head entity of the Australian tax-consolidated group, in
conjunction with other members of the tax-consolidated group,
has entered into a tax funding arrangement which sets out

the funding obligations of members of the tax-consolidated
group in respect of tax amounts. The tax funding arrangements
require payments to/from the head entity equal to the current
tax liability/(asset) assumed by the head entity and any tax-loss
deferred tax asset assumed by the head entity, resulting in

the head entity recognising an inter-entity receivable/(payable)
equal in amount to the tax liability/(asset) assumed. The inter-
entity receivables/(payables) are at call.

Contributions to fund the current tax liabilities are payable as
per the tax funding arrangement and reflect the timing of the
head entity's obligation to make payments for tax liabilities to
the relevant tax authorities.

The head entity of the Australian tax-consolidated group, in
conjunction with other members of the tax-consolidated group,
has also entered a tax sharing agreement. The tax sharing
agreement provides for the determination of the allocation of
the income tax liabilities between the entities should the head
entity default on its tax payment obligations. No amounts have
been recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of this agreement as payment of any amounts under
the tax sharing agreement is considered remote.

(p) Earnings per share

The group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS)
data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined

by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the effects of all potential dilutive
ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notes and share
rights granted to employees.
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(q) Segment reporting

Determination and presentation of operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the group that
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the group’s other components.
All operating segments' results are reviewed regularly by the
group’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess

its performance.

Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise
mainly loans and borrowings and related expenses, corporate
assets and head office expenses, and income tax assets

and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire property, plant and equipment (excluding
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Refer to note 5 for details on changes to operating segments
during the year.

4 Determination of fair values

Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in
determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that
asset or liability.

(i) Intangible assets

The fair value of patents and trademarks acquired in a business
combination is based on the discounted estimated royalty
payments that have been avoided as a result of the patent or
trademark being owned. The fair value of other intangible assets
is based on the discounted cash flows expected to be derived
from the use and eventual sale of the assets.

(ii) Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of the rights to ordinary shares issued under the
respective Nufarm incentive plans have been measured using
a Monte Carlo Simulation or Binomial Tree. Measurement inputs
include the share price on the measurement date, the exercise
price of the instrument, expected volatility, expected term of

the instruments, dividends, and the risk-free rate (based on
government bonds).
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5 Operating segments

Segment information is presented in respect of the group's key operating segments. The operating segments are based on the
group’s management and internal reporting structure which operates predominantly along two business lines, being Crop Protection
and Seed Technologies.

During the 2025 financial year, the group announced changes to its reporting segments following the Seed Technologies review.
This has resulted in a re-evaluation of the reporting of our seed treatment business which previously had been included within our
Seed Technologies operating segment. The result of the reporting change is that the seed treatment business will now be included
within our Crop Protection operating regional segments. The 2024 financial year has been restated to account for this change, with
no changes to the group's earnings and balance sheet as previously reported.

The Crop Protection business deals in the manufacture and sale of crop protection and seed treatment products used by farmers
to protect crops from damage caused by weeds, pests and disease. It is managed by major geographic segments, being APAC
(including Australia, New Zealand and certain parts of Asia); Europe (including the United Kingdom, the European Union, and certain
other countries in Europe, the Middle East and Africa) and North America (including United States of America, Canada and Mexico).

The Seed Technologies business comprises the Hybrid Seeds, Bioenergy and Omega-3 platforms. These platforms generate
revenues through the sale of seed or oil based products, and licensing of intellectual property. The Seed Technologies business is
managed on a worldwide basis.

Information regarding the results of each operating segment is included below. Performance is measured based on Underlying
EBITDA and Underlying EBIT, as defined below, as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the group’s
CEO. These metrics are used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in
evaluating the results of each segment. Segment revenue is based on the geographic location of customers. Segment results
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. The non-operating
corporate segment comprises mainly corporate expenses, and unallocated interest-bearing loans, borrowings and corporate assets.

Crop Protection

Seed Non

North Technologies  Operating Group
2025 APAC Europe America Total Global Corporate Total
Operating Segments $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Revenue
Total segment revenue 865,725 921,554 1,320,049 3,107,328 336,051 - 3,443,379
Results
Underlying EBITDA! 97,832 161,329 110,871 370,032 13,948 (81,501) 302479
Depreciation & amortisation excluding
material items (18,248) (108,124) (40,768) (167,140) (49,344) (4,038) (220,522)
Underlying EBIT' 79,584 53,205 70,103 202,892 (35,396) (85,539) 81,957
Material items included in operating profit (refer
note 6) (155,677)
Material items outside of operating profit (refer
note 6) 9,093
Net financing costs (110,394)
Share of net profits/(losses) of equity
accounted investees (283)
Profit/(loss) before tax (175,304)

1 Underlying EBIT is earnings before net finance costs, taxation and material items. Underlying EBITDA is Underlying EBIT before depreciation, amortisation and
material items.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Crop Protection

Seed Non

North Technologies Operating
2024 Restated' APAC Europe America Total Global Corporate  Group Total
Operating Segments $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Revenue
Total segment revenue 866,540 830,068 1,300,823 2,997,431 348,478 - 3,345,909
Results
Underlying EBITDA? 89,007 132,744 93,027 314,778 62,581 (64,618) 312,741
Depreciation & amortisation excluding
material items (16,211) (105,690) (35,768) (157,669) (45,640) (2,121) (205,430)
Underlying EBIT? 72,796 27,054 57,259 157,109 16,941 (66,739) 107,311
Material items included in operating profit (refer
note 6) (42,571)
Material items outside of operating profit (refer
note 6) -
Net financing costs (108,188)
Share of net profits/(losses) of equity
accounted investees (1,809)
Profit/(loss) before tax (45,257)

1 During the 2025 financial year, the group changed its operating segments which resulted in the seed treatment business now being reported in the Crop
Protection operating regions, whilst it was previously reported in the Seed Technologies segment. The comparative period has been restated for this change.
2 Underlying EBIT is earnings before net finance costs, taxation and material items. Underlying EBITDA is Underlying EBIT before depreciation, amortisation and

material items.

Crop Protection

Seed Non

North Technologies Operating
2025 APAC Europe America Total Global Corporate  Group Total
Operating Segments $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Segment assets' 653,635 1,342,736 1,103,317 3,099,688 934,404 436,241 4,470,333
Equity accounted & other investments - 28 - 28 1,229 71,553 72,810
Total assets 653,635 1,342,764 1,103,317 3,099,716 935,633 507,794 4,543,143
Liabilities
Segment liabilities' 375,901 270,548 336,426 982,875 154,543 1,295,248 2,432,666
Total liabilities 375,901 270,548 336,426 982,875 154,543 1,295,248 2,432,666
Other segment information
Capital expenditure (cash basis)? 32,454 109,646 30,359 172,459 65,897 7,843 246,199

1 Tax-related assets and liabilities have now been allocated out from the Corporate segment to the respective operating segments, to the extent possible.
2 Capital expenditure includes cash investments in property, plant and equipment, intangibles and other investments but excludes right of use lease assets

Crop Protection

Seed Non

North Technologies Operating
2024 Restated' APAC Europe America Total Global Corporate Group Total
Operating Segments $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Segment assets 632,117 1,303,165 1,129,469 3,064,751 879,299 419,698 4,363,748
Equity accounted & other investments 1,435 26 - 1,461 1,327 60,878 63,666
Total assets 633,552 1,303,191 1,129,469 3,066,212 880,626 480,576 4,427,414
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 396,003 270,291 303,419 969,713 155380 1,091,150 2,216,243
Total liabilities 396,003 270,291 303,419 969,713 155380 1,091,150 2,216,243
Other segment information
Capital expenditure (cash basis)? 26,076 106,357 46,848 179,281 73,694 802 253,777

1 During the 2025 financial year, the group changed its operating segments which resulted in the seed treatment business now being reported in the Crop
Protection operating regions, whilst it was previously reported in the Seed Technologies segment. Further, tax-related assets and liabilities have now been
allocated out from the Corporate segment to the respective operating segments, to the extent possible. The comparative period has been restated for

these changes.

2 Capital expenditure includes cash investments in property, plant and equipment, intangibles and other investments but excludes right of use lease assets
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Revenue

2025 2024

Geographical information - revenue by location of customer $000 $000
United States of America 1,056,287 1,076,387
Australia 595,476 657,767
Rest of world' 1,791,616 1,611,755
Total 3,443,379 3,345,909

1 Other than the United States of America and Australia, sales to other countries are individually less than 10% of the group's total revenues.
Non-current assets

2024

2025 Restated

Geographical information - non-current assets by location of asset' $000 $000
United Kingdom 633,708 566,362
United States of America 549,295 525,793
Australia 456,173 416,458
Germany 331,326 345,147
Rest of world? 283,223 260,967
Total 2,253,725 2,114,727

1 Deferred tax assets have now been allocated to their respective geographical locations. The comparative period has been restated for this change.

2 Other than the United Kingdom, the United States of America, Germany and Australia, non-current assets held in other countries are individually less than 10% of

the group's total non-current assets.

6 Individually material income and expense items

Individually material items are those items where their nature, including the expected frequency of the events giving rise to them,
and/or amount is considered material to the financial statements. Such items included within the group's profit for the period are

detailed below.

2025 2025 2024 2024
$000 $000 $000 $000
pre-tax after-tax pre-tax after-tax

Material items by category:
Crop Protection asset rationalisation and restructuring (13,388) (11,171) (18,756) (17,130)
Seed Technologies asset rationalisation and restructuring (118,704) (117,904) - -
ERP transformation (9,084) (8,750) - -
Non-recurring third party legal and advisory costs (5,408) (4,624) - -
Deferred tax asset recognition - - - 14,600
Idle plant capacity - - (47,246) (34,482)
Non-core asset disposals - - 23,431 23,431
Release of provision for LATAM tax liabilities - - - 11,700
Total profit/(loss) (146,584) (142,449) (42,571) (1,881)

30 September 2025 Material items

Crop protection asset rationalisation and restructuring

During the period, the group continued to implement its performance improvement program. The majority of these costs, totalling

approximately $7.264 million, relate to staff redundancies. Additional costs of approximately $6.125 million were incurred in

connection with the write-down of the Leshan Nong Fu Trading Co Ltd joint venture investment, the closure of operations in Korea

and rationalisation of the Croplands business footprint.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Seed technologies asset rationalisation and restructuring

In May 2025, the group announced a review of Seed Technologies. In the first phase of the review, the group implemented several
near-term commercial actions which targeted reducing costs, refocusing activities on higher margin growth of our hybrid seeds and
carinata platforms, and repositioning omega-3. As a result, the following material items were recognised pre-tax:

- Staff redundancy and other related restructuring costs across the business of approximately $14.350 million

«  Write-down of sunflower and canola intangible assets and property, plant and equipment impacted by portfolio rationalisations
and market exits of approximately $58.670 million

- Write-downs of seed inventories to net realisable value due to restructuring activities totalling $45.684 million.

ERP transformation

During the period, our North American Crop Protection segment commenced a significant upgrade to a new cloud-based ERP
system. Total cost incurred during the initial implementation phase in the FY25 year was approximately $9.084 million.

Non-recurring third party legal and advisory costs

During the period, the group has incurred third party legal and advisory costs primarily in executing the Seed Technologies
review process.

30 September 2024 Material items

Idle plant capacity

During the 2024 financial year, the group undertook a capital works programs which disrupted normal operating capacity at both our
Laverton (APAC) and Wyke (Europe) manufacturing sites resulting in idle capacity charges.

In Laverton, the group has invested in its 2,4-D production capability whilst sustainably reducing the cost of production. The 2,4-D
synthesis production is typically operated on a 24-hour basis. The disruption resulted in an extended closure of 2,4-D synthesis
production throughout the period.

In Wyke, the group started preliminary works in respect of the multi-year capital investment plan to address manufacturing reliability,
further improve HSE performance and increase production capacity. During the 2024 financial year, these works resulted in
extended shutdowns and lower production capacity than is typically achievable at the Wyke manufacturing site.

Non-core asset disposals

During September 2024, the group disposed non-core assets at Raymond Road and land adjoining the Laverton manufacturing site
which were previously treated as assets held for sale. The sale generated proceeds of $47.545 million which was in excess of the
carrying amount of assets and associated costs to sell, resulting in a one-off gain on disposal of $23.431 million recognised for the
year. The gains on disposal have been offset by utilising previously unrecognised capital losses resulting in no tax payable.

Crop Protection asset rationalisation and restructuring

As part of a broader asset base and cost structure review, the group incurred asset write-down costs, accelerated amortisation for
business exits, recognised restructuring provisions and incurred an FCTR (foreign currency translation reserve) loss on liquidation of
dormant companies. In Europe, the group has made the decision to impair its assets in our equity accounted investee Crop.zone,
whilst accelerating amortisation in specific European manufacturing assets that have been identified for future exit. In addition, a
global cost review program is currently underway which has resulted in the recognition of initial redundancy provisions with respect
to planned staff exits which occurred in FY25.

Deferred tax asset recognition

Australian Accounting Standards require that the group recognises a deferred tax asset arising from unutilised tax losses and tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses and tax credits can be
utilised, and that it recognises a deferred tax liability for all expected potential tax liabilities. The recognition of deferred tax assets of
$14.600 million in respect of the tax losses during the year ended 30 September 2024 reflected improved financial performance and
outlook for the Australian tax group.

Release of provision for LATAM tax liabilities

When Nufarm sold its LATAM operations in 2020, it retained ongoing responsibility for certain pre-disposal tax matters, some of
which have now been finalised. Consequently, a reassessment has been performed of the appropriate amount of provision to retain
for the remaining open matters, and $11.700 million of the tax provision was released for the year ended 30 September 2024,
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Material items are classified by function as follows:

N

52

o O

Selling, 5o
marketing 2%
and General & Research and Net R

2025 distribution adminis- development financing Other Total

$000 Cost of sales expense trative expense expenses costs income Pre-tax

Crop protection asset rationalisation

and restructuring (3,361) (2,434) (7,344) (249) - - (13,388)

Seed technologies asset rationalisation >

and restructuring (46,784) (62,311) (8,847) (9,855) 9,093 - (118,704) g

=4
ERP transformation - - (9,084) - - - (9,084) S
Non-recurring third party legal and

advisory costs - - (5,408) - - - (5,408)

Total material items (50,145) (64,745) (30,683) (10,104) 9,093 - (146,584)

Total material items included in S

operating profit/(loss) (50,145) (64,745) (30,683) (10,104) - - (155,677) b

Selling, 3

marketing General & Research g

and adminis- and 3

2024 distribution trative development  Net financing Total @
$000 Cost of sales expense expense expenses costs Otherincome Pre-tax
Idle plant costs (47,246) - - - - - (47,246)

Non-core asset sales - - - - - 23,431 23,431 gg

g8

Asset rationalisation and restructuring (7,407) - (6,514) (4,835) - - (18,756) g %

«Q
Pyl

Total material items (54,653) - (6,514) (4,835) - 23,431 (42,571) 2 §
()

Total material items included in operating =

profit/(loss) (54,653) - (6,514) (4,835) - 23,431 (42,571)

Material items impacting cash flows are as follows: g9
< =
$8

Underlying Material items Total group 33
o

2025 $000 $000 $000 2

Cash flows from operating activities %
=}

Net operating cash flows 192,614 (29,849) 162,765 -

Cash flows from investing activities

Net investing cash flows (245,613) - (245,613) %

[e]

S

Cash flows from financing activities %

(]

Net financing cash flows 83,871 - 83,871 S
Net operating, investing and financing cash flows 30,872 (29,849) 1,023

Underlying Material items Total group §

2024 $000 $000 $000 ]

Cash flows from operating activities %’)'

Net operating cash flows 519,637 (47,246) 472,391 éF'

o

Cash flows from investing activities

Net investing cash flows (253,244) 45,787 (207,457)

|
=]

Cash flows from financing activities §_

o
Net financing cash flows (200,765) - (200,765) g
@
Net operating, investing and financing cash flows 65,628 (1,459) 64,169 g
@

I

Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025

87



For personal use only

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

7 Revenue from contracts with customers and other income

The following sources of revenue from contracts with customers were recognised in the period result:

2025 2024
Sources of revenue from contracts with customers $000 $000
Revenue from the sale of goods 3,412,451 3,299,443
Revenue from services, licenses and royalties 30,928 46,466
Total revenue 3,443,379 3,345,909

The following sources of other income, derived outside of the ordinary course of business, were recognised in the period result:

2025 2024
Other income $000 $000
Sundry income 4,336 3,779
Gains on disposal of non-core assets - 23,431
Total other income 4,336 27,210
8 Other expenses
The following expenses were included in the period result:
Underlying Material items Total group
2025 $000 $000 $000
Depreciation and amortisation 220,522 1,449 221971
Impairment of assets 6,160 63,385 69,545
Inventory write down 56,753 48,862 105,615
2024 $000 $000 $000
Depreciation and amortisation 205,430 6,758 212,188
Impairment of assets - 4,515 4,515
Inventory write down 1,208 - 1,208

For the year ended 30 September 2025, the asset impairment charges classified as material items relate to the write-down of the
group's sunflower and canola intangible assets and associated property, plant and equipment.

The group also recognised net realisable value adjustments for specific inventories following the portfolio rationalisations and market
exits as part of the restructuring activity within the Seed Technologies business. These write-downs are classified as material items.

The underlying inventory write down primarily relates to net realisable value adjustments against finished goods omega-3 oil.

Refer to notes 6, 14 and 19 for further information on impairment of assets and inventory write-downs which occurred within the
current period.

9 Personnel expenses

2025 2024

$000 $000
Wages and salaries 385,452 353,553
Other associated personnel expenses 67,570 62,019
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds 19,018 18,050
Expense/(gain) related to defined benefit superannuation funds 2,782 3,213
Share-based payment expenses 6,211 6,278
Short-term employee benefits 7,980 6,889
Other long-term employee benefits 2,654 2,058
Staff restructuring expenses 14,882 6,889
Personnel expenses 506,549 458,949
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2025 2024
$000 $000
Financial income 6,719 6,499
Interest expense - external (92,668) (87,442)
Interest expense - debt establishment transaction costs (7,827) (6,990)
Lease liability - interest expense (9,656) (8,408) §
=4
Financial instrument fair value gains/(losses) 8,478 (2,412) g
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) (6,347) (9,435)
Financial expenses (108,020) (114,687)
Net financing costs (101,301) (108,188) o
A
>\ The financial instrument fair value movement relates to the derecognition of deferred consideration arising from a business o
f— combination recognised in a prior period. Refer to note 20 for further information. %
- -
5
@) 8
11 Income tax expense
m 2025 2024
jujfe)
m $000 $000 2%
[
3 Recognised in the income statement g §
Pyl
Current tax expense/(benefit) % §
— =
(.U Current period 13,289 35,579
Tax free income and (recognition)/non-recognition of tax assets on material items 31,503 (3,359)
C Changes in estimates related to prior years (3,278) (5,295) g9
< =
O Current tax expense/(benefit) 41,514 26,925 (513 5
0 o
m Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 3o
| - Origination and reversal of temporary differences and tax losses (55,028) (40,150) g
3
q) Effect of changes in tax rates (1,334) (134) o
( ’ (Recognition)/non-recognition of tax assets on underlying and material items 4,863 (26,300)
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) (51,499) (66,584)
L o
O Total income tax expense/(benefit) in income statement (9,985) (39,659) 8
[e]
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

2025 2024

Numerical reconciliation between tax expense and pre-tax net profit $000 $000
Profit/(Loss) before tax (175,304) (45,257)
Income tax using the Australian corporate tax rate of 30% (52,591) (13,577)

Increase/(decrease) in income tax expense due to:

Non-deductible Amortisation/Depreciation 4,580 4,356
Non-deductible expenses 2,899 3,714
Other taxable income 1,802 574
Effect of changes in tax rates (1,334) (134)
(Recognition)/non-recognition of tax assets on underlying items 4,863 5,045
Tax free income and (recognition)/non-recognition of tax assets on material items 31,503 (29,659)
Effect of tax rate in foreign jurisdictions 9,236 3,906
Tax exempt income (615) (277)
Tax incentives (829) (2,211)
Tax credit on transactions not recognised in the income statement (6,221) (6,101)
(6,707) (34,364)
Changes in estimates related to prior years (3,278) (5,295)
Income tax expense/(benefit) (9,985) (39,659)
2025 2024

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income $000 $000
Relating to actuarial (gains)/losses on defined benefit plans (2,073) (92)
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (2,073) (92)

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD)/G20 Inclusive Framework on Base Erosion and Profit Shifting
previously published the Pillar Two model rules. These are designed to address the tax challenges arising from the digitalisation

of the global economy, including the implementation of a global minimum tax. The group has a presence in jurisdictions that have
enacted or substantively enacted legislation in relation to the OECD/G20 BEPS Pillar Two model rules, including Australia, where its
ultimate parent entity is a tax resident. This effectively brings all jurisdictions in which the group has a presence into the scope of

the rules.

We applied the transitional safe harbour rules for the financial year 2025, and based on the analysis performed as at 30 September
2025, the Pillar Two model rules have not had a material impact on our financial results. The group has also applied the temporary
exception to recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes at
30 September 2025, pursuant to the amendments to AASB 112 issued on 27 June 2023.

The group continues to monitor and evaluate the domestic implementation of the Pillar Two rules in the jurisdictions in which it
operates. The group's potential exposure to Pillar Two taxes, based on legislation that is enacted or substantively enacted, is not
expected to be material.

12 Cash and cash equivalents

2025 2024
$000 $000
Bank balances 473,458 462,345
Call deposits 1,260 1,218
Total cash and cash equivalents 474,718 463,563
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2025 2024
$000 $000
Current
Trade receivables 533,041 550,362
Provision for impairment losses (25,965) (19,937)
507,076 530,425 >
o
o
=4
Prepayments 33,756 22,701 g
Derivative financial instruments 3,893 13,461
Other receivables 83,329 101,104
Current receivables 628,054 667,691
o
c
> Non-current a
[o]
— Other receivables 28,176 16,230 ('jz
! Non-current receivables 28,176 16,230 %
[
3
[e]
O Total trade and other receivables 656,230 683,921 @
m 14 Inventories 38
) 2025 2024 58
[}
$000 $000 5 3
CG Raw materials 304,573 342,545
C Work in progress 86,917 92,047
Finished goods 885,159 763,963 38
® T
O 1,276,649 1,198,555 s
o
m Provision for obsolescence and valuation adjustments of inventories (101,347) (32,548) §
Total inventories 1,175,302 1,166,007 §'
)]
Q For the year ended 30 September 2025, the group recognised a write-down of inventory to net realisable value totalling
$105.615 million (30 September 2024: $1.208 million). This includes the write-down of omega-3 oil due to the decline in fish oil
L prices, seed inventories write-down following restructuring activities across predominantly omega-3 and sunflower operations. Refer 5
to notes 6 and 8 for additional information. 3
@)
15 Tax assets and liabilities 2
Current tax assets and liabilities
The current tax asset for the group of $11.344 million (2024 $15.426 million) represents the amount of income taxes recoverable
in respect of the current and prior periods and that arose from the payment of tax in excess of the amounts due to the relevant g
tax authority. The current tax liability for the group of $14.562 million (2024 $16.571 million) represents the amount of income taxes =
payable in respect of current and prior financial periods. §
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Assets Liabilities Net

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

Consolidated $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Property, plant and equipment 11,537 15,674 (8,094) (30,498) 3,443 (14,824)

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 15,260 30,351 (14,297) (20,805) 963 9,546

Intangible assets 6,260 14,072 (80,454) (92,943) (74,194) (78,871)

Employee benefits 11,647 14,864 (12) (2) 11,635 14,862

Provisions 30,233 22,116 (9,305) (9,178) 20,928 12,938

Current payables/receivables 5,865 11,805 (9,389) (5,183) (3,524) 6,622

Non-current payables/receivables 10,530 11,730 (12,813) (10,665) (2,283) 1,065

Other items 16,032 17,878 (12,314) (14,287) 3,718 3,691

>\ Tax value of losses carried forward 186,958 138,828 (2) (2) 186,956 138,826

C Tax assets/(liabilities) 294,322 277,318 (146,680) (183,563) 147,642 93,755

Set off of tax (41,5631) (70,693) 41,531 70,693 - -

O Net tax assets/(liabilities) 252,791 206,625 (105,149) (112,870) 147,642 93,755
G) Movement in temporary differences during the period

m Balance Recognised Recognised Currency Balance

3 2024 inincome in equity adjustment 2025

Consolidated $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

CG Property, plant and equipment (14,824) 19,529 (1,262) 3,443

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 9,546 (9,483) 900 963

C Intangible assets (78,871) 5919 (1,242) (74,194)

O Employee benefits 14,862 (5,547) (2,073) 4,393 11,635

m Provisions 12,938 8,211 (221) 20,928

o Current payables/receivables 6,622 (11,180) 1,034 (3,524)

m Non-current payables/receivables 1,065 (3,135) (213) (2,283)

Q Other items 3,691 2,646 (2,5619) 3,718

- Tax value of losses carried forward 138,826 44,539 3,591 186,956

O 93,755 51,499 (2,073) 4,461 147,642

LL Balance Recognised Recognised Currency Balance

2023 inincome in equity adjustment 2024

Consolidated $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Property, plant and equipment (6,222) (8,627) - 25 (14,824)

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 9,033 498 - 15 9,546

Intangible assets (88,541) 8,416 - 1,254 (78,871)

Employee benefits 15,837 (1,248) (92) 365 14,862

Provisions 4,479 8,740 - (281) 12,938

Current payables/receivables (6,022) 12,963 - (319) 6,622

Non-current payables/receivables 10,947 (9,739) - (143) 1,065

Other items 6,485 (3,651) - 757 3,591

Tax value of losses carried forward 80,584 59,232 - (990) 138,826

26,580 66,584 (92) 683 93,755

The increase in recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses during the year ended 30 September 2025 is largely due to
Nufarm recognising tax losses that have arisen in the UK and US. The increase in recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses during the year ended 30 September 2024 was predominantly due to Nufarm recognising prior and current year tax losses
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that have arisen in Australia, UK and US, including losses that have arisen from one-off material items such as idle plant capacity (see
note 6).

The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to tax losses and tax credits is largely dependent on the generation of sufficient
future taxable income. The directors are confident that these assets recoverability is probable based on future years' budgets. The
carrying value of this asset will continue to be assessed at each reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Unrecognised deferred tax liability

As at 30 September 2025, a unrecognised deferred tax liability of $46.017 million (2024 $42.484 million) relating to investments in
subsidiaries has not been recognised because the group controls the repatriation of retained earnings and it is satisfied that it will not
be incurred in the foreseeable future. This amount represents the theoretical withholding tax payable if all overseas retained earnings
were paid as dividends.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

At 30 September 2025, there are unrecognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and timing differences of
$226.620 million (2024 $146.921 million), virtually all of which can be carried forward indefinitely.

16 Investments accounted for using the equity method

The group accounts for investments in associates and joint ventures using the equity method. The group had the following
individually immaterial associates and joint ventures during the period:

Ownership and voting interest

Nature Balance date
of relationship Country of associate 2025 2024
Seedtech Pty Ltd Associate' Australia 31 December 25.00% 25.00%
Leshan Nong Fu Trading Co., Ltd Joint Venture? China 31 December 35.00% 35.00%
Crop.zone GmbH Associate® Germany 31 December 14.77% 14.77%

Seedtech is a company that offers services to the seed industry such as cleaning, packaging, distribution and storage of seeds.

Leshan Nong Fu Trading is a joint venture in which the group has joint control and a 35 percent ownership interest. The joint venture is focused on sales and
marketing of formulated crop protection products in the Chinese domestic market and is structured as a separate vehicle. This investment has been fully written
down during the 2025 financial year.

Crop.zone is an Agtech start-up which provides electrophysical solutions to replace chemical herbicides in select market segments. The group's ownership
interest has remained unchanged at 14.77 per cent as at 30 September 2025. The investment in Crop.zone is equity-accounted as Nufarm has additional powers
under its shareholders agreement such that it is able to exert significant influence over the operations of Crop.zone. This investment had been fully written down
during the 2024 financial year.

N

w

Carrying amount Share of profit/(loss)
2025 2024 2025 2024
$000 $000 $000 $000
Seedtech Pty Ltd 875 977 (101) 215
Leshan Nong Fu Trading Co., Ltd - 1,435 (182) (391)
Crop.zone GmbH - - - (1,633)
875 2,412 (283) (1,809)

During the year ended 30 September 2025, the group entered into discussions relating to the Leshan Nong Fu Trading joint venture
with a view to the joint venture partners exploring alternative commercial structures for the sale and marketing of formulated crop
protection products in the Chinese domestic market. While these discussions are ongoing, the group has recognised an impairment
to the carrying amount of the joint venture.

During the year ended 30 September 2024, the group has fully written down its Crop.zone associated balances (including its
equity-accounted investment) as part of the asset rationalisation and restructuring initiatives undertaken for the European business.
This has resulted in an impairment of $4.515 million.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

17 Other investments

2025 2024
Non-current investments $000 $000
Other investments 71,935 61,254
Total non-current investments 71,935 61,254

The group's primary investment relates to Enko Chem, a crop protection innovation company specialising in the discovery and
development of novel products for growers that meet demands of growers, consumers and regulators globally. During the year
ended 30 September 2025, the group made an additional investment of $5.264m (refer to note 34 ( b)). The group intends to hold
this investment for the long term for strategic purposes and has designated the investment at FVOCI.

18 Property, plant and equipment

Land Plant Capital work
> and buildings and machinery in progress Total
p— $000 $000 $000 $000
C Cost
O Balance at 1 October 2024 401,612 840,171 176,699 1,418,482
Additions 20,864 18,549 109,477 148,890
G) Additions through business combinations - - - -
m Disposals and write-offs (12,647) (67,836) (65) (80,548)
3 Other transfers 43,817 99,655 (143,472) =
Foreign exchange adjustment 17,327 36,035 8,093 61,455
('G Balance at 30 September 2025 470,973 926,574 150,732 1,548,279
C Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
O Balance at 1 October 2024 (211,741) (577,520) - (789,261)
U) Depreciation charge for the period (28,702) (48,734) - (77,436)
- Disposals and write-offs 10,287 66,352 - 76,639
m Other transfers - - - -
Q Foreign exchange adjustment (10,127) (24,999) - (35,126)
Balance at 30 September 2025 (240,283) (684,901) - (825,184)
| - .
O Net property, plant and equipment at 30 September 2025 230,690 341,673 150,732 723,095
LL
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Land Plant Capital work
and buildings and machinery in progress Total
$000 $000 $000 $000
Cost
Balance at 1 October 2023 386,524 801,012 158,729 1,346,265
Additions 38,051 29,869 96,311 164,231
Additions through business combinations - - - -
Disposals and write-offs (4,853) (47,481) (1,239) (563,573)
Transfer to assets held for sale (7,964) - (1,540) (9,504)
Other transfers 1,605 69,272 (70,877) -
Foreign exchange adjustment (11,751) (12,501) (4,685) (28,937)
Balance at 30 September 2024 401,612 840,171 176,699 1,418,482
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 October 2023 (195,982) (580,951) - (776,933)
Depreciation charge for the period (25,100) (51,306) - (76,406)
Disposals and write-offs 3,121 46,191 - 49,312
Other transfers 12 (12) - -
Foreign exchange adjustment 6,208 8,558 - 14,766
Balance at 30 September 2024 (211,741) (577,520) - (789,261)
Net property, plant and equipment at 30 September 2024 189,871 262,651 176,699 629,221
19 Intangible assets
Capitalised
Intellectual Computer development
Goodwill Property software costs Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Cost
Balance at 1 October 2024 391,502 1,135,486 104,336 934,597 2,665,921
Additions - 12,680 9,508 94,5682 116,770
Additions through business combinations - - - - -
Disposals and write-offs (3,773) - (2,362) (4,208) (10,343)
Other transfers - (433) - 433 -
Foreign exchange adjustment 23,873 86,654 5,708 40,988 157,223
Balance at 30 September 2025 411,602 1,234,387 117,190 1,066,392 2,829,571
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 October 2024 (174,960) (673,251) (82,390) (436,335) (1,366,936)
Amortisation charge for the period - (71,462) (8,946) (64,127) (144,535)
Impairment charge for the year - (30,916) - (26,399) (67,315)
Disposals and write-offs 3,773 - 2,363 546 6,682
Other transfers = = = = =
Foreign exchange adjustment (13,164) (52,885) (5,388) (19,177) (90,614)
Balance at 30 September 2025 (184,351) (828,514) (94,361) (645,492) (1,652,718)
Intangibles carrying amount at
30 September 2024 227,251 405,873 22,829 520,900 1,176,853
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Capitalised
Intellectual Computer development
Goodwill Property software costs Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Cost
Balance at 1 October 2023 400,449 1,155,239 95,584 838,657 2,489,929
Additions - 16,654 8,171 100,944 125,769
Additions through business combinations - - - - -
Disposals and write-offs - - (1,201) (11,001) (12,202)
Other transfers - (2,367) - 2,367 -
Foreign exchange adjustment (8,947) (34,040) 1,782 3,630 (37,575)
Balance at 30 September 2024 391,502 1,135,486 104,336 934,597 2,665,921
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 October 2023 (176,721) (624,964) (73,595) (384,400) (1,259,680)
Amortisation charge for the period - (64,595) (10,748) (60,439) (135,782)
Impairment charge for the year - - - - -
Disposals and write-offs - - 817 9,017 9,834
Other transfers - (2,287) - 2,287 -
Foreign exchange adjustment 1,761 18,595 1,136 (2,800) 18,692
Balance at 30 September 2024 (174,960) (673,251) (82,390) (436,335) (1,366,936)
Intangibles carrying amount at
30 September 2024 216,542 462,235 21,946 498,262 1,198,985

For personal use only

Cash-generating units containing goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the ‘cash-generating

unit'’/ ‘CGU)).

The group has determined that operating unit by country or region (i.e. Europe) is the appropriate method for determining the cash-
generating units (CGU) of the business. This level of CGU aligns with the cash inflows of the business and the management structure
of the group. The goodwill and intellectual property are CGU specific, as the acquisitions generating goodwill and the product
registrations that are the major intangibles are country or region specific in nature. The exception to this is Seeds Technologies which
is managed on a worldwide basis. There is no allocation of goodwill between CGUs.

The major CGUs and their intangible assets are as follows: North America $167 million (2024: $166 million), Seed Technologies
$462 million (2024: $483 million), Europe $491 million (2024: $506 million) and APAC $53 million (2024: $40 million).

Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill

For the impairment testing of these assets, the carrying amount of the asset is compared to its recoverable amount at a CGU
level. The group typically uses a value in use methodology when assessing the recoverable amount of the assets, but may also
use a fair value less cost of disposal methodology, in which case the higher of the two valuation methods is used when assessing
recoverable amount.

Valuation method - Value in use

Value in use (VIU) is an estimate of the recoverable amount based on the present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from a CGU. In assessing VIU, the estimated future cash flows are derived from the board-approved three-year plan for
each cash-generating unit, and applying longer range plan assumptions to extrapolate a cash flow beyond year three. A perpetuity
factor is then applied to the normalised cash flow beyond year five in order to include a terminal value in the VIU calculation. The
terminal growth rate assumed for each CGU is generally a long term inflation estimate. The cash flow is then discounted to a present
value using a discount rate which is the company’s weighted average cost of capital, adjusted for country risk and asset-specific risk
associated with each CGU.

Valuation method - Fair value less cost of disposal

Fair value less cost of disposal (FVLCD) is an estimate of the price that a market participant would pay for the asset or CGU, less
the costs of disposal. The fair value is determined using discounted cash flows and is benchmarked using relevant methodologies
including the sum of the parts method, comparable market transactions, and company trading multiples. The cash flows are
derived from board-approved management expectations of future outcomes, taking into account past experience, and adjusted for
anticipated revenue growth. Cash flows are discounted using an appropriate post-tax market discount rate to arrive at a net present
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value of the asset which is compared against the asset's carrying value. The fair value measurement was categorised as a Level 3
fair value based on inputs in the valuation technique used (see note 27).

Valuation assumptions

Management develops a three-year bottom up budget plan for each of the CGUs, with a further two years added based upon
industry market growth and/or internal portfolio projections to develop a five year cashflow impairment testing model.

The pricing, margin and volume assumptions underpinning the cashflow projections generally reflect past experience for existing
and enhanced portfolio products, while new products utilise external sources of information reflecting current market pricing in
expected end use markets. Budgets include reference to geographical and market-specific economic drivers which influence the
business such as inflation, currency, interest rates and manufacturing capacity. The valuation modelling is most sensitive to terminal
growth and discount rates.

The valuation method, range of terminal growth rates and nominal post-tax discount rates applied for impairment testing purposes is
as follows:

Terminal Total
2025 Valuation method growth rate Discount rate goodwill $000
North America CGU ViU 2.2% 10.3% 57,595
Europe CGU FVLCD 2.3% 11.1% 73,784
APAC CGU VIU 2.5% 9.8% 15,720
Seed Technologies CGU VIU 2.6% 12.3% 78,557

Terminal Total
2024 Valuation method growth rate Discount rate goodwill $000
North America CGU ViU 2.4% 9.8% 55,124
Europe CGU FVLCD 2.4% 11.9% 67,913
APAC CGU ViU 2.4% 10.3% 15,629
Seed Technologies CGU VIU 3.0% 12.9% 76,281

With the exception of the Europe CGU below, the directors have determined that given the excess of recoverable amount over asset
carrying value, there are no reasonably possible changes in assumptions which could occur to cause the carrying amount of the
CGUs to exceed their recoverable amount.

Europe cash generating unit

At 30 September 2025, the group utilised a FVLCD methodology which was prepared by an external advisor to estimate the
recoverable amount of the Europe CGU. The group concluded that the fair value less costs to sell of the European CGU was higher
than its carrying amount and is therefore recoverable for the year ended 30 September 2025.

The key judgements and estimates underlying the FVLCD calculations are as follows:

« the modelling considered various cash flow scenarios and applied sensitivities against budgeted assumptions, discount rates
and terminal growth rates.

« continued manufacturing and supply chain efficiency from the capital investment program, growth in volumes for new
applications and no unforeseen regulatory challenges

« considerations to market-based approaches such as EV/EBITDA of comparable listed companies and transactions

« active ingredient pricing assumptions considering current and historical market pricing trends

« growth in post-tax cash flows before working capital changes and capital expenditure for the region of 10.9% per annum between
FY26 and FY30 with growth more heavily weighted to early year cash flows.

« aweighted average terminal growth rate in line with local country economic forecasts of 2.3%.

« aweighted average post-tax discount rate of 11.1%, which included a CGU-specific alpha risk premium of 3.8%.

We have also illustrated the below sensitivities against the discount rate and terminal growth rate:

« a+/-50 basis points change in post-tax discount rate has a circa (54%) / 6.0% impact on value
« a+/-50 basis points change in long term growth rate has a circa 5.3% / (4.7%) impact on value

Given the limited headroom identified through the modelling, management estimated the value of the Europe CGU considering
different cash flow scenarios, and applying sensitivities against discount rates and terminal growth rates. Management has
determined that the CGU is recoverable for the year ended 30 September 2025. Any future adverse movement in key judgements
and estimates mentioned above in the absence of other factors, could lead to impairment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Seed Technologies cash generating unit

During the half year ended 31 March 2025, management performed a reassessment of the recoverable amount of the Seed
Technologies CGU given the performance of the business and current market dynamics, and concluded that the recoverable
amount continues to exceed its carrying amount.

The group tests its goodwill attributable to the Seeds Technologies CGU at least annually or unless there are indicators that suggest
an impairment test to be performed. With the advancement of the Seed Technologies review across the second half of FY25,
further restructuring activity has occurred including an assessment of the recoverable amount of assets. This assessment led to
the write-down of specific property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in addition to net realisable value adjustments to
inventories which are detailed within note 6.

Management retested the Seed Technologies CGU for impairment as at the 30 September 2025. This utilised a VIU methodology to
estimate the recoverable amount. This concluded that the recoverable amount of the CGU was higher than its carrying amount and
is therefore recoverable for the year ended 30 September 2025.

20 Trade and other payables

2025 2024
$000 $000
Current payables - unsecured
Trade creditors and accruals - unsecured 779,792 767,319
Derivative financial instruments 5878 8,462
Cash advances from customers (contract liabilities) 128,824 105,813
Current payables 914,494 881,594
Non-current payables - unsecured
Creditors, accruals and cash advances from customers (contract liabilities) 16,676 14,170
Business combination - consideration payable' - 8,041
Non-current payables 16,676 22,211

1 During the FY25 year, amendments were made to the asset purchase agreement between the group and GranBio Investimentos SA relating to the energy cane
assets acquisition. The amendments to the agreement have resulted in the derecognition of the consideration payable from the business combination.

Revenue recognised of $104.6 million (2024: $76.6 million) represents performance obligations which have been met during the
current financial year in relation to contract liabilities held at the beginning of the year.
Supplier finance arrangements

The group has supplier finance arrangements in place to assist suppliers in managing their cash flows. The terms and conditions of
these arrangements are consistent with the original payment terms agreed with suppliers and therefore continue to be presented as
trade payables in the consolidated balance sheet.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of trade and other payables subject to supplier finance arrangements.

2025
$000
Liabilities under supplier finance arrangements
Presented within trade and other payables 26,319
- of which suppliers have received payment from the finance provider 26,319
Range of payment due dates
Trade payables subject to supplier finance arrangements (measured in days from either the invoice date or the end of the month
in which the invoice is issued) 180 days
Comparable trade payables (measured in days from either the invoice date or the end of the month in which the invoice
is issued) 30-180 days

The range of payment due dates for comparable trade payables that are not subject to the supplier finance arrangement is due to a
small percentage of the total invoices with a payment term of 30-135 days, whilst the rest of the comparable trade payables have 150
or 180-day terms.
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21 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
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2025 2024
$000 $000
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft - unsecured 7,769 -
Bank loans - secured 20,227 18,447
Bank loans - unsecured 222,234 51,178 >
o
Deferred debt establishment costs (5,988) (6,133) g,
c
Lease liabilities 20,886 18,519 ’
Loans and borrowings - current 265,128 82,011
Non-current liabilities
o
Bank loans - secured 372,117 350,701 -‘:;1
2]
Bank loans - unsecured 373 37,097 g’
@
Senior unsecured notes 529,261 505,415 §*
3
Deferred debt establishment costs (8,807) (14,523) %
Lease liabilities 131,248 128,451 °
Other loans - unsecured 9,599 9,170
Loans and borrowings - non-current 1,033,791 1,016,311 o
30T
[
ER
Total borrowings 1,298,919 1,098,322 g %
«Q
Fo
Net cash and cash equivalents (474,718) (463,563) § g
Net debt 824,201 634,759
Subsequent to 30 September 2025, the group has refinanced its short-term omega-3 loan facility with a balance of $109.401 million ‘§ io?
(US$90 million facility size, with US$72.347 million drawn) into a two-year A$90 million amortising loan facility with annual principal % §
repayments. The new facility is secured against tangible assets in Australia, the United States, Canada and New Zealand. 33
o
Financing facilities §
Refer to the section entitled ‘Liquidity Risk’ in note 27 for detail regarding the group’s financing facilities. 3
Accessible Utilised
$000 $000 o
[0]
2025 g
Bank loan facilities and senior unsecured notes 1,488,741 1,144,212 g
ke
Other facilities 9,699 9,699 g
Total financing facilities 1,498,340 1,153,811
2024 3
Bank loan facilities and senior unsecured notes 1,317,657 962,838 g
®
Other facilities 9,170 9,170 3
o
Total financing facilities 1,326,827 972,008 %
g
]
3
3
=)
]
8
[}
3
El
w
—
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Debt related

derivatives
Loans Loans (included in Total debt
and borrowings and borrowings assets/ related financial
- current - non-current liabilities)' instruments
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities $000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at10ct 2024 82,011 1,016,311 (6,533) 1,091,789
Cash changes
Proceeds from borrowings (net of costs) 189,652 485,807 (19,461) 655,998
Repayment of borrowings (562,776) (469,650) - (522,426)
Debt establishment transaction costs (1,966) - - (1,966)
Lease liability payments (26,075) - - (26,075)
Total cash flows 108,835 16,157 (19,461) 105,531
Non-cash changes
Leases entered into during the period net of leases ceased - 25,530 - 25,530
Foreign exchange movements 5141 37,107 26,823 69,071
Transfer 61,314 (61,314) - -
Amortisation of debt establishment transaction costs 7,827 - - 7,827
Other = = = =
Total non-cash changes 74,282 1,323 26,823 102,428
Balance at 30 September 2025 265,128 1,033,791 829 1,299,748

1 Total derivatives balance at 30 September 2025 is a net liability of $1.985 million (2024: $4.999 million net asset). The difference in carrying value to the table
above relates to forward exchange contracts which are excluded from the balances above as they are not connected to the group's financing activities.

Debt related

Loans Loans derivatives  Total debt related
and borrowings and borrowings (included in financial
- current - non-current  assets / liabilities) instruments
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities $000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at 10ct 2023 47,763 1,213,036 (5,559) 1,255,240
Cash changes
Proceeds from borrowings (net of costs) 61,319 360,920 (11,512) 410,727
Repayment of borrowings (11,884) (522,866) - (534,750)
Debt establishment transaction costs - (1,200) - (1,200)
Lease liability payments (22,265) - - (22,265)
Total cash flows 27,170 (163,146) (11,512) (147,488)
Non-cash changes
Leases entered into during the period net of leases ceased - 24,881 - 24,881
Foreign exchange movements (15,199) (43,315) 10,538 (47,976)
Transfer 15,145 (15,145) - -
Amortisation of debt establishment transaction costs 6,990 - - 6,990
Other 142 - - 142
Total non-cash changes 7,078 (33,579) 10,538 (15,963)
Balance at 30 September 2024 82,011 1,016,311 (6,533) 1,091,789
Financing arrangements 2025 2024
Without refinancing, expiry of available debt facilities (excluding lease liabilities) $000 $000
Period ending 30 September 2026 / 30 September 2025 336,675 96,502
Period ending 30 September 2027 / 30 September 2026 210,373 267,433
Period ending 30 September 2028 or later / 30 September 2027 or later 951,292 962,892
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2025 2024
Average interest rates % %
Nufarm step-up securities 7.98 8.46
Long-term secured bank loan - asset backed loan 5.83 6.83
Long-term secured bank loan - standby liquidity facility 4.83 6.09
Other bank loans 6.17 11.43
Lease liabilities 6.46 5.77
Senior unsecured notes 5.00 5.00

Average interest rates are calculated using the weighted average of the interest rates for the drawn balances under each facility as at
30 September 2025. Undrawn facility fees are paid on undrawn portions of the Asset Backed Loan, the Standby Liquidity Facility, and

other bank loans.

22 Employee benefits
2025 2024
$000 $000
Current
Liability for short-term employee benefits 17,896 16,408
Liability for current portion of other long-term employee benefits 16,431 16,039
Current employee benefits 34,327 32,447
Non-current
Defined benefit fund obligations
Present value of unfunded obligations 8,259 7,595
Present value of funded obligations 123,153 131,238
Fair value of fund assets - funded (109,223) (102,513)
Recognised liability for defined benefit fund obligations 22,189 36,320
Liability for non-current portion of other long-term employee benefits 4,064 4,864
Non-current employee benefits 26,253 41,184
Total employee benefits 60,580 73,631

For personal use only

During the year ended 30 September 2025, the group made contributions to defined benefit pension funds in the United Kingdom,

France, Indonesia and Germany that provide defined benefit amounts for employees upon retirement. Under these plans, e
are entitled to retirement benefits determined, at least in part, by reference to a formula based on years of membership and

mployees

salary levels. The defined benefit fund exposes the group to a number of risks, the most significant of which are interest rate and

inflation risks.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

2025 2024
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: $000 $000
Opening defined benefit obligation 138,833 129,018
Service cost 822 804
Interest cost 7,211 7,189
Actuarial losses/(gains):
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions 526 (383)
Effect of changes in financial assumptions (15,129) 7,253
Past service cost 46 -
Losses/(gains) on curtailment - -
Plan amendments (45) 163
Contributions - -
Benefits paid (7,488) (7,788)
>\ Exchange adjustment 6,636 2,577
C Closing defined benefit obligation 131,412 138,833
O Changes in the fair value of fund assets are as follows:
Opening fair value of fund assets 102,513 84,738
G) Interest income 5516 4,943
U) Actuarial gains/(losses) - return on plan assets excluding interest income (5,690) 8,849
3 Surplus taken to retained earnings - -
Assets distributed on settlement - -
p— Contributions by employer 8975 8,488
CG Distributions (6,790) (6,769)
C Administrative expenses (264) -
O Exchange adjustment 4,963 2,264
U) Closing fair value of fund assets 109,223 102,513
| -
q) The actual return on plan assets is the sum of the expected return and the actuarial gain/(loss).
Q 2025 2024
Expense/(gain) recognised in profit or loss $000 $000
by Current service costs 822 804
O Interest on obligation 7,211 7,189
LL Interest income (5,516) (4,943)
Losses/(gains) on curtailment - -
Plan amendments (45) 163
Past service cost/(gain) 46 -
Administrative expenses 264 -
Expense recognised in profit or loss 2,782 3,213
The expense is recognised in the following line items in profit or loss:
Cost of sales 1,540 1,762
Sales, marketing and distribution expenses 834 976
General and administrative expenses 379 431
Research and development expenses 29 44
Expense recognised in profit or loss 2,782 3,213
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2025 2024
Actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in other comprehensive income (net of tax) $000 $000
Cumulative amount at period opening date (52,616) (54,540)
Recognised during the period 6,840 1,924
Cumulative amount at period closing date (45,776) (52,616)
2025 2024
% %
The major categories of fund assets as a percentage of total fund assets are as follows:
Equities 85.5% 77.0%
Bonds 7.3% 6.0%
Property 0.1% 0.1%
Cash 7.1% 16.6%
Other 0.0% 0.3%
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
Discount rate at period end 5.8% 5.5%
Future salary increases 3.1% 3.2%
Future pension increases 2.5% 2.6%
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (in years) 11.62 13.44

A sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the principal actuarial assumptions was performed, with the
amount of increase/(decrease) to the defined benefit obligation shown below. The analysis is performed on the same basis for

30 September 2025.
2025 2024

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

in assumption in assumption in assumption in assumption

Sensitivity analysis Change $000 $000 $000 $000

Change in present value of defined benefit obligation

Discount rate 0.50% (7,350) 8,092 (8,634) 9,398
Future salary increases 0.25% 1,849 (2,106) 2,950 (3,293)

For personal use only

The group expects to pay $9.017 million in contributions to defined benefit plans during the year ending 30 September 2026 (2025:
$7.488 million). Where funded, the group makes cash contributions into the defined benefit fund. In the case of unfunded plans, the
group is responsible for benefit payments as they fall due. Plan funding requirements are generally determined by local regulation

and/or best practice and differ between countries.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

23 Share-based payments

Nufarm Executive Share Plan (2000)

The Nufarm Executive Share Plan (2000) offered shares to
executives. In August 2011, the group decided to cease the use
of this plan and no awards have been granted since this time.
All awards have vested and converted into unrestricted shares
as at 30 September 2025.

Executive Incentive Plan (EIP)

The Executive Incentive Plan (EIP) commenced in 2022 and
replaced the Short Term Incentive (STI) and Long Term
Incentive (LTIP) plans for key management personnel and
certain selected senior managers.

The total EIP award opportunity is based on a fixed percentage
of the fixed annual remuneration (or equivalent) relevant to

an individual, and is calculated at the end of the initial
performance year. The calculation incorporates certain financial
and non-financial performance measures relevant to an
individual, including:

« aprofit measure (typically Underlying EBIT' or
Underlying EBITDA)

« acash flow measure (typically average net working capital as
a percentage of revenue)

« non-financial measures incorporating strategic and business
improvement objectives.

Subject to the achievement of an annual cash award gateway,
the total EIP award opportunity is:

« Where the annual cash award gateway is met: allocated to
an individual as a combination of cash paid (typically 32%)
and deferred performance rights (typically 68%) in Nufarm
ordinary shares for nil consideration.

«  Where the annual cash award gateway is not met: allocated
to an individual as deferred performance rights (100%) in
Nufarm ordinary shares for nil consideration.

The number of rights granted is based on the volume weighted
average price of Nufarm Limited shares in the five days
subsequent to the results announcement.

Depending on the role of the individual, the performance

and vesting period for the deferred performance rights vary
between two, three and four years. For key management
personnel, the vesting of the deferred performance rights is
conditional upon satisfaction of certain non-market measures
(including ROFE) and a relative total shareholder return measure
(market measure) at the end of the vesting period.

Long Term Incentive (LTI)

The Long Term Incentive (LTl) commenced in 2025 for
members of the executive and senior leadership teams.

The total LTI award opportunity is based on a fixed percentage
of the fixed annual remuneration (or equivalent) relevant

to an individual on the first day of the performance year.

There are certain financial and non-financial performance
measures that are relevant depending on the individual and
where they are employed with allocations to both group and
regional performance:

« aprofit measure (Underlying EBIT')

« areturn measure (return of funds employed, or return
on assets)
« service conditions

The LTl rights performance and vesting period are three years,
where if the performance and/or service conditions have been
met convert into Nufarm Limited shares.

Nufarm Key Leadership Incentive Plan (KLIP)

On 1August 2018, the KLIP commenced and is available

to certain selected group employees. Awards are granted

to individuals in the form of rights, which provide eligibility

to the employees to acquire ordinary shares in the group

for nil consideration, subject to the employees remaining
employed within the group for a defined length of time under
the respective plans. The rights generally will have a vesting
period of three years (prior to 2025 this was four years). At
30 September 2025, there were 94 participants (30 September
2024100 participants) in the scheme and 1,283,500 rights
(30 September 2024:1490,500) were allocated.

Global Share Plan (2001)

The Global Share Plan commenced in 2001 and was available
to all permanent employees. The plan was suspended effective
31 December 2020. Previously, participants contributed a
proportion of their salary to purchase shares. The group
contributed an amount equal to 10 per cent of the number

of ordinary shares acquired with a participant's contribution

in the form of additional ordinary shares. Amounts over 10

per cent of the participant’s salary could be contributed but
were not able to be matched. For each year the shares are
held, up to a maximum of five years, the group contributes a
further 10 per cent of the value of the shares acquired with

the participant’s contribution. An independent trustee holds

the shares on behalf of the participants. At 30 September
2025, there were 208 participants (30 September 2024 251
participants) in the scheme and 971,601 shares (30 September
2024:1112,073) were allocated and held by the trustee on behalf
of the participants.

Nushare Share Plan

The Nushare Share Plan commenced in 2022 and offers shares
to all permanent employees who have not given, or been
given, notice of termination. Over an initial six-month period,
employees contribute a percentage or set-amount of after-tax
salary each month, up to 10 per cent of their annual salary,

and an independent trustee acquires shares monthly at market
value. At the end of the initial six-month period, for every three
shares acquired through the plan, employees are granted one
share right. The rights have a subsequent vesting period of

12 months, with conditions requiring employees to hold the
acquired shares and continue employment with Nufarm over
the same period. Upon satisfaction of the conditions, the rights
will automatically convert into unrestricted Nufarm ordinary
shares. An independent trustee holds both the acquired shares
and the rights on behalf of all employees. At 30 September
2025, there were 493 participants (30 September 2024: 586
participants) in the scheme and 249,938 rights (30 September
2024:174,795) were allocated and held by the trustee on behalf
of the participants.

The power of appointment and removal of the trustees for the
share purchase schemes is vested in the group.

' Underlying EBIT is earnings before net finance costs, taxation and material items. Underlying EBITDA is Underlying EBIT before depreciation, amortisation and

material items.
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2025 2024
Employee expenses $000 $000
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 6,211 6,278

For personal use only

Measurement of fair values

The number of performance rights to be granted as awards under the EIP corresponds to predetermined performance levels

(i.e..: Minimum, Target or Maximum) at the beginning of the financial year in respect of the relevant financial and non-financial

performance measures. Eligible employees will receive a variable number of rights ‘to the value of' these predetermined amounts.
The number of rights is determined based on the value of the award to be deferred into performance rights, divided by the volume
weighted average price (VWAP) for the five day period subsequent to the period end results announcement.

The EIP performance rights vesting conditions vary depending on the role of the individual, but they are all subject to employment
vesting conditions, and may include both non-market vesting conditions and market vesting conditions (specifically relative total
shareholder return metrics). The KLIP performance rights are subject to employment vesting conditions only.

To estimate the fair value of the different performance plans, the group utilises a range of valuation techniques including Monte-Carlo

simulation methodologies, Binomial Tree methodologies, and discounted dividend methodologies.

The fair value of performance rights granted through the EIP, LTIP and KLIP were measured as follows:

Weighted Share
average price at Weighted Risk free
fair value at grant Earliest average interest Dividend
grant date date Grant date vesting date  expected life Volatility rate yield
Nufarm EIP performance rights
2024 Plan - CEO $2.88 $3.68 4 Feb2025 30 Sep 2027 2.7 years 30% 3.8% 0.6%
2024 Plan - KMP $3.13 $3.88 14 Nov 2025 30 Sep 2027 2.9 years 30% 4.2% 0.6%
2023 Plan - Restricted
rights grant $5.69 $5.84 1Mar2024 30 Sep 2026 25 vyears n/a n/a 1.1%
2023 Plan - CEO $4.47 $5.54 1Feb 2024 30 Sep 2026 2.6 years 32% 3.7% 1.7%
2023 Plan - KMP $3.95 $4.79 8 Dec 2023 30 Sep 2026 2.8 years 32% 3.9% 2.0%
2023 Plan - Non-KMP $4.55 $4.79 8 Dec 2023 30 Sep 2024 2.8 years n/a n/a 1.7%
2022 Plan - CEO $4.25 $5.54 1Feb 2024 30 Sep 2025 1.6 years 32% 3.9% 1.7%
2022 Plan - All excl CEO $5.68 $595 24 Nov2022 30 Sep 2023 2.3 years n/a n/a 1.7%
Nufarm LTI performance rights
2025 Plan $348 $3.54 10 Jan 2025 30 Sep 2027 2.7 years 30% 4.0% 0.6%
Nufarm KLIP
performance rights
2025 Plan - 3 year $3.80 $3.92 10ct2024 30 Sep 2027 3years n/a n/a 1.1%
2024 Plan - 4 year $4.42 $4.73 10ct2023 30 Sep 2027 4 years n/a n/a 1.7%
2023 Plan - 4 year $4.71 $5.00 10ct 2022 30 Sep 2026 4 years n/a n/a 1.7%
2022 Plan - 4 year $4.41 $4.72 10ct 2021 30 Sep 2025 4 years n/a n/a 1.7%
Exercised
2025 Outstanding Granted rights Expired Forfeited
Reconciliation of outstanding at period during the during the during the during the Outstanding at Exercisable at
share awards opening date period period period period 30 September 30 September
EIP 1,668,315 526,395 (321,388) - (359,287) 1,514,035 592,539
LTI - 2,950,623 - - (128,126) 2,822,497 -
KLIP 1,490,500 86,500 (261,000) - (32,500) 1,283,500 443,000
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

2024 Outstanding at Granted Exercised Expired Forfeited
Reconciliation of outstanding period opening during the  rights during during the during the Outstanding at  Exercisable at
share awards date period the period period period 30 September 30 September
EIP 751,317 1,091,378 (174,380) - - 1,668,315 174,369
LTIP 600,877 - (600,877) - - - -
KLIP 1,227,500 335,000 (30,000) - (42,000) 1,490,500 -
STI 484,564 - (484,564) - - - -
The performance rights outstanding at 30 September 2025 have a $nil exercise price (2024: $nil) and a weighted average
contractual life of 3 years (2024: 3 years). All performance rights granted to date have a $nil exercise price.
24 Provisions
2025 2024
Current $000 $000
Restructuring 22,286 11,044
Current provisions 22,286 11,044
Restructuring Total
Movement in provisions $000 $000
Balance at 1 October 2024 11,044 11,044
Provisions made during the period 28,436 28,436
Provisions reversed during the period (1,373) (1,373)
Provisions used during the period (15,821) (15,821)
Balance at 30 September 2025 22,286 22,286

The provision for restructuring is mainly relating to the asset rationalisation and restructuring activities being undertaken across

the group.

25 Capital and reserves

Number of Number of

ordinary shares ordinary shares

Share capital 2025 2024
Balance at 1 October 382,307,128 380,764,253
Issue of shares 736,608 1,542,875
Balance at 30 September 383,043,736 382,307,128

The group does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued shares. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the company.

During the period the following shares were issued:

. On10ctober 2024, 582,388 shares at $3.91 were issued under the Key Leadership Incentive Plan and Executive Incentive Plan
« On13January 2025, 93,572 shares at $3.57 were issued under the Global Employee Share Plan and Nushare Share Plan
« On 4 July 2025, 60,648 shares at $2.23 were issued under the Nushare Share Plan.

Other securities

Nufarm step-up securities

On 24 November 2006 Nufarm Finance (NZ) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Nufarm Limited, issued 2,510,000 hybrid
securities at $100 each called Nufarm step-up securities (NSS), which are perpetual step-up securities. The NSS are listed on the
ASX under the code ‘NFNG' and on the NZDX under the code ‘NFFHA.

Distributions on the NSS are at the discretion of the directors and are floating rate, unfranked, non-cumulative and subordinated.
However, distributions of profits and capital by Nufarm Limited are curtailed if distributions to NSS holders are not made, until such
time that Nufarm Finance (NZ) Limited makes up the arrears. The distribution rate is the average mid-rate for bank bills with a term of

six months plus a margin of 3.9% (2024: 3.9%)).

Nufarm retains the right to redeem or exchange the NSS on future distribution dates. Under certain circumstances, an NSS holder

may request to redeem the NSS.
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Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations where their functional currency is different from the presentation currency of the reporting entity.

Capital profit reserve

This reserve is used to accumulate realised capital profits.

Other reserves

This reserve includes the following:

« Accrued employee entitlements to share awards that have been charged to the income statement and have not yet

been exercised.

« Accumulative effective portion of changes in the fair value of financial instruments that have been designated as either cash flow

hedges or net investment hedges.
« Changes in the fair value of other investments that have been designated at FVOCI.

Dividends
Total amount
2025 Cents per share $000 Payment date
Paid interim dividend (unfranked) nil nil n/a
Paid final dividend (unfranked) nil nil n/a
Total amount
2024 Cents per share $000 Payment date
Paid interim dividend (unfranked) 4.0 15,251 14 June 2024
Paid final dividend (unfranked) 5.0 19,038 15 December 2023

The company operates a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) under which eligible holders of ordinary shares are able to reinvest all or

part of their dividend payments into additional fully paid Nufarm Limited shares.

Distributions

m Distribution Total amount
| Nufarm step-up securities rate (annualised) $000 Payment date
m The following distributions were paid by Nufarm Finance (NZ) Ltd:
Q Proposed and unrecognised at reporting date
L Distribution 7.63% 9,652 15 April 2026
O Distribution 7.98% 10,037 15 October 2025
|1 2025
Distribution 8.51% 10,830 15 April 2025
Distribution 8.46% 10,830 15 October 2024
2024
Distribution 8.32% 10,643 15 April 2024
Distribution 7.66% 9,690 16 October 2023

The distribution on the Nufarm step-up securities reported on the equity movement schedule for the year ended 30 September

2025 amounted to $21.660 million (2024 $20.333 million).

Franking credits

The ability to utilise the franking credits is dependent upon there being sufficient available profits to declare dividends. In accordance
with the tax consolidation legislation, the company as the head entity in the tax-consolidated group has also assumed the benefit of

$nil (2024: $nil) franking credits.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

26 Earnings per share

2025 2024

Note $000 $000

Net profit/(loss) for the period (165,319) (5,598)

Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the group (165,319) (5,598)

Other securities distributions (net of tax) (21,660) (20,333)

Earnings/(loss) used in the calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share (186,979) (25,931)

Subtract/(add back) items of material income/(expense) 6 (142,449) (1,881)
Earnings/(loss) excluding items of material income/(expense) used in the calculation of

earnings per share - excluding material items (44,530) (24,050)

For the purposes of determining basic and diluted earnings per share, the after-tax distributions on other securities are deducted

from net profit.

Number of shares

2025 2024
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculation of basic earnings per share 382,969,196 382,069,965
Plus weighted average number of dilutive rights held under employee share plans 1,035,539 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculation of diluted earnings per share 384,004,735 382,069,965

The rights held under employee share plans that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future, but were anti-dilutive

for the current period had a weighted average number of 4,990,833 rights (2024 2,986,376 rights).

There have been no conversions to, calls of, or subscriptions for ordinary shares or issues of ordinary shares since the reporting date

and before the completion of this financial report.

Cents per share

Earnings per share 2025 2024
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (48.8) (6.8)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (48.7) (6.8)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share - excluding material items (11.6) (6.3)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share - excluding material items (11.6) (6.3)
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27 Financial risk management and financial instruments

The group has exposure to the following financial risks:

«  Creditrisk;
« Liquidity risk; and
«  Market risk.

This note presents information about the group’s exposure to
each of the above risks, the objectives, policies and processes
for measuring and managing risk, and the management

of capital.

The board has responsibility to identify, assess, monitor and
manage the material risks facing the group and to ensure
that adequate identification, reporting and risk minimisation
mechanisms are established and working effectively. To
support and maintain this objective, the audit and risk
committee has established detailed policies on risk oversight
and management by approving a global risk management
charter that specifies the responsibilities of the global

head of risk and compliance and the chief financial officer
(which includes responsibility for the internal audit function).
This charter also provides comprehensive global authority
to conduct internal audits, risk reviews and system-based
analyses of the internal controls in major business systems
operating within all significant group entities worldwide.

The global head of risk and compliance and the chief financial
officer report to the chair of the audit and risk committee.
Written reports regarding risk and compliance activities and
internal audit findings are provided at each meeting of the

audit and risk committee. In doing so, the global head of risk
and compliance and the chief financial officer have direct and
ongoing access to the chair and members of the audit and
risk committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer
or counter-party to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the group’'s
receivables from customers and other financial assets.

Exposure to credit risk

The group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics
of the group’s customer base, including the default risk of the
industry and country in which the customers operate, has less
of an influence on credit risk.

The group has credit policies in place and the exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
are performed on all customers before the group's standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.
Purchase limits are established for each customer, which
represents the maximum open amount without requiring further
management approval.

The group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date was:

2025 2024

Carrying amount $000 $000

Trade and other receivables 652,337 670,460

Cash and cash equivalents 474,718 463,563
Derivative contracts:

Assets 3,893 13,461

1,130,948 1,147,484

For personal use only

The group's maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables at the reporting date by geographic region was:

2025 2024
Carrying amount $000 $000
Australia/New Zealand 166,041 149,636
Asia 49,526 40,047
Europe 179,106 193,638
North America 188,448 231,150
South America 69,216 55,989
Trade and other receivables 652,337 670,460

The group's top five customers account for $119.876 million of
the trade receivables carrying amount at 30 September 2025
(B0 September 2024 $106.411 million).

These top five customers represent 16 per cent (30 September
2024:15 per cent) of the total trade receivables.

Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025 109

MSIAIBAO GZOT
souewloped HS3 INO snnoqy 1eak |eloueul4

MBIASY |eloueUlS
pue BuneladQ

JuSWS}e)S SoueUISA0h
1loday sl010241q ojesodio)

1odey uonelsunway

sjuawale)s |eloueuly



For personal use only

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Impairment losses

The ageing of the group's customer trade receivables at the
reporting date was:

2025 2024

Receivables ageing $000 $000
Current 451,391 449,763
Past due - O to 90 days 47,680 63,783
Past due - 90 to 180 days 5,982 13,216
Past due - 180 to 360 days 7,188 7,208
Past due - more than one year 20,800 16,392
533,041 550,362

Provision for expected credit losses (25,965) (19,937)
Trade receivables 507,076 530,425

Some receivables are secured by collateral from customers
such as guarantees and charges on assets. In some countries
credit insurance is undertaken to reduce credit risk. The past
due receivables not impaired are considered recoverable. In the
crop protection industry, it is normal practice to vary the terms

of sales depending on the climatic conditions experienced in
each country.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of
trade receivables during the period was as follows.

2025 2024
Provision for expected credit losses $000 $000
Balance at 1 October 19,937 25,232
Provisions made / (reversed) during the period 11,729 225
Provisions used during the period (7,051) (3,210)
Exchange adjustment 1,350 (2,310)
Balance at 30 September 25,965 19,937

Expected credit loss assessment for individual customers

For trade receivables, the group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The group considers a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the group. A financial asset is written off when there

is N0 reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Objective evidence of impairment includes default or
delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor will enter
bankruptcy, and, in the case of an investment in an equity
security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty

in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The group'’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
group's reputation.

Sales and operating profit are seasonal and are weighted
towards the first half of the calendar year in Australia/New
Zealand, North America and Europe, reflecting the planting and
growing cycle in these regions while in Latin America the sales
and operating profit are weighted towards the second half of
the calendar year. This seasonal operating activity results in
seasonal working capital requirements.

Principally, the group sources liquidity from cash generated
from operations, and where required, external bank facilities.
Working capital fluctuations due to seasonality of the business
are supported by the short-term funding available from the
group’s asset based lending facility.

Interest on borrowings is denominated in currencies that match
the cash flows generated by the underlying operations of the
group. This provides an economic hedge and no derivatives are
used to manage the exposure.
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Debt facilities

As at 30 September 2025, the key group facilities include

a $800 million revolving asset based lending credit

facility maturing in November 2027 (30 September 2024
$800 million), a US$350 million senior unsecured notes
offering maturing in January 2030 (30 September 2024
US$350 million) and a standby liquidity facility of $210 million
maturing in November 2026 (30 September 2024: $210 million
maturing in November 2025).

On 15 November 2022, Nufarm entered into a five year

$800 million revolving asset based lending credit facility (ABL)
secured against trade receivables and inventory located in
Australia, the United States and Canada. Concurrently, a two
year $150 million standby liquidity facility (SLF) secured against
tangible assets in Australia, the United States, Canada and New
Zealand was entered into. The ABL and SLF facilities provide
the group with flexibility to align drawings with changes in
working capital and other cash requirements.

In November 2023, the group increased the SLF to $210 million
and renegotiated a one-year term extension to November
2025. In FY25, the group renegotiated a further one-year term
extension to November 2026.

Availability under the ABL will be limited at any time to the
lesser of the global borrowing base and the ABL facility

limit ($800 million). The global borrowing base fluctuates on

a monthly basis relative to the advance rates against trade
receivables and inventory, ineligibility criteria and the inclusion
of a provision for general reserves in Australia, the United States
and Canada. As at 30 September 2025, the global borrowing
base was lower than the ABL facility limit at $412 million (2024
$448 million).

The ABL facility is governed by terms and conditions that

are customary for a secured facility of this size, and as

at 30 September 2025 Nufarm was in compliance with all
conditions. The total carrying amount of trade receivables
and inventories pledged as collateral for the ABL as at

30 September 2025 is $1,153 million (2024 $1,081 million)
which fluctuates with the groups working capital cycle. The
total carrying amount of tangible and fixed assets pledged as
security against the SLF facility as at 30 September 2025 is
approximately $450 million (2024: $453 million).

The ABL facility has a springing covenant which is only
activated when the facility is highly utilised, which is customary
market practice for a facility of this type. When highly utilised,

a fixed cover charge ratio is required to be complied with. The
springing covenant has not been activated during the current or
prior corresponding period.

On 27 January 2022, the group completed the refinancing

of the US$475 million senior unsecured notes due in April
2026 ("the 2026 notes"). The 2026 notes were redeemed

from investors in February 2022 through the issuance of
US$350 million senior unsecured notes due in January

2030 with a fixed coupon of 5.00% ("the 2030 notes"). The
2030 notes were issued under a dual tranche structure by
Nufarm Australia Ltd (US$105 million) and Nufarm Americas Inc
(US$245 million).

The ABL and SLF facilities provide the group with flexibility to
align drawings with changes in working capital and other cash
requirements. The ABL and SLF facilities are governed by terms
and conditions that are customary for secured facilities of their
size. The guarantor group is consistent across the ABL, the
2030 notes and SLF.

On 20 November 2024, Nufarm entered into a US$40 million
short-term trade loan facility to finance the omega-3 production
and trade cycle. The facility was subsequently increased to
US$90 million in March 2025. The facility was a committed
facility, on an unsecured basis, and supported by a parent
guarantee from Nufarm Limited. Subsequent to 30 September
2025, the group has refinanced the US$90 million short-term
omega-3 loan facility into a two-year A$90 million amortising
loan facility with annual principal repayments. The new facility
is secured against tangible assets in Australia, the United
States, Canada and New Zealand. Refer to notes 21 and 36 for
further information.

The majority of debt facilities that reside outside the ABL facility,
the 2030 notes, SLF and omega-3 facility are regional working
capital facilities, primarily located in Europe and LATAM, which
at 30 September 2025 totalled $211 million (30 September
2024 $163 million). A parent guarantee is provided to support
working capital facilities in Europe and LATAM.

Trade finance

The liquidity of the group is influenced by the terms suppliers
extend in respect of purchases of goods and services. The
determination of terms provided by suppliers is influenced by

a variety of factors including supplier's liquidity. Suppliers may
engage financial institutions to facilitate the receipt of payments
for goods and services from the group, which are often referred
to as supplier financing arrangements. The group is aware

that trade payables of $26.319 million at 30 September 2025
(30 September 2024 $121.613 million) are to be settled via

such arrangements in future periods. In the event suppliers or
financial institutions cease such arrangements, the liquidity of
the group's suppliers may be affected. If suppliers subsequently
seek to reduce terms on group’s purchases of goods and
services in the future, the group’s liquidity will be affected.
Details of the group’s trade and other payables are disclosed

in note 20.

To support the liquidity of the group and reduce the credit
risk relating to specific customers, trade receivables held by
the group are sold to third parties. The sales (or factoring)

of receivables to third parties is primarily done on a non-
recourse basis is included within finance expense and the
group incurs this expense at the time of the sale. The group
derecognises trade receivables where the terms of the sale
allows for derecognition.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

The following are the contractual maturities of the group's
financial liabilities:

Contractual More than
Carrying amount cash flows Less than1year 1-2 years 2 years
2025 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 925,292 925,292 908,616 8,872 7,804
Business combination - consideration payable - - - - -
Bank overdraft - unsecured 7,769 7,769 7,769 = =
Bank loans - secured 392,344 427,607 40,882 177,790 208,935
Bank loans - unsecured 222,607 244,337 243,839 65 433
Senior unsecured notes 529,261 648,345 26,463 26,463 595,419
Other loans - unsecured 508 9,599 = = 9,599
Lease liabilities - secured 152,134 310,456 29,391 23,019 258,046
Derivative financial liabilities
Derivatives used for hedging:
Outflow = = = = =
Inflow = = = = =
Other derivative contracts:
Outflow 5,878 703,319 703,319 = =
Inflow - (691,279) (691,279) - -
Derivative financial assets
Derivatives used for hedging:
Outflow = = = = =
Inflow = = = = =
Other derivative contracts:
Outflow - 624,716 624,716 - -
Inflow (3,893) (628,797) (628,797) - -
2,240,991 2,681,364 1,264,919 236,209 1,080,236

For personal use only
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Contractual
Carrying amount cash flows Less than 1year 1-2 years More than 2 years
2024 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 887,303 887,303 873,132 7,218 6,953
Business combination - consideration payable 8,041 24351 28 212 24,111
Bank overdraft - unsecured - - - - -
Bank loans - secured 369,148 424,034 39,954 141,496 242584
Bank loans - unsecured 88,275 102,509 63,543 38,187 779
Senior unsecured notes 505,415 644,405 25271 25271 593,863
Other loans - unsecured 9,170 9,170 - - 9,170
Lease liabilities - secured 146,970 304,411 23,813 20,079 260,519
Derivative financial liabilities
Derivatives used for hedging:
Outflow - - - - -
Inflow - - - - -
Other derivative contracts:
Outflow 8,462 536,920 536,920 - -
Inflow - (526,217) (526,217) - -
Derivative financial assets
Derivatives used for hedging:
Outflow - 86,643 86,643 - -
Inflow (5,765) (92,890) (92,890) - -
Other derivative contracts:
Outflow - 532,880 532,880 - -
Inflow (7,696) (541,346) (541,346) - -
2,009,323 2,392,173 1,021,731 232,463 1,137,979
Market risk The currencies giving rise to the identified risks include the

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as
foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will
affect the group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to

US Dollar, the Euro, the British Pound, the Australian Dollar,

New Zealand Dollar, Indonesian Rupiah, Polish Zloty, Ukrainian
Hryvnia, Romanian Leu, Hungarian Forint, Mexican Peso, Turkish
Lira, Argentine Peso, Brazilian Real and the Czech Koruna.

manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable Financial instruments used by the group to manage currency

parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk

risks include derivative instruments such as foreign exchange
contracts, cross currency interest rate swaps and options,
and non-derivative instruments such as foreign currency debt

The group uses financial instruments to manage specifically instruments. The group designates select financial instruments
identified foreign currency risks. This includes risks relating to for hedge accounting where it is deemed appropriate to do so.
the translation of earnings that are denominated in a currency The group uses financial instruments to manage foreign

other than the group reporting currency (Australian Dollars), and currency translation risk arising from the group’s net
transactional foreign currency risks where receivables, payables investments in foreign currency subsidiary entities. These

and borrowings are denominated in a currency other than the financial instruments are designated as net investment
functional currency of the individual group entity. The functional hedges for hedge accounting purposes. No ineffectiveness
currency is determined via reference to the currency of the was recognised from net investment hedges during the
operating, investing and financing cashflows for each individual reporting periods.

group entity.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

The net fair value of derivative financial instruments in the
group, not designated as being in a hedge relationship, used
as economic hedges of forecast transactions at 30 September
2025 was a $1.985 million asset (2024: $4.999 million asset)
comprising assets of $5.878 million (2024 $13.461 million) and
liabilities of $3.893 million (2024: $8.462 million).

Exposure to transactional currency risk

The group’s exposure to major transactional foreign currency
risks at balance date are as follows. The exposures are
calculated based on locally reported net foreign currency
exposures, and are presented net of open derivative financial
instruments. The analysis is performed on the same basis as
the previous financial period.

Net financial assets/(liabilities) - by currency of denomination

For personal use only

AUD usD EUR GBP

2025 $000 $000 $000 $000
Functional currency of group operation

Australian dollars - 8,202 (1,172) 2572

US dollars (711) = (3,621) 421

Euro (220) (4,171) - 6,112

British pound (478) (4,379) (23,586) -

(1,409) (348) (28,379) 9,105

Net financial assets/(liabilities) - by currency of denomination

AUD usD EUR GBP

2024 $000 $000 $000 $000
Functional currency of group operation

Australian dollars - 2,050 (2,105) 2,212

US dollars (228) - (4,592) -

Euro (255) (19,138) - 3,271

British pound (248) 4,520 598 -

(731) (12,568) (6,099) 5483

Sensitivity analysis

Based on the aforementioned group's net financial assets/
(liabilities) at 30 September 2025, a one per cent strengthening
or weakening of the following currencies at 30 September

2025 would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss by

the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes all other
variables, including interest rates, remain constant. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 30 September 2024.

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
Profit or (loss) Profit or (loss) Profit or (loss) Profit or (loss)
after tax after tax after tax after tax
2025 2025 2024 2024
Currency movement $000 $000 $000 $000
1% change in the Australian dollar exchange rate (76) 7 (20) 20
1% change in the US dollar exchange rate 25 (25) (54) 54
1% change in the Euro exchange rate (211) 209 70 (69)
1% change in the GBP exchange rate 263 (260) 4 (4)
The group's financial asset and liability profile may not remain The following significant exchange rates applied during
constant, and therefore these sensitivities should be used the period:
with care.
Average Rate! Reporting Date?
AUD 2025 2024 2025 2024
US Dollar 0.644 0.662 0.661 0.693
Euro 0.585 0.609 0.564 0.618
GBP 0.493 0.520 0.492 0.516

1 This represents the average of the monthly rates used to translate foreign subsidiary earnings into the reporting currency (AUD). It is not weighted by earnings.

2 This represents the closing rate at 30 September 2025.
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Interest rate risk

The group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates primarily relates to the group’s debt obligations that have
floating interest rates. This risk is mitigated by maintaining

a level of fixed and floating rate borrowings, as well as the
ability to use derivative financial instruments when deemed
appropriate to do so.

The majority of the group'’s debt is raised under central
borrowing programs. The asset based loan facility and the

issuance of US$350 million senior unsecured notes due in
January 2030 with a fixed coupon component of 5.00%.
Interest rate risk on Nufarm step-up securities

The distribution rate is the average mid-rate for bank bills with a
term of six months plus a margin of 3.9% (2023: 3.9%).

Profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the group’s
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Fair values approximate the fair values. In the case of the centrally
managed fixed rate debt not swapped to floating rate totalling
$529.261 million (2024: $505.415 million), the fair value at

30 September 2025 is $481.627 million (2024 $468.141 million).
The centrally managed fixed rate debt relates to our senior
unsecured notes whose fair value can be determined from
observable quoted market prices and therefore is classified as
Level 1in the fair value hierarchy.

All financial assets and financial liabilities, other than derivatives,
are initially recognised at the fair value of consideration

paid or received, net of transaction costs as appropriate,

and subsequently carried at fair value or amortised cost, as
indicated in the tables below. Derivatives are initially recognised
at fair value on the date the contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value.

The financial assets and liabilities are presented by class
in the tables below at their carrying values, which generally

Financial
Carried at fair assets/ Financial
value through Derivatives used liabilities at  assets/ liabilities
profit or loss for hedging amortised cost at FVOCI Total
2025 Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents 12 - - 474,718 - 474,718
Trade and other receivables
excluding derivatives 13 - - 652,337 - 652,337
Other investments 17 = = = 71,554 71,554
Forward exchange contracts:
Assets 13 3,893 - - - 3,893
Liabilities 20 (5,878) - - - (5,878)
Trade and other payables
excluding derivatives 20 - - (925,292) - (925,292)
Unsecured bank overdrafts 21 - - (7,769) - (7,769)
Secured bank loans 21 - - (392,344) - (392,344)
Unsecured bank loans 21 - - (222,607) - (222,607)
Senior unsecured notes 21 - - (529,261) - (529,261)
Other loans 21 - - (9,599) - (9,599)
Lease liabilities 21 = = (152,134) = (152,134)
(1,985) - (1,111,951) 71,554 (1,042,382)
Carried at fair Financial assets /
value through Derivatives used liabilities at Financial assets /
profit or loss for hedging amortised cost  liabilities at FVOCI Total
2024 Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents 12 - - 463,563 - 463,563
Trade and other receivables
excluding derivatives 13 - - 670,460 - 670,460
Other investments 17 - - - 60,878 60,878
Forward exchange contracts:
Assets 13 7,696 5765 - - 13,461
Liabilities 20 (8,462) - - - (8,462)
Trade and other payables
excluding derivatives 20 (8,041) - (887,302) - (895,343)
Unsecured bank overdrafts 21 - - - - -
Secured bank loans 21 - - (369,148) - (369,148)
Unsecured bank loans 21 - - (88,275) - (88,275)
Senior unsecured notes 21 - - (505,415) - (505,415)
Other loans 21 - - (9,170) - (9,170)
Lease liabilities 21 - - (146,970) - (146,970)
(8,807) 5,765 (872,257) 60,878 (814,421)
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Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

« Level 1. Based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial assets and liabilities;

Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from

prices); and

Level 3: Based on inputs not observable in the market using
appropriate valuation models, including discounted cash
flow modelling and comparable company transactions.

MBIAIBAO GZ0TZ
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Capital management

The board'’s capital management policy aims to maintain

a robust and durable capital structure and provide clear
guidelines for the application of cash flow generated

from business operations. The policy includes a cascading
approach to capital allocation decisions that is consistent
with maintaining targeted credit metrics and a sound
financial structure.

This cascading approach to capital allocation and the
application of free cash flow "through the cycle" encompasses
both capital investment decisions and distributions paid to
shareholders. While the board maintain discretion, it is intended
that the group applies free cash flow from business operations
in the following manner:

1 Application of free cash flow to investment growth projects
and/or small bolt-on acquisitions where the projected
returns satisfy internal underlying return on funds employed
(ROFE) measures that exceed the group’s weighted average
cost of capital.

28 Leases

2 Consideration of the payment of a dividend from part of
free cash flow, subject to compliance with the core target
leverage (statutory) range of 1.5x - 2.0x, under the group's

dividend policy.

3 Consideration of any excess capital to be returned to
shareholders in circumstances where the group is below
its targeted leverage metrics and insufficient growth
opportunities exist to utilise excess free cash flow. These
capital return measures may include special dividends and

share buy-backs.

The board is focused on the efficient use of capital and believes
ROFE, leverage and cash flow are appropriate performance
measures to be considered in the application of the board's
capital management policy. In particular, ROFE provides a
measure that remains effective regardless of the mix of

equity and debt, which may change from time to time. ROFE

is included in management remuneration structures through
budget targets that incorporate capital management and
growth strategies. The ROFE for the year ended 30 September
2025 was 2.9 per cent. (2024 3.6 per cent).

Leases are generally entered to access the use of longer term manufacturing facilities, warehouse and office properties; and shorter
term assets such as motor vehicles, mobile plant and office equipment. Rentals are fixed for the duration of these leases. These
rentals have regular reviews based on market rentals at the time of review.

The group also leases IT equipment which have short term contracts and/or are low value items. The group has elected not to

recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets included in property, plant and equipment (see note 18) are as follows:

®
-
o Land Plant
m and buildings and machinery Total
| - $000 $000 $000
q) Balance at 1 October 2024 91,046 11,454 102,500
Q Additions to right-of-use assets 16,564 12,169 28,733
Depreciation charge for the period (18,492) (8,801) (27,293)
o Disposals and write-offs (2,158) (1,123) (3,281)
o Foreign exchange adjustment 3,631 336 3,967
I I Balance at 30 September 2025 90,591 14,035 104,626
Land Plant
and buildings and machinery Total
$000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 October 2023 91,321 11,237 102,558
Additions to right-of-use assets 20,083 8,121 28,204
Depreciation charge for the period (17,407) (6,678) (24,085)
Disposals and write-offs (1,680) (770) (2,450)
Foreign exchange adjustment (1,271) (456) (1,727)
Balance at 30 September 2024 91,046 11,454 102,500
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2025 2024
$000 $000
Amounts recognised in profit/(loss)
Depreciation on right of use assets (27,293) (24,085)
Lease liability interest expenses (9,656) (8,408)
Expenses relating to short-term leases (1,497) (1,507)
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of low-value assets (68) (152)
Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows
Operating cash flows
Lease liability interest payments (9,656) (8,408)
Short-term and low-value lease payments (1,565) (1,659)
Financing cash flows
Lease liability principal payments (26,075) (22,265)

29 Capital commitments

The group had contractual obligations to purchase plant and equipment for $29.375 million at 30 September 2025 (2024

$29.834 million).

During the year ended 30 September 2025, due to ongoing discussions with Leshan Nong Fu Trading on exploring alternative
commercial structures for the joint venture, the group assesses that it does not have any outstanding capital commitments (2024
RMB 28 million, approximately $5.8 million) in respect of its 35 percent interest in Leshan Nong Fu Trading Co., Ltd. For further

information, refer to note 16.

30 Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, obligations may arise in the future due to lawsuits and claims including those pertaining to
product liability, safety and health, intellectual property, environmental and tax matters which may be instituted or asserted against
the group. While the amounts claimed may be substantial, a future liability cannot be determined due to significant uncertainties that

existed at balance date.

Nonetheless, it is possible that results of the group’s operations or liquidity in a particular period could be materially affected by such

claims in the future.

31 Group entities

Percentage of shares held

I _ Place

Notes of incorporation 2025 2024
Company
Nufarm Limited - ultimate controlling entity
Subsidiaries
Access Genetics Pty Ltd ! Australia - 100
Agcare Biotech Pty Ltd ! Australia - 100
Agchem Receivables Corporation USA 100 100
Agryl Holdings Limited 2 Australia 100 100
Agtrol International SA DE CV Mexico 100 100
Ag-seed Research Pty Ltd ! Australia - 100
Ag-turf SA DE CV Mexico 100 100
AH Marks Australia Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
AH Marks Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100 100
AH Marks Pensions Scottish Limited Partnership United Kingdom 100 100
Artfern Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Nuseed Brazil SA (previously known as Atlantica Sementes SA) Brazil 100 100
Australis Services Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Bestbeech Pty Ltd ! Australia - 100
Chemicca Limited ! Australia - 100
CNG Holdings BV Netherlands 100 100
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Percentage of shares held

Place

Notes of incorporation 2025 2024
COCREF Investor 177 LLC s USA - -
Crop Care Australasia Pty Ltd ! Australia - 100
Crop Care Holdings Limited ! New Zealand - 100
Croplands Equipment Limited New Zealand 100 100
Croplands Equipment Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Danestoke Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Edgehill Investments Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Fchem (Aust) Limited 2 Australia 100 100
Fernz Canada Limited Canada 100 100
First Classic Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Frost Technology Corporation USA 100 100
Growell Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Grupo Corporativo Nufarm SA Guatemala 100 100
Le Moulin des Ecluses s.a France 100 100
Lefroy Seeds Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Manaus Holdings Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100
Marman (Nufarm) Inc USA 100 100
Marman de Mexico Sociedad Anomima De Capital Variable Mexico 100 100
Marman Holdings LLC USA 100 100
Masmart Pty Ltd ! Australia - 100
Mastra Corporation Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Mastra Corporation Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100
Mastra Corporation USA Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Mastra Holdings Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100
Mastra Industries Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100
Medisup Securities Limited 2 Australia 100 100
Munistrategies Sub-CDE 29, LLC 3 USA - -
NF Agriculture Inc USA 100 100
Nufarm ABF Trustees Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Nufarm Agriculture (Pty) Ltd South Africa 100 100
Nufarm Agriculture Inc Canada 100 100
Nufarm Agriculture Zimbabwe (Pvt) Ltd Zimbabwe 100 100
Nufarm Americas Holding Company USA 100 100
Nufarm Americas Inc USA 100 100
Nufarm Asia Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100
Nufarm Australia Limited 2 Australia 100 100
Nufarm BV Netherlands 100 100
Nufarm Canada Receivables Partnership Canada 100 100
Nufarm Chemical (Shanghai) Co Ltd China 100 100
Nufarm Crop Products UK Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Nufarm Costa Rica Inc. SA Costa Rica 100 100
Nufarm de Guatemala SA Guatemala 100 100
Nufarm de Mexico Sa de CV Mexico 100 100
Nufarm de Panama SA Panama 100 100
Nufarm de Venezuela SA Venezuela 100 100
Nufarm Deutschland GmbH Germany 100 100
Nufarm do Brazil Ltda Brazil 100 100
Nufarm Espana SA Spain 100 100
Nufarm Europe GmbH Germany 100 100
Nufarm Finance BV s Netherlands = -
Nufarm Finance Inc USA 100 100
Nufarm Finance Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Nufarm Finance (NZ) Limited New Zealand 100 100
Nufarm GmbH Austria 100 100
Nufarm GmbH & Co KG Austria 100 100
Nufarm Grupo Mexico S DE RL DE CV Mexico 100 100
Nufarm Holdings (NZ) Limited New Zealand 100 100
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Percentage of shares held

Place

Notes of incorporation 2025 2024
Nufarm Holdings BV Netherlands 100 100
Nufarm Holdings s.a.s France 100 100
Nufarm Hong Kong Investments Ltd Hong Kong 100 100
Nufarm Hungaria Kft Hungary 100 100
Nufarm Inc USA 100 100
Nufarm India Private Limited India 100 -
Nufarm Insurance Pte Ltd Singapore 100 100
Nufarm Investments Cooperatie WA Netherlands 100 100
Nufarm Investment Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Nufarm ltalia srl Italy 100 100
Nufarm KK Japan 100 100
Nufarm Korea Ltd ! Korea - 100
Nufarm Labuan Pte Ltd Malaysia 100 100
Nufarm Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Nufarm Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100
Nufarm Materials Limited ! Australia - 100
Nufarm Middle East Operations Egypt 100 100
Nufarm Nordics AB Sweden 100 100
Nufarm NZ Limited New Zealand 100 100
Nufarm Pensions General Partner Ltd United Kingdom 100 100
Nufarm Pensions Scottish Limited Partnership United Kingdom 100 100
Nufarm Platte Pty Ltd ! Australia - 100
Nufarm Polska SP.Z 0.0 Poland 100 100
Nufarm Portugal LDA Portugal 100 100
Nufarm Romania SRL Romania 100 100
Nufarm s.a.s France 100 100
Nufarm Services (Singapore) Pte Ltd Singapore 100 100
Nufarm Services Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100
Nufarm Technologies (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 100
Nufarm Technologies USA New Zealand 100 100
Nufarm Technologies USA Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Nufarm Treasury Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Nufarm Turkey Kimyevi Maddeler Ithalat ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi Turkey 100 100
Nufarm UK Limited United Kingdom 100 100
Nufarm Ukraine LLC Ukraine 100 100
Nufarm Uruguay SA Uruguay 100 100
Nufarm USA Inc USA 100 100
Nufarm Vietnam Co. Ltd. Vietnam 100 -
Nugrain Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Nuseed Americas Inc USA 100 100
Nuseed Canada Inc Canada 100 100
Nuseed Europe Holding Company Ltd United Kingdom 100 100
Nuseed Europe Ltd United Kingdom 100 100
Nuseed Global Holdings Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Nuseed Global Innovation United Kingdom 100 100
Nuseed Global Management USA Inc USA 100 100
Nuseed Holding Company USA 100 100
Nuseed International Holdings Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Nuseed Mexico SA De CV Mexico 100 100
Nuseed Nutritional Australia Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Nuseed Nutritional US Inc USA 100 100
Nuseed Nutritional Chile SpA Chile 100 100
Nuseed Omega Holdings Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Nuseed Paraguay SA Paraguay 100 100
Nuseed Proprietary Limited 2 Australia 100 100
Nuseed SA Argentina 100 100
Nuseed Serbia d.o.o0. Serbia 100 100
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Percentage of shares held

Place

Notes of incorporation 2025 2024
Nuseed South America Sementes Ltda Brazil 100 100
Nuseed Spain, S.L. Spain 100 100
Nuseed Ukraine LLC Ukraine 100 100
Nuseed Uruguay SA Uruguay 100 100
Nutrihealth Grain Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Nutrihealth Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Opti-Crop Systems Pty Ltd Australia 75 75
Pharma Pacific Pty Ltd ! Australia - 100
Plant Protection Products For Middle East Operations Egypt 100 100
PT Crop Care Indonesia 100 100
PT Nufarm Indonesia Indonesia 100 100
Richardson Seeds Ltd USA 100 100
Selchem Pty Ltd 2 Australia 100 100
Societe Des Ecluses De la Garenne France 100 100
3 Rivers Sub-CDE 5 LLC 3 USA - -

1 These entities ceased operations during the year ended 30 September 2025 resulting in disposal of the entity, liquidation of the entity or amalgamation with
other group entities.

2 These entities have entered into a deed of cross guarantee dated 21 June 2006, varied by various Assumption Deeds with Nufarm Limited which provides that
all parties to the deed will guarantee to each creditor payment in full of any debt of each company participating in the deed on winding-up of that company.
As aresult of a class order issued by the Australian Securities and Investment Commission, these companies are relieved from the requirement to prepare
financial statements.

3 The group does not hold any ownership interests in these entities, however, based on the terms of agreement under which these entities were established, the
group controls the operations of these entities.

For personal use only
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32 Company disclosures
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Company

2025 2024

$000 $000
Result of the company
Profit for the period 11,062 24,029
Other comprehensive income (39) (2,080)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 11,023 21,949

2025 2024

$000 $000
Financial position of the company at the period end
Current assets 692,134 692,045
Total assets 2,199,455 2,209,053
Current liabilities 172,887 201,357
Total liabilities 180,651 207,825
Total equity of the company comprising of:
Share capital 1,850,605 1,847,855
Translation reserve (1,845) (1,806)
Capital profit reserve 40,074 40,074
Other reserve 13,719 9,916
Accumulated losses (567,512) (567,512)
Retained earnings' 173,763 162,701
Total equity 2,018,804 2,001,228

1 Retained earnings comprises the transfer of net profit for the period and are characterised as profits available for distribution as dividends in future periods.
Dividends amounting to nil (2024: $34.380 million) were distributed from the retained earnings during the year.

Company contingencies

The company is one of the guarantors of the senior secured bank facility (SFA) and would be obliged, along with the other guarantors,

to make payment on the SFA in the unlikely event of a default by one of the borrowers. The company also provides guarantees to

support several of the regional working capital facilities located in Europe, and the senior unsecured notes. Refer to notes 21 and 27

for the balances related to these facilities.

Company capital commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment

There are no capital commitments for the company at 30 September 2025 or 30 September 2024.
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For personal use only

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

33 Deed of cross guarantee

Under ASIC Corporations (Wholly owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785, the Australian wholly-owned subsidiaries referred to
in note 31 are relieved from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement of financial reports and
director’s reports.

It is a condition of the class order that the company and each of the subsidiaries enter into a deed of cross guarantee. The company
and certain Australian controlled entities have entered into a deed of cross guarantee dated 21 June 2006, varied by an Assumption
Deed dated 13 February 2013, 29 May 2013 and 26 July 2019, which provides that all parties to the deed will guarantee to each
creditor, payment in full of any debt of each company participating in the deed on winding-up of that company.

A consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and consolidated balance sheet, comprising the
company and controlled entities which are a party to the deed, after eliminating all transactions between parties to the deed of cross
guarantee, at 30 September 2025 follows.

Consolidated Deed Group

2025 2024

$000 $000
Revenue 725,709 746,755
Cost of sales (562,564) (600,117)
Gross profit 163,145 146,638
Other income 71,897 88,391
Sales, marketing and distribution expenses (77,750) (106,652)
General and administrative expenses (104,075) (8,861)
Research and development expenses (25,944) (17,656)
Operating profits/(losses) (135,872) (44,778)
Share of net profits/(losses) of equity accounted investees (283) (176)
Financial income 1,044 1,260
Financial expenses excluding foreign exchange gains/(losses) (13,894) (12,766)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 1,973 (279)
Net financial expenses (11,921) (13,045)
Net financing costs (10,877) (11,785)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 16,113 89,899
Income tax benefit/(expense) (12,696) 21,028
Profit/(loss) for the period 3,417 110,927
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the closed group 3,417 110,927
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

Consolidated Deed Group

2025 2024
Balance sheet $000 $000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 87,035 82,676
Trade and other receivables 1,067,292 909,950
Inventories 231,015 226,584
Current tax assets 2,156 12,575
Total current assets 1,387,498 1,231,785
Non-current assets
Investments in equity accounted investees 875 2,412
Other investments 1,463,587 1,427,206
Deferred tax assets 83,972 93,367
Property, plant and equipment 107,810 105,816
Intangible assets 156,246 188,814
Total non-current assets 1,812,490 1,817,615
TOTAL ASSETS 3,199,988 3,049,400
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 769,482 686,031
Loans and borrowings 7,769 2,781
Employee benefits 23,133 23,091
Current tax payable (2) 71
Provision 12,032 8,745
Total current liabilities 812414 720,719
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 359,503 278,159
Deferred tax liabilities 17,355 29,247
Employee benefits 1,689 2,166
Total non-current liabilities 378,547 309,572
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,190,961 1,030,291
NET ASSETS 2,009,027 2,019,109
Equity
Share capital 1,850,605 1,847,855
Other contributed equity - 73,691
Reserves 149,634 92,192
Retained earnings 8,788 5371
TOTAL EQUITY 2,009,027 2,019,109
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34 Related parties

(a) Transactions with related parties in the wholly-owned group
The group entered into the following transactions during the period with subsidiaries of the group:

» Loans were advanced and repayments received on short term intercompany accounts; and
« Management fees were received from several wholly-owned controlled entities.

These transactions were undertaken on commercial arms-length terms and conditions.
(b) Transactions with associated parties

Crop.zone GmbH

In August 2021, the group provided a bank guarantee to support Crop.zone GmbH for a value of €0.250 million. The guarantee
remained in place until 30 September 2024 before being removed during the FY25 year.

In July 2023, the group provided a convertible loan of €1.250 million with a fixed term maturity of three years to Crop.zone GmbH. It
was expected that the loan will be converted into additional shares in Crop.zone GmbH within this period. The payment of interest is
contingent upon whether the loan is converted into additional shares in Crop.zone GmbH within this period, and will become payable
where such a conversion does not occur.

During the year ended 30 September 2024, Nufarm provided an additional €0.500 million loan to Crop.zone. Both the convertible
loan and the additional loan have been included in the impairment of the Crop.zone investment for the year ended 30 September
2024. During the year ended 30 September 2025, the group provided an additional €0.096 million loan to Crop.zone under

a settlement agreement, however a provision was recognised against this loan during the year. Refer to notes 6 and 16 for

further information.

Transactions during the year

2025 2024
$000 $000
Crop.zone GmbH:
Lease payments made to related parties - 252
Interest expense - leases - 1
Sale of goods and services 25 37
Purchase of goods and services 2 849

During year ended 30 September 2025, Medisup Securities Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the group) acquired shares in
Enko Chem from Dr David Jones, a non-executive director of the group. The group obtained an independent external valuation to
ascertain an arms-length value for transacting the shares. The acquisition value of the shares was approximately $5.264 million
(US$3.274 million), and all terms and conditions of the transaction were considered to be no more favourable than those available, or
which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-director related entities on an arms-length

basis. The share transfer and subsequent payment was made on the 15th of January 2025, with no balances owing as of

30 September 2025.

Outstanding balances with related parties

As at 30 Sep

2025 2024

$000 $000
Crop.zone GmbH:
Trade and other payables - -
Trade and other receivables 72 37
Other receivables - associates - -
Lease liability - 215
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For personal use only

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 September

(c) Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel compensation included in personnel expenses (see note 9) are as follows:

2025 2024

$000 $000

Short term employee benefits 4,894 4,776
Post employment benefits 125 130
Equity compensation benefits 1,206 1,236
Other long term benefits 75 75
6,300 6,217

Individual directors and executives compensation disclosures

Information regarding individual directors and executives compensation is provided in the remuneration report section of the
directors' report.

(d) Other key management personnel transactions with the company or its controlled entities

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with the company or entities in the group
since the end of the previous reporting period and there were no material contracts involving director's interest existing at the end of
this period.

A number of key management persons, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities that result in them having control or
significant influence over the financial or operating policies of those entities. However, there has not been any material related party
transactions that have occurred during the year.

From time to time, key management personnel of the company or its controlled entities, or their related entities, may purchase
goods from the group. These purchases are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other group employees or
customers and are trivial or domestic in nature.

(e) Loans to key management personnel and their related parties

There were no loans to key management personnel at 30 September 2025 (2024 nil).
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35 Auditors’ remuneration

2025 2024
$ $
Audit services
KPMG Australia
Audit and review of group financial report 1,749,020 1,221,310
Overseas KPMG firms
Audit and review of group and local financial reports 2,449,794 3,663,963
4,198,814 4,885,273
Other auditors
Audit and review of local financial reports 712,028 483,991
Audit services remuneration 4,910,842 5,369,264
Other services
KPMG Australia
Other assurance services - 41,400
Other advisory services - -
Overseas KPMG firms
Other assurance services 64,426 62,742
Other advisory services - -
Other auditors
Other assurance services = -
Other advisory services 35,016 61,924
Other services remuneration 99,442 166,066

36 Subsequent events

On 15 October 2025, a distribution was paid by Nufarm Finance (NZ) on the Nufarm step-up securities. The distribution rate

(annualised) was 7.98% resulting in a gross distribution of $10.037 million.

On the same date, Nufarm refinanced its short-term omega-3 loan facility with a balance of $109.401 million (US$90 million facility
size, with US$72.347 million drawn) into a two-year A$90 million amortising loan facility with annual principal repayments. The facility

is secured against tangible assets in Australia, the United States, Canada and New Zealand.

Other than noted above, no matters or circumstances have arisen in the interval between 30 September 2025 and the date of this
report that, in the opinion of the directors, have or may significantly affect the operations, results or state of affairs of the group in

subsequent accounting periods.
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Consolidated entity disclosure statement

In accordance with the requirements of Subsection 295(3A)

of the Corporations Act 2001, set out below is the

consolidated entity disclosure statement disclosing information
in respect of Nufarm Limited and entities it controlled at

30 September 2025.

Basis of preparation

Section 295 (3A) of the Corporation Acts 2001 requires that

the tax residency of each entity which is included in the
Consolidated Entity Disclosure Statement (CEDS) be disclosed.
For the purposes of this section, an entity is an Australian
resident at the end of a financial year if the entity is:

(@) an Australian resident (within the meaning of the Income Tax
Assessment Act 1997) at that time; or
(b) a partnership, with at least one partner being an Australian

resident (within the meaning of the Income Tax Assessment

Act 1997) at that time; or

(c) aresident trust estate (within the meaning of Division 6 of
Part Il of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936) in relation

to the year of income (within the meaning of that Act) that
corresponds to the financial year.

In determining tax residency, the consolidated entity has
applied the following interpretations:

« Australian tax residency - an Australian resident has the
meaning provided in the Income Tax Assessment Act
1997 and the determination was made in accordance with
the Commissioner of Taxation's public guidance, including
TR2018/5 and PCG 2018/9.

« Foreign tax residency - the consolidated entity has
applied current legislation and where available, relevant
revenue authority guidance in the determination of foreign
tax residency.

« Partnerships and trusts in Australia - Australian tax law
generally does not contain corresponding residency tests for
partnerships and trusts and these entities are typically taxed
on a flow-through basis.

Body corporates Tax residency

Body corporate, Place Percentage

partnership, incorporated of share Australian or Foreign
Entity name Notes or trust or formed capital held foreign jurisdiction(s)
Nufarm Limited Body corporate Australia - Australian N/A
Access Genetics Pty Ltd ! Body corporate Australia - Australian N/A
Agcare Biotech Pty Ltd ! Body corporate Australia - Australian N/A
Agchem Receivables Corporation Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Agryl Holdings Limited Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Agtrol International SA DE CV Body corporate Mexico 100 Foreign Mexico
Ag-seed Research Pty Ltd ! Body corporate Australia - Australian N/A
Ag-turf SA DE CV Body corporate Mexico 100 Foreign Mexico
AH Marks Australia Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
AH Marks Holdings Limited Body corporate United Kingdom 100 Foreign United Kingdom
AH Marks Pensions Scottish
Limited Partnership Partnership United Kingdom N/A Foreign United Kingdom
Artfern Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nuseed Brazil SA (previously known as
Atlantica Sementes SA) Body corporate Brazil 100 Foreign Brazil
Australis Services Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Bestbeech Pty Ltd ! Body corporate Australia - Australian N/A
Chemicca Limited ! Body corporate Australia - Australian N/A
CNG Holdings BV Body corporate Netherlands 100 Foreign Netherlands
COCRF Investor 177 LLC 2 Body corporate USA - Foreign USA
Crop Care Australasia Pty Ltd ! Body corporate Australia - Australian N/A
Crop Care Holdings Limited ! Body corporate New Zealand - Foreign New Zealand
Croplands Equipment Limited Body corporate New Zealand 100 Foreign New Zealand
Croplands Equipment Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Danestoke Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Edgehill Investments Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Fchem (Aust) Limited Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Fernz Canada Limited 3 Body corporate Canada 100 Foreign Canada
First Classic Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Frost Technology Corporation Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Growell Limited Body corporate United Kingdom 100 Foreign United Kingdom
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Body corporates

Tax residency

Body corporate, Place Percentage

partnership, incorporated of share Australian or Foreign
Entity name Notes or trust or formed capital held foreign jurisdiction(s)
Grupo Corporativo Nufarm SA Body corporate Guatemala 100 Foreign Guatemala
Le Moulin des Ecluses s.a Body corporate France 100 Foreign France
Lefroy Seeds Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Manaus Holdings Sdn Bhd Body corporate Malaysia 100 Foreign Malaysia
Marman (Nufarm) Inc Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Marman de Mexico Sociedad Anomima
De Capital Variable Body corporate Mexico 100 Foreign Mexico
Marman Holdings LLC Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Masmart Pty Ltd ! Body corporate Australia - Australian N/A
Mastra Corporation Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Mastra Corporation Sdn Bhd Body corporate Malaysia 100 Foreign Malaysia
Mastra Corporation USA Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Mastra Holdings Sdn Bhd Body corporate Malaysia 100 Foreign Malaysia
Mastra Industries Sdn Bhd Body corporate Malaysia 100 Foreign Malaysia
Medisup Securities Limited 4 Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Munistrategies Sub-CDE 29, LLC 2 Body corporate USA - Foreign USA
NF Agriculture Inc Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Nufarm ABF Trustees Limited 5 Body corporate United Kingdom 100 Foreign United Kingdom
Nufarm Agriculture (Pty) Ltd Body corporate South Africa 100 Foreign South Africa
Nufarm Agriculture Inc 3 Body corporate Canada 100 Foreign Canada
Nufarm Agriculture Zimbabwe (Pvt) Ltd Body corporate Zimbabwe 100 Foreign Zimbabwe
Nufarm Americas Holding Company Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Nufarm Americas Inc 6 Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Nufarm Asia Sdn Bhd Body corporate Malaysia 100 Foreign Malaysia
Nufarm Australia Limited Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nufarm BV Body corporate Netherlands 100 Foreign Netherlands
Nufarm Canada
Receivables Partnership Partnership Canada N/A Foreign Canada
Nufarm Chemical (Shanghai) Co Ltd Body corporate China 100 Foreign China
Nufarm Crop Products UK Limited Body corporate United Kingdom 100 Foreign United Kingdom
Nufarm Costa Rica Inc. SA Body corporate Costa Rica 100 Foreign Costa Rica
Nufarm de Guatemala SA Body corporate Guatemala 100 Foreign Guatemala
Nufarm de Mexico Sa de CV Body corporate Mexico 100 Foreign Mexico
Nufarm de Panama SA Body corporate Panama 100 Foreign Panama
Nufarm de Venezuela SA Body corporate Venezuela 100 Foreign Venezuela
Nufarm Deutschland GmbH Body corporate Germany 100 Foreign Germany
Nufarm do Brazil Ltda Body corporate Brazil 100 Foreign Brazil
Nufarm Espana SA Body corporate Spain 100 Foreign Spain
Nufarm Europe GmbH Body corporate Germany 100 Foreign Germany
Nufarm Finance BV 2 Body corporate Netherlands - Foreign Netherlands
Nufarm Finance Inc Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Nufarm Finance Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nufarm Finance (NZ) Limited Body corporate New Zealand 100 Foreign New Zealand
Nufarm GmbH 4 Body corporate Austria 100 Foreign Austria

Austria

Nufarm GmbH & Co KG 7 Partnership Austria N/A Both and Australia
Nufarm Grupo Mexico SA de RL de CV Body corporate Mexico 100 Foreign Mexico
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Consolidated entity disclosure statement continued

Body corporates

Tax residency

Body corporate, Place Percentage

partnership, incorporated of share Australian or Foreign
Entity name Notes or trust or formed capital held foreign jurisdiction(s)
Nufarm Holdings (NZ) Limited Body corporate New Zealand 100 Foreign New Zealand
Nufarm Holdings BV Body corporate Netherlands 100 Foreign Netherlands
Nufarm Holdings s.a.s Body corporate France 100 Foreign France
Nufarm Hong Kong Investments Ltd Body corporate Hong Kong 100 Foreign Hong Kong
Nufarm Hungaria Kft Body corporate Hungary 100 Foreign Hungary
Nufarm Inc Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Nufarm India Private Limited Body corporate India 100 Foreign India
Nufarm Insurance Pte Ltd Body corporate Singapore 100 Foreign Singapore
Nufarm Investments Cooperatie WA Body corporate Netherlands 100 Foreign Netherlands
Nufarm Investment Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nufarm Italia srl Body corporate Italy 100 Foreign Italy
Nufarm KK Body corporate Japan 100 Foreign Japan
Nufarm Korea Ltd ! Body corporate Korea - Foreign Korea
Nufarm Labuan Pte Ltd Body corporate Malaysia 100 Foreign Malaysia
Nufarm Limited Body corporate United Kingdom 100 Foreign United Kingdom
Nufarm Malaysia Sdn Bhd Body corporate Malaysia 100 Foreign Malaysia
Nufarm Materials Limited ! Body corporate Australia - Australian N/A
Nufarm Middle East Operations Body corporate Egypt 100 Foreign Egypt
Nufarm Nordics AB Body corporate Sweden 100 Foreign Sweden
Nufarm NZ Limited Body corporate New Zealand 100 Foreign New Zealand
Nuseed Paraguay SA Body corporate Paraguay 100 Foreign Paraguay
Nufarm Pensions General Partner Ltd 8 Body corporate United Kingdom 100 Foreign United Kingdom
Nufarm Pensions Scottish
Limited Partnership Partnership United Kingdom N/A Foreign United Kingdom
Nufarm Platte Pty Ltd ! Body corporate Australia - Australian N/A
Nufarm Polska SP.Z 0.0 Body corporate Poland 100 Foreign Poland
Nufarm Portugal LDA Body corporate Portugal 100 Foreign Portugal
Nufarm Romania SRL Body corporate Romania 100 Foreign Romania
Nufarm s.a.s Body corporate France 100 Foreign France
Nufarm Services (Singapore) Pte Ltd Body corporate Singapore 100 Foreign Singapore
Nufarm Services Sdn Bhd Body corporate Malaysia 100 Foreign Malaysia
Nufarm Technologies (M) Sdn Bhd Body corporate Malaysia 100 Foreign Malaysia
Nufarm Technologies USA Body corporate New Zealand 100 Foreign New Zealand
Nufarm Technologies USA Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nufarm Treasury Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nufarm Turkey Kimyevi Maddeler Ithalat
ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi Body corporate Turkey 100 Foreign Turkey
Nufarm UK Limited 5 Body corporate United Kingdom 100 Foreign United Kingdom
Nufarm Ukraine LLC Body corporate Ukraine 100 Foreign Ukraine
Nufarm Uruguay SA Body corporate Uruguay 100 Foreign Uruguay
Nufarm USA Inc Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Nufarm Vietnam Co. Ltd. Body corporate Vietham 100 Foreign Vietham
Nugrain Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nuseed Americas Inc Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Nuseed Canada Inc Body corporate Canada 100 Foreign Canada
Nuseed Europe Holding Company Ltd Body corporate United Kingdom 100 Foreign United Kingdom
Nuseed Europe Ltd Body corporate United Kingdom 100 Foreign United Kingdom
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Body corporates Tax residency

Body corporate, Place Percentage

partnership, incorporated of share Australian or Foreign
Entity name Notes or trust or formed capital held foreign jurisdiction(s)
Nuseed Global Holdings Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nuseed Global Innovation Ltd Body corporate United Kingdom 100 Foreign United Kingdom
Nuseed Global Management US Inc Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Nuseed Holding Company 6 Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Nuseed International Holdings Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nuseed Mexico SA De CV Body corporate Mexico 100 Foreign Mexico
Nuseed Nutritional Australia Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nuseed Nutritional US Inc Body corporate USA 100 Foreign USA
Nuseed Nutritional Chile SpA Body corporate Chile 100 Foreign Chile
Nuseed Omega Holdings Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nuseed Proprietary Limited Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nuseed SA Body corporate Argentina 100 Foreign Argentina
Nuseed Serbia d.0.0. KAC Body corporate Serbia 100 Foreign Serbia
Nuseed South America Sementes Ltda Body corporate Brazil 100 Foreign Brazil
Nuseed Spain, S.L. Body corporate Spain 100 Foreign Spain
Nuseed Ukraine LLC Body corporate Ukraine 100 Foreign Ukraine
Nuseed Uruguay SA Body corporate Uruguay 100 Foreign Uruguay
Nutrihealth Grain Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Nutrihealth Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Opti-Crop Systems Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 75 Australian N/A
Pharma Pacific Pty Ltd ! Body corporate Australia - Australian N/A
Plant Protection Products For Middle
East Operations Body corporate Egypt 100 Foreign Egypt
PT Crop Care Body corporate Indonesia 100 Foreign Indonesia
PT Nufarm Indonesia Body corporate Indonesia 100 Foreign Indonesia
Richardson Seeds Ltd Partnership USA N/A Foreign USA
Selchem Pty Ltd Body corporate Australia 100 Australian N/A
Societe Des Ecluses De la Garenne s.a.s Body corporate France 100 Foreign France
3 Rivers Sub-CDE 5 LLC 2 Body corporate USA - Foreign USA

1 These entities ceased operations during the year ended 30 September 2025 resulting in disposal of the entity, liquidation of the entity or amalgamation with

other group entities.

2 The group does not hold any ownership interests in these entities, however, based on the terms of agreement under which these entities were established, the

group controls the operations of these entities.

3 This entity is a partner of Nufarm Canada Receivables Partnership.

4 This entity is a partner of Nufarm GmbH & Co KG.

5 This entity is a partner of both Nufarm Pensions Scottish Limited Partnership and AH Marks Pensions Scottish Limited Partnership.

6 This entity is a partner of Richardson Seeds Ltd

7 Nufarm GmbH & Co KG operates a manufacturing plant and distribution business in Austria. Australian law does not contain specific residency tests for
partnerships, which are generally taxed on a flow-through basis i.e. in the hands of the partners. Under Treasury Laws Amendment (Making Multinationals Pay
their Fair Share- Integrity and Transparency) Act 2024, for the purposes of the Consolidated Entity Disclosure Schedule a partnership should be disclosed as
being Australian tax resident where at least one member of the partnership is an Australian tax resident.

Medisup Securities Ltd is a 99% partner in Nufarm GmbH & Co KG, therefore for FY25 onwards this entity is disclosed as being resident in both Australia

and Austria.

The profits of the Nufarm GmbH & Co KG are included in the Australian consolidated income tax return but are treated as non-assessable non-exempt income.

This treatment has been reviewed and agreed by the ATO.

8 This entity is a relevant legal entity with significant control of Nufarm Pensions Scottish Limited Partnership and AH Marks Pensions Scottish Limited Partnership
through its right to appoint or remove a majority of management.
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Directors’ declaration

1 Inthe opinion of the directors of Nufarm Limited (the company):
(a) the consolidated financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 including:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the group’s financial position as at 30 September 2025 and of its performance for the year
ended on that date; and
(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and
(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable.
2 Inthe opinion of the directors, the consolidated entity disclosure statement required by Subsection 295(3A) of the Corporations
Act 2001 as disclosed in section 'Consolidated entity disclosure statement' is true and correct.
3 There are reasonable grounds to believe that the company and the group entities identified in note 31 will be able to meet
any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of the deed of cross guarantee between the
company and those group entities pursuant to ASIC Corporations (Wholly owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785.
4 The directors have been given the declarations required by Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 from the chief executive
officer and chief financial officer for the year ended 30 September 2025.
5 The directors draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, which includes a statement of compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

John Gillam Greg Hunt
Director Director

Dated at Melbourne this 19th day of November 2025
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Independent Audit Report

KPMG

Independent Auditors keport

To the shareholders of Nufarm Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Report

souewlopad HS3 INO

We have audited the Financial Report of Nufarm  The Financial Report comprises:

Limited (the C .
imited {the Company) e Consolidated balance sheet as at 30

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial September 2025;
Report of the Company gives a true and fair
view, including of the Group's financial position
as at 30 September 2025 and of its financial
performance for the year then ended, in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, in
compliance with Australian Accounting Standards
and the Corporations Regulations 2001. e Consolidated entity disclosure statement and
accompanying basis of preparation as at 30
September 2025;

o Consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, Consolidated
statement of changes in equity, and
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended;

¢ Notes, including material accounting policies
e Directors’ Declaration.

The Group consists of the Company and the
entities it controlled at the year end or from time
to time during the financial year.

Basis for opinion

uoday si010811q

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the Financial Report section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our
audit of the Financial Report in Australia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and
logo are trademarks used under license by the independent member firms of the KPMG global organisation. Liability limited by
a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Independent Audit Report continued
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Key Audit Matters

The Key Audit Matters we identified are:

e Recoverability of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets; and

o Recoverability of deferred tax assets in
relation to tax losses.

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Report of
the current period.

These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the Financial Report as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recoverability of property, plant and equipment ($723m) and intangible assets ($1,177m)

Refer to Notes 2(d)(i), 3(i)(ii), 18 and 19 to the Financial Report.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

A key audit matter for us was the Group's annual
testing of the recoverable amount of its various
cash generating units (CGU), which include
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets (including goodwill), given the size of the
balances (being 42% of total assets) and the
level of judgement required by us when
evaluating the evidence available. We focused on
the significant forward-looking assumptions the
Group applied in their value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal models, including:

e Forecast cash flows, growth rates and terminal
growth rates — the Group has experienced
competitive market conditions in the current
year, as a result of weather conditions and
fluctuations in demand and pricing. This
impacted the Group through a reduction in
margins in the current year. These conditions
increase the possibility of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (including
goodwill) being impaired, plus the risk of
inaccurate forecasts or a wider range of
possible outcomes for us to consider.

¢ Discount rates — these are complicated in
nature and vary according to the conditions
and environment the specific CGU is subject to
from time to time, and the models’ approach
to incorporating risks into the cash flows or
discount rates. The limited headroom in the
Europe CGU, and its sensitivity to any adverse
movements in assumptions also increased our
audit effort in this regard.

In addition, our audit effort in this key area
increased as a result of:

e the carrying amount of the Group's net
assets and the recoverable amount of the

Our procedures included:

* We considered the appropriateness of the
value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal methods applied by the Group to
perform the annual impairment test against the
requirements of the accounting standards.

* We assessed the integrity of the models used,
including the accuracy of the underlying
calculation formulas.

* \We assessed the competence, capabilities,
and objectivity of management's external
expert, and evaluated the appropriateness of
that expert’s work in connection with the
determination of discount rates and terminal
growth rates, and the fair value less costs of
disposal.

* We compared the forecast cash flows
contained in the models to Board approved
budgets and forecasts.

* \We evaluated the design and implementation
of key controls over the cash flow models,
including Board consideration and approval of
key assumptions and business unit budgets
which form the basis of the cash flow
forecasts.

* We assessed the accuracy of previous Group
forecasts to inform our evaluation of forecasts
incorporated in the models and company-
specific risk premiums incorporated into the
discount rates.

* We considered the sensitivity of the models by
varying key assumptions, such as forecast
growth rates, terminal growth rates and
discount rates, within a reasonably possible
range. We did this to identify those
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Group's CGUs, exceeded the Group’s market
capitalisation at year end, increasing audit
effort and the possibility of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets
(including goodwill) being impaired; and

e the Group recorded an impairment charge of
$57m against intangible assets, resulting
from asset rationalisation and restructure
activities in the Seed technologies segment.

The Group uses complex models to perform their
annual impairment assessment. The models are
largely manually developed, use adjusted
historical performance and a range of internal and
external sources as inputs to the assumptions.
Complex modelling, using forward-looking
assumptions, tends to be prone to greater risk of
error. Where the Group has not met prior year
forecasts in relation to a specific CGU, we factor
this into our assessment of forecast
assumptions. These conditions necessitated
additional scrutiny by us, in particular to address
the objectivity of sources used for assumptions,
and their consistent application. We involved
valuation specialists to supplement our senior
audit team members in assessing this key audit
matter.

assumptions that give rise to a higher risk of
impairment for the CGU and to focus our
further procedures.

We assessed the Group's reconciliation of
differences between the year-end market
capitalisation and the carrying amount of the
net assets by comparing the implicit earnings
multiples to market multiples of comparable
entities and other available information.

We challenged the Group's significant forecast
cash flow assumptions in light of the expected
continuation of competitive market conditions.
We compared key events to the Board
approved plan and strategy. We applied
increased scepticism to forecasts in the areas
where previous forecasts were not achieved.
We used our knowledge of the Group, its past
performance, business and customers, and our
industry experience.

We checked the consistency of the growth
rates to the Group's stated plan and strategy,
past performance of the Group and our
experience regarding feasibility of these in the
industry in which it operates.

Working with our valuation specialists, we
analysed and challenged:

o the discount rates applied, using publicly
available market data for comparable
entities, adjusted for risk factors specific to
the CGU and the industry it operates in; and

o the terminal growth rate using publicly
available market data.

Working with our valuation specialists, we
compared the implied multiples from
comparable market transactions to the implied
multiple from the Group's fair value less costs
of disposal model.

We recalculated the impairment charge against
the underlying records.

We assessed the disclosures in the financial
report using our understanding of the issue
obtained from our testing and against the
requirements of the accounting standards.
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Recoverability of deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses ($187m)

Refer to Notes 2(d)(ii), 3(0), 11 and 15 to the Financial Report.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Recoverability of deferred tax assets in relation to
tax losses is a key audit matter due to the:

e Complexity in auditing the forward-looking
assumptions applied to the Group's tax loss
utilisation models, especially given the multiple
tax jurisdictions and their bespoke tax regimes.
Further details on the significant forward-
looking assumptions and implications for the
audit are contained in the Key Audit Matter
relating to the recoverability of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets.
Additional auditor attention is focused on the
reconciliation of forecast cash flows to
forecasts of taxable income for each tax
jurisdiction.

Our procedures included:

* \We evaluated the design and implementation
of key controls over the taxable income
forecasts underpinning the tax loss utilisation
models, including Board consideration and
approval of key assumptions and business unit
budgets which form the basis of these
forecasts.

* We compared the key assumptions and
business unit budgets for consistency with
those tested by us, as set out in the Key Audit
Matter relating to the recoverability of
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets, and comparing the reconciliation of
these budgets to taxable income concepts,
assessing the adjustments for items against
what we expect.

¢ \We assessed the Group's tax loss utilisation
models and key assumptions, by significant
jurisdiction, by:
- identifying areas of estimation uncertainty to
focus further procedures;

- comparing taxable income to historical trends
and performance to inform our evaluation of
the current taxable profit forecasts; and

- understanding the timing of future taxable
income and considering the consistency of
the timeframes of expected recovery to our
knowledge of the business and its plans.

Other Information

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in Nufarm Limited’s annual report which is
provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor's Report. The Directors are responsible

for the Other Information.

The Other Information we obtained prior to the date of this Auditor's Report was the Directors’
Report, the Operating and Financial Review and the Remuneration Report (Section 5.5). The Financial
Year 2025 Overview, Chair's Message, CEO's Message, About us, Environmental, Social and
Governance, information on the Board of Directors and Key Management Personnel, the Corporate
Governance Statement, the Shareholder and Statutory Information and Corporate Information are
expected to be made available to us after the date of the Auditor’s Report.
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Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not
and will not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon, with the exception
of the Remuneration Report and our related assurance opinion.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information. In doing so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the Financial Report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, and based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained
prior to the date of this Auditor's Report we have nothing to report.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The Directors are responsible for:

e preparing the Financial Report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including giving a
true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the Group and in compliance with
Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001,

e implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Report in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including giving a true and fair view of the financial
position and performance of the Group, and that is free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error

e assessing the Group and Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use
of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. This includes disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they
either intend to liquidate the Group and Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report

Our objective is:

e 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

e toissue an Auditor's Report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the Financial Report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:
https://www.auasb.gov.au/admin/file/content102/c3/ar1_2020.pdf This description forms part of our
Auditor’'s Report.
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| i

Report on the Remuneration Report
Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of
Nufarm Limited for the year ended 30 September
2025 complies with Section 300A of the
Corporations Act 2001.

'Lt

KPMG

Nufarm Limited | Annual Report 2025

Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation and presentation of the
Remuneration Report in accordance with Section
300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Our responsibilities

We have audited the Remuneration Report
included in section 1 to 11 excluding section 5.5
of the Directors’ report for the year ended 30
September 2025.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion as to
whether the Remuneration Report complies in all
material respects with Section 300A of the
Corporations Act 2001, based on our audit
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards.

A

Vicky Carlson
Partner
Melbourne

19 November 2025
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Shareholder and Statutory Information

Substantial shareholders

As at 7 November 2025, the names of the substantial holders of the company and the number of equity securities in which those
substantial holders and their associates have a relevant interest, as disclosed in substantial holding notices given to the company,
are as follows:

% of total issued securities capital

Holder of equity securities Number of equity securities held in relevant class
Allan Gray Australia Pty Ltd 66,421,550 17.30
Host-Plus Pty Limited 43,326,823 11.31

Copia Investment Partners Ltd 39,080,000 10.18

Tanarra Capital Australia Pty Ltd 30,774,827 8.05

Australian Retirement Trust Pty Ltd 27,796,153 7.26

L1 Capital Pty Ltd 24,767,878 6.47

State Street Corporation and subsidiaries 23,269,204 6.07

Phoenix Group 21,290,883 5.60

Vanguard Group 19,011,407 5.00

Number of holders

As at 7 November 2025, the number of holders is as follows:

Class of Equity Securities Number of holders

Fully paid ordinary shares 13,655

Less than marketable parcels of ordinary shares (UMP Shares)
The number of holders of less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares based on the closing market price at 7 November 2025 is
as follows:

% of issued shares held by
Total shares UMP shares UMP holders UMP holders

383,925,672 261,000 2,373 0.068%

Voting rights of equity securities

As at 7 November 2025, there were 13,655 holders of a total of 383,925,572 ordinary shares of the company. At a general meeting
of the company, every holder of ordinary shares present in person or by proxy, attorney or representative has one vote on a show of
hands and, on a poll, one vote for each ordinary share held. On a poll, every member (or his or her proxy, attorney or representative)
is entitled to vote for each fully paid share held and, in respect of each partly paid share, is entitled to a fraction of a vote equivalent
to the proportion which the amount paid up (not credited) on that partly paid share bears to the total amounts paid and payable
(excluding amounts credited) on that share. Amounts paid in advance of a call are ignored when calculating the proportion.

Distribution of holders of equity securities

The distribution of holders of equity securities on issue in the company as at 7 November 2025 is as follows:

Distribution of ordinary shareholders holdings ranges Holders Total units %
1-1,000 5,969 2,437,452 0.63
1,001-5,000 4,995 12,770,464 3.33
5,001-10,000 1,435 10,814,208 2.82
10,001 - 100,000 1,185 28,859,225 7.52
100,001 Over 71 329,044,223 85.71
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Shareholder and Statutory Information continued

Twenty largest shareholders as at 7 November 2025

Rank  Name Units % Units
1 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 118,899,546 30.97
2 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 100,294,709 26.12
3 J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED 58,062,576 15.12
4 BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD <AGENCY LENDING A/C> 24,074,858 6.27
5 BNP PARIBAS NOMS PTY LTD 3,818,140 0.99
6 BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD <IB AU NOMS RETAILCLIENT> 3,770,683 0.98
7 ASB NOMINEES LIMITED <574401 - ML A/C> 1,352,595 0.35
8 TOM HADLEY ENTERPRISES PTY LTD 1,300,000 0.34
9 NETWEALTH INVESTMENTS LIMITED <WRAP SERVICES A/C> 1,287,679 0.34
10 CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED <COLONIAL FIRST STATE INV A/C> 1,049,358 0.27
11 FIRST SAMUEL LTD ACN 086243567 <ANF ITS MDA CLIENTS A/C> 922,512 0.24
12 BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD <HUB24 CUSTODIAL SERV LTD> 784,224 0.20
13 PM1942 PTY LTD <PETER MCINTYRE SUPER A/C> 700,000 0.18
14 BNP PARIBAS NOMS PTY LTD <GLOBAL MARKETS> 687,128 0.18
15 NETWEALTH INVESTMENTS LIMITED <SUPER SERVICES A/C> 645,673 0.17
16 SANDHURST TRUSTEES LTD <ENDEAVOR ASSET MGMT MDA A/C> 535,524 0.14
17 QQ FASHIONS PTY LTD 455,000 0.12
18 SAINT KENTIGERN TRUST BOARD 430,434 0.11
19 ACE PROPERTY HOLDINGS PTY LTD 410,000 0.11
20 MR JAVED AHMED 400,000 0.10
Total number of shares of top 20 holders 319,880,639 83.32
Total remaining holders balance 64,044,933 16.68
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Corporate information

Registered office

103-105 Pipe Road

Laverton North VIC 3026 Australia
Telephone: +613 9282 1000
Facsimile: +613 9282 1001

Nufarm Limited (NZ Branch)

Baker Tilly Staples Rodway Auckland Limited
ANZ Centre

Level 12, 23-29 Albert Street

Auckland 1010 New Zealand

Telephone: +64 9 309 0463

Company secretary
Kate Hall

Auditors

KPMG

Tower Two, Collins Square
727 Collins Street

Melbourne VIC 3008 Australia

Trustee for Nufarm step-up securities

The Trust Company (Australia) Limited
Level 14,123 Pitt Street, Angel Place
Sydney NSW 2000 Australia

Share registry

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd (Australia)
GPO Box 2975

Melbourne VIC 3001 Australia

Telephone: 1300 555 159

Outside Australia; +613 9415 4062

Computershare Investor Services Limited (New Zealand)
Private Bag 92119

Auckland 1142 New Zealand

Telephone: +64 9 488 8700

Step-up securities registry

Computershare Registry Services Limited
Private Bag 92119

Auckland 1142 New Zealand

Telephone: +64 9 488 8700

Stock exchange listing

The company’s ordinary shares are quoted on the Australian

Securities Exchange (ASX). The company was admitted to the

official list of the ASX on 10 November 1988 (ASX code: NUF).

Website

www.nufarm.com

Nufarm Limited
ACN 091323 312
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